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TVK at a glance

Our core lines of business
We supply polymer products in competitive quality mainly to European plastic processing companies. Beyond our main profile, we
sell olefins and other petrochemical co-products to regional chemical and oil companies, so to MOL as well. Our core activity includes
two major production lines:
• Olefin production: the production and wholesale distribution of ethylene, propylene and other co-products of olefin production.
Our petrochemical feedstock is supplied from two sources: majority of that is produced by MOL Refining business unit and the
remaining part is procured by Commercial business in MOL Downstream. We sell the significant part of our olefin co-products to
MOL Refining Segment, the amount is approximately one third of our feedstock used. The majority of these co-products are used
in the aromatic production and processed to fuel components. Our total ethylene capacity is 660 kt per annum.

Enhancing our competitiveness we highly lean on the MOL Downstream Division integration synergies: the secured feedstock
supply, the robust financial background and strong position in the regional markets, together with the competitive products of
the optimized production capacities.
In 2011, the petrochemical markets in Europe were poisoned by the general negative sentiment on economic outlook.
Whilst the global economy is growing, economies in Europe are hit by the credit crunch and economic restrictions, which
had an immediate effect on the plastics markets. After a steady first half, the European demand for polymers has slumped
considerably in 2011, due to the economic problems in Europe which suppressed buying, whilst the annual average of the
quoted price for naphtha has gradually increased, along with the crude oil price. The annual average of integrated petrochemical
margin hit its ever lowest level and shrunk by 14% from 2010.
TVK can cope with these business challenges, due to our stable position in the regional polyolefin markets and by paying particular
attention to the continuous improvement of our product quality and customer portfolio. This attention - along with the implementation
of our energy strategy and cost cutting actions – and the good state of production facilities can guarantee the efficient operation for
the forthcoming years.
In our sales and marketing activity we intend to strengthen our position in Central-Europe that is core region for refined products of
MOL Downstream as well. Along the rapid growth potential anticipated in regional polymer demand, the attractiveness of proximate
markets can be derived from the outstanding knowledge of specific economic and infrastructural characteristics in the region, from
logistic advantages and the potential to build strategic customer relationships. Beyond the production of high quality products, our
most relevant competitive advantages are sales and marketing services, customer care and support as well as production facilities
that provide permanent supply.
In 2011 we improved our sales performance by achieving higher price levels, however our polymer sales volume declined slightly, by
2%. We lay particular emphasis on better understanding of customer requirements and building stable business relations in order to
improve a sustainable business model and to mitigate commercial risks in addition.
The performance of well prepared and committed professional staff can guarantee the sustainability of our business development.
We continue development in the fields of environmental protection, social responsibility and attitude of business ethics, which can
provide firm basis to our business operation. We take an active part in chemical industry associations and in professional preparatory
works of regulations in the European Union.

• Polyolefin production: the production of low and high density polyethylene (LDPE, unimodal and bimodal HDPE) and polypropylene
(PP copolymer and homogeneous polymer). Our annual capacity in case of LDPE is 65 kt, in case of HDPE is 420 kt and we have 280
kt PP capacity.

We continue to focus on operational safety in our industrial processes. Our Process Safety Management (PSM) system - introduced
in the preceding year - is revealing and investigating operational risks, events and monitors the preventive and corrective actions. By
PSM approach in the operation and through PSM audits conducted at production units we intend to increase operational safety in
our petrochemical processes. The PSM system we introduced is based on Dupont PSM methodology.

We supply our partners with polymer products via our own sales network. TVK operates 100% owned sales subsidiaries in three
countries – Poland, France and Ukraine. Above this, our sales activity is also conducted through MOL subsidiaries in Austria and
Romania, where we exploit synergies from the presence of other MOL businesses. From December 2011, we also merge petrochemical
sales activity to the local MOL subsidiaries in Germany and Italy. Sales as well as customer support in technical issues to the key
accounts and on other markets are managed from TVK and SPC. We supply feedstock especially to European small and medium size
plastic converters – 98% of our polymer products have been placed in European markets in 2011.

Mission
Our company offers petrochemical products of excellent quality and high level services to its customers. Our products are fundamental
for a wide range of industrial applications and for the production of a vast number of consumer goods that are essential to everyday
life and provide more comfort and plenitude in people life. Using our products, many industrial sectors (for example automotive
industry, building industry) are able to reduce the level of CO2 emission occurring during using their products and consumables, so we
endorse the battle against climate change. Continuous improvement and quality management in the widest sense are the essential
parts of our business philosophy.

Our major goals – competitiveness, efficiency, profitability
Our prime objective is maintaining our petrochemical leadership in the Central and Eastern European polymer markets where we
demand growth perspectives exceeds Western European figures.

As a significant business player in Hungary we express our social commitment towards the proper and wider society in many areas.
Focusing on the Southern Borsod Region of Hungary, that is affected directly by our activity, we play important role in health promotion,
talent management and education development. With aiming to establish long term relationship, we help organizations achieving
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Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company (hereinafter
TVK Plc. or TVK), located in Tiszaújváros - is the largest
chemical enterprise in Hungary by sales revenue.
Along with Slovnaft Petrochemicals, s.r.o. (hereinafter
SPC) – fully owned by Slovnaft, a.s. in Bratislava - TVK is
composing the Petrochemical business unit in the MOL
Downstream Division, which holds leading position in
petrochemical sector in the Central Eastern Europe and is
one of the ten largest polymer producers in Europe. TVK
and its Slovakian partner, SPC are operated in integrated
manner, benefiting from joint optimization of production
and integrated polymer sales. TVK has more than four
decade experience in producing commodity polymers in
competitive quality for the plastics processing industry,
which products are fundamental for a wide range of
industrial application and for production of a huge
number of consumer goods that are essential to our
everyday lives.
TVK shares are listed and traded on the Budapest Stock
Exchange and on the International Order Book of the
London Stock Exchange.
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As member of the MOL Downstream Division, we conduce
to enhance competitiveness and profitability in the refining
business and we can mutually mitigate the risk profile as well.
Core values
• We committed to responsibly stand up for health, safety and
our natural environment protection.
• Our operation is competitive and value creating. Our business
moves are based on long term and fair business relations,
where we consistently keep our ethical norms.
• We are engaged to improve customer orientation –
commitment to continuous improvement of service quality,
provided to customers.
• Quality consciousness, endeavour to operational excellence
and the innovative approach are immersing our day-to-day
operation. Accordingly our highly qualified, creative and
motivated employees can participate in shaping the future of
our company. This active contribution comes from open and

cooperative atmosphere and corporate culture that respects
for local and national characteristics.
• Focusing on people: although the industry we work in is widely
known for its high operational risks, our work-related injury
statistics show that we are in control of our operations in
terms of health and safety.

Key financial and operating data
TVK Group, IFRS, consolidated, audited
Net sales revenue

2010

2011

Change

2011

(HUF million)

(HUF million)

2011/2010 (%)

(EUR million)

365,185

411,462

800
13,012

Profit / Loss (-) from operation

Our corporate vision, which also reflects the outlines of our core
values, takes shape in an awareness of our business environment,
resources and capabilities.

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Vision
We are to retain our leadership in the regional petrochemical
industry by continuously developing our operating efficiency and
the competitiveness of our assets. As the leading regional polymer
producer, we are committed to pursue our activities according
to the business philosophies of continuous development and
operational excellence. Our high quality portfolio of products
- optimized in line with customer requirements - provide a
firm basis for exploiting the opportunities arising from the
surge of demand for polymers in Central and Eastern Europe.
We are building on the advantages, emanating from strategic
partnerships based on mutual benefits. Our corporate social
responsibility guarantees that we are creating value for all
stakeholders.
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1,322

(5,902)

-

(19)

13,331

2

43

EBITDA

13,812

7,429

(46)

24

Net financial gain / expense (-)

(2,807)

(4,981)

77

(16)

Profit before tax

(1,989)

(10,883)

447

(35)

Net profit / loss (-)

(1,170)

(11,226)

859

(36)

Capital expenditures

7,085

6,495

(8)

21

Shareholders’ equity

136,241

122,952

(10)

395

24,534

24,534

0

79

131,462

125,186

(5)

402

74,431

86,078

16

277

209,030

(1)

672

Share capital
Non-current assets
Total liabilities
Total assets
Major ratios

210,672
2010

EPS –earnings per share (HUF/share)

2011
(48)

(462)

ROE – Return on owner’s equity (%)

(0.86)

(9.13)

ROA – Return on assets (%)

(0.56)

(5.37)

Closing headcount

1,140

1,116

Number of shares
Production and sales data

24,290,843
2010

24,290,843
2011

Ethylene production (kt)

595

588

Polymer production (kt)

751

735

61

69

Polymer sales domestic (HUF billion)

165

184

Polymer sales revenue (HUF billion)

226

253

Polymer sales foreign (HUF billion)

Closing price of TVK shares on the Budapest Stock Exchange

2010

2011

        - Highest (HUF)

3,780

3,540

        - Lowest (HUF)

2,760

2,150

        - On December 31 (HUF)

3,300

2,240

80,160

54,412

Capitalisation (on December 31 closing price, HUF million)
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outstanding result in culture and science development. We are
proud of that we keep relationships for decades with cultural
organisations and festivals having international fame and the
World Cup series that includes sport festival as well.

Note: The EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the National Bank of Hungary for December 30, 2011 was: 311.13
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The gloomy predictions concerning the global economy
in 2011 were right unfortunately, because the world
economy presented an overall growth of only 3.8%
in comparison to 5.2% in 2010. In the markets of
the continent, an even worse situation was strongly
influenced by an increasing crisis in the countries of the
euro zone. We saw an expanding world economy as well
as a dual faced Europe where some of the central eastern
European countries produced a growth near the average
growth of the world economy, while growth was much
more modest in the rest of the central eastern European
countries and in EU member states. Even worse, a largescale credit crisis hitting the bigger part of the Euro zone
and the austerity measures introduced there made their
forceful and negative impacts on the plastics markets.   
A relatively stable supply and demand in the first half of
the year was followed by a significantly lower demand
for polymers, while the quoted price of naphtha kept
increasing high, as mineral oil prices went higher and
higher in 2011. These processes made petrochemical
margins – having been sufficient to keep operations near
at their break-even points in the first half of the year - sink
to drop finally to a historical rock bottom in the second
half. When it is compared to the margin levels in 2010, the
drop came to 14% on a yearly average.
Under these circumstances, survival and the maintenance
of operability of the facilities, both of which seemed to
be at stake, were the primary objectives for most players
of the petrochemical markets in the second half of 2011.
In the last months of the year, our competitors began to
shut down their facilities and suspended operations for
shorter or longer periods. Under these circumstances,
the decision made for TVK and the Petrochemical
Business Line of the MOL Group to reorganise their
operations as of early June looked timely in order to
integrate petrochemical operations into the structure of
the Downstream Division of MOL Group.

Irrespective of ongoing market processes, the reorganisation was
a logical and obvious step to make. The petrochemical plants
receive their raw material supplies from MOL Group refineries,
which supply energies, too, if necessary. A large part of the byproducts generated in the operations of the olefin plants producing
ethylene and propylene is recycled back to the refineries for
further processing. A higher degree of integration allows a higher
level of operation flexibility, secures a steady financial background
for the highly cyclic petrochemicals business. One of the benefits
of the integrated operations is that similar activities including
maintenance, energy management, logistics, sales and marketing
can be coordinated more easily.  
In the light of the extraordinarily disadvantageous environment in
the second half of the year, the realization of a yearly sales volume,
almost as high as in 2010, was an extraordinary achievement, even
though a lower market demand lessened our polyolefin sales in
the second half of the year. At the same time, it meant that we
were successful to maintain or even slightly increase our existing
shares in the most important markets.

Review of the year

Chairman’s letter

European economies in the forthcoming three or four years in terms of margins deciding petrochemical profitability and the
demand for plastics in the first place. Therefore, at the end of 2011, we worked up a four years’ program to improve efficiency
and integrated it into the program of the Downstream Division. The program is intended to help us improve the efficiency and
profitability of our petrochemicals operations by an amount worth more than ten billion Hungarian forints on a yearly average. This
will help us be among the best companies representing 25% of the European petrochemical sector.
One of the achievements in 2011 was that we did not let up our commitment to the strict observation of the safety and environmental
rules despite the unfavourable business environment. This allowed us to keep our safety figures at a level near zero, an excellent
achievement even when they are compared to international figures.   
Our highly skilled and committed employees and their disciplined work have their fair share in our achievements. Hereby, I want
thank all the employees of our Company for their responsible and dedicated work, which contributed to the Company’s performance
in 2011.
In view of the tasks and challenges lying ahead of us, we know that we are expected to work even harder in 2012. Therefore, I ask all
the colleagues to perform their assignments to 120% in 2012, if they performed them to 100% in 2011.  

Since the highest permanent item of our costs is the costs of
feedstock and energies, we continued our programs to improve
energy efficiency and reduce carbon dioxide emissions. These
actions helped us cut our emissions by 2% at the end of 2011.
Besides, we submitted our audited emission data to the
evaluating organisations in September 2011 in preparation for
a taxation system to be introduced in relation to the amount of
carbon dioxide emissions (ETS) later on. These data will make
a basis for the specification of the free quotas to be allocated
from 2013 onwards. In order to maintain the levels and quality
of our operations, we continued our projects including the one
associated with the revamp of the Olefin-1 Plant.  
The most unfavourable processes evolving in the second half of
2011 made our financial results turn to the negative. In spite of
this – owing to the integration and the background of MOL Group membership – we succeeded to keep our finances stable and
maintain the operability of the Company.   

György MOSONYI
Chairman of the Board

Analyses do not expect a significant improvement to come in the

10

TVK Annual Report 2011

11

Macro economic environment

Petrochemical trends

World economy: decelerating growth
2011 saw a marked but not very surprising slowdown in
the global economy following the unsustainable boom of
2010. The winding down of stimulus packages across the
globe and concerns regarding the future of the Eurozone
left their imprint on global economic performance which
only grew by 3.8 percent in 2011 versus 5.2 percent in
2010, a broadly-based loss of momentum, especially at
the end of the year. The advanced economies grew by 1.6
percent in 2011 while emerging countries experienced
a hefty 6.2 percent growth. The International Monetary
Fund (IMF) estimates that further deceleration will
come in 2012 as the Eurozone slips into recession, while
developing economies will also slow down due to a
worsening external environment and a weakening of
internal demand. The IMF forecasts global GDP will grow
by 3.3 percent, mostly driven by the developing regions.
Central & Eastern Europe, however, will only expand
by 1.1 percent in 2012, mainly due to adverse knock-on
effects from the euro area trade and financial channels.
There is also a downside risk to global growth if the
Eurozone crisis worsens.

In 2011, the average quoted (FOB med) price of naphtha was 906
USD/t, the average quoted price (CIF med) of gasoil was 937 USD/t.
The naphtha showed a year on year increase of 31% whilst the
price of gasoil a 39% growth.

Review of the year

Overview of the environment

The prices quoted in the European markets for the polymer
products produced by TVK (ICIS’ lor fd NWE low spot, EUR/t)
increased in the first quarter of 2011 as the feedstock prices grew,
and from April showed a slightly decreasing tendency in the year.
For the year as a whole, the average quoted price of LDPE was
higher by 3%, whiles the HDPE price increased by 16-17%, and
that of polypropylene were higher by 6-7% year on year. In 2011,
the average quoted price of LDPE was 1,243 EUR/t, the blown
HDPE grade was 1,169 EUR/t, whilst PP homopolymer raffia and
copolymer grades were 1,209 and 1,274 EUR/t.
The HUF weakened by 1% against the EUR and strengthened by
near 3% against the USD, while the EUR decreased by 5% against
the USD.
As a consequence of the changes in the feedstock prices, quoted
polymer prices and EUR/USD exchange rates, the integrated
petrochemical margin in the average of 2011 decreased by 14% in
HUF- and EUR-terms year-on-year.

CEE: two-speed recovery with
The CEE region’s two-speed recovery continued in 2011 with
Poland, Slovakia and Romania performing strongly, while Croatia
and Hungary, among others, continued to lag behind. Overall,
the region expanded by 5.1 percent in 2011 according to the IMF.
At the end of 2011, the region experienced net capital outflows
for the first time since 2009 and Western banks were also
deleveraging which created deterrents for growth prospects. Due
to high exposure to Eurozone stress, Central & East European GDP
growth is projected to slow down dramatically in 2012 to 1.1 percent, with some countries falling back into recession.
Hungary: slow recovery
The Hungarian economy grew by 1.7 percent in 2011, according
to preliminary data by the Hungarian Statistics Office, supported
solely by exports, while domestic demand contracted still further.
External financing uncertainties forced the Government to request
IMF subsidy. Negotiations are now in progress but the potential
terms of a loan are still in question.
12
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Our businesses
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Our main strategic goals
and results
Our competitive strength is supported by our geographical
position and efficient production capacities with a wellbalanced product and customer portfolio, as well as
refinery integration.
Considering our present competitive position and our
expectations for the business environment, our main
strategic objectives are as follows:
Maintain our leadership on the regional petrochemical market
by continuously improving our operating efficiency and the
competitiveness of our assets, as well as implementing the
planned maintenance and strategic development programs:

Exploit Downstream integration benefits: utilize the largest
possible extent the synergies emanating from cooperation
with other MOL Downstream businesses to achieve a common
optimum.

Entering to the butadiene extraction: beyond the profit
generation potential, emanated from our positive outlook of the
butadiene market, the start of butadiene production provides
us a further option to enter to the attractive segments of the
synthetic rubber market. This market is driven by automotive
industry applications. Tiszaújváros and Bratislava sites are under
investigation to implement the 130 kt/year extraction unit.

By implementing these development objectives, our
Petrochemical business will retain its leading position in the
regional petrochemical industry.

The renewal of LDPE production at our co-partner, SPC: we are
at a milestone in the modernization program, introduced at our
associated company, SPC in 2007. In order to firm LDPE market
position, we started the implementation of a new, 220 kt/year
capacity LDPE unit. Steam cracker reconstruction to be launched
from 2012 will establish a solid basis for the development.
We continue on our energy saving and emission reduction
program: where we will reveal potential saving opportunities in
the processing technology and the control systems as well. As
result energy efficiency and sustainable development actions
will be defined and implemented to achieve the targets, set in
our energy strategy. Through identifying and implementing
further energy efficiency projects, important steps are taken to
comply with environmental requirements.
Focused polymer sales by improving our polyolefin market
positions in Central Europe by product developments tailored
to customer requirements. Through improving our sales services
and optimizing our customer portfolio.

16

TVK as member of the Petrochemicals business in MOL
Downstream
Benefits from the integrated operation: According to our ‘crude
to plastic’ philosophy we optimize our refining and petrochemical
production through the whole hydrocarbon value chain, which
not only maximizes our profitability, but also reduces the risk
at group level. Integration between petrochemical plants and
refineries improves the competitive position for both sides. Our
business represents captive-market for MOL Refining business by
purchasing 13% or 2.3 million tons of MOL refined product sales
as petrochemical feedstock. This connection with petrochemical
plants provides higher operational flexibility to MOL Refining.
MOL Group membership provides a strong financial background
to the cyclical petrochemical business as well.
The harmonized production, feedstock supply, maintenance
shutdowns and common investment in technology are the
major synergic benefits deriving from the integration between
TVK and SPC. The total polyolefin production capacity exceeds
1.2 million tones in the two sites that provides leader position
in polyolefin production in Central Europe and represents
considerable market share in Europe. Sales, marketing
and logistics operation that we perform under integrated
management and develop according to a coherent strategic

2011 main results
After a reasonable increase in the first half of 2011, quoted
polymer prices were on continuously decreasing for the rest of
the year. From January to December, the LDPE shrunk by 26%,
HDPE by 14% and PP by approximately 20%. Polymer producers
in Europe were on the verge of profitable operation or beneath.
As consequence, polymer output in Europe has slowed markedly
by the year end. So, we had to concentrate mainly on maintaining
our operation and financial stability.
Against the unfavourable business environment we were able
to permanently supply our customers without relevant capacity
cut, while our European competitors cut capacities and shut
down plants, due to poor profitability and weak demand. Our
‘crude to plastic’ optimization through the supply-chain provided
us the necessary flexibility to keep our units operational in the
second half of the year.
Improving olefin sales
Our Petrochemical business is an active player in the regional
olefin business - through increasing olefin and olefin by-products
sales of the olefin plants. Due to this, we can improve the capacity
utilization of the olefin plants, which are strategic assets in our
petrochemical business.
• Borsodchem, our strategic partner in the olefin business in
Hungary has taken over the negotiated quantity in 2011 and
has increased the volume of ethylene purchases by 12%.
• Passing over the second year of the crude C4 sales contract
with our Polish partner, Synthos – we have more than doubled
the C4 supply volumes.
• Pyrolysis oil (tar oil) sale to the third party’s carbon black unit
in Tiszaújváros has improved by approximately one-third in
2011.
Continuation of the sales and marketing strategy
implementation
Sales and marketing strategy can be characterized by two major
goals – geographical focusing and differentiation in customer
services. Exploiting our favourable geographic location we
have advanced in implementing our sales strategy, at the field
of logistics, product development and tight customer relations,
aiming higher focus on markets in Central Europe.

Demand for polyolefin has changed its growing trend in Europe
and considerably slumped in the second half of 2011. Our polymer
sales dropped in the second half of the year as well, and annual
average integrated margin was below the preceding years’ level.
Although weak USD mitigated the effect of increasing feedstock
cost until the fourth quarter, profitability in the petrochemical
business had significantly decreased due to the unfavourable
external environment.
In 2011 we have slightly (by one and a half percent)
improved our total polymer sales and by improving our
customer portfolio we further reduced the ratio of
sales to non-core destinations to 5%. We adjusted our
product portfolio to the markets, we increased the ratio
of polypropylene to 38%, while polyethylene products
had a decreased ratio, LDPE products represented 9% and
HDPE products 53% in our total polymer sales. In 2011 we
have substantially improved our sales performance by achieving
higher price levels, compared to the quoted prices.

Our businesses

approach, are generating further important benefits for MOL
Petrochemicals.

In 2011 our polymer sales volume has slightly decreased,
however we further reduced to 5% the ratio of sales to noncore destinations by improving our customer portfolio. We
adjusted our product portfolio to the markets, we increased
the ratio of polypropylene to 38%, while polyethylene products
had a decreased ratio, LDPE products represented 9% and
HDPE products 53% in our total polymer sales. In 2011 we have
substantially improved our sales performance by achieving
higher price levels, compared to the quoted prices.
Successful cleaning and maintenance
In 2011 we carried out all the technology-cleaning work
planned at our polymer units. The cleaning and maintenance
works were successfully completed covering the planned
technical content and the total petrochemical maintenance
spending was within the budget. Olefin units were scaled back
from the fourth quarter of 2011, as consequence of low margin
environment.
We plan major reconstruction in TVK Olefin-1 unit in 2012
and general overhaul in the polymer units. Our well-managed
maintenance activities give a good basis for excellent operational
reliability as well as for exploiting business opportunities when
situation in the markets turns favourable.
In August 28, all TVK units had an emergency shut downs, due
to voltage break in the electrical system. Our up-to-date control
systems and the skilled operator staff were prepared and we

TVK Annual Report 2011
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managed to minimize the downtime. However our polymer
production declined slightly – mainly due to the unfavourable
business conditions - polymer volumes produced together with
SPC was over the amount of 2011.

We further develop our successful method of active product
and customer portfolio management, which is supported by
a system designed to optimize the whole supply chain (Supply
Chain Management).

Achievements in energy saving and emission reduction
We achieved 2% emission reduction by end of 2011, via
sustainable improvement actions and individual energy projects.
This will further improve the cost efficiency of the overall energy
process to the benefit of environment.

MOL Downstream integration benefits, the excellent location,
the well balanced product and customer portfolios are the key
elements that can determine our competitive power.

Facing future challenges
In the future petrochemical industry remains increasingly global
and competitive, setting further challenges in the business.
To keep and further strengthen competitive advantages, we
are committed to continue with the implementation of our
strategic development targets and seeking for new business
opportunities. The review of strategic development options is
regular procedure at Petrochemicals.
Our primer objective for the forthcoming strategic period is to
implement the strategic development projects within budget
and put the new units on stream by the deadline set.
In our sales and marketing we will focus on Central Europe, where
we gain explicit benefit from the advantageous geographical
position, the favourable logistics costs and from the better
understanding of customer needs.

18

Commitment to improve energy efficiency is deeply rooted in
our strategic thinking. In response to the thriving importance
of environmental protection and increasing energy prices, we
are consequently implementing our energy strategy formulated
in 2008. Our target is to achieve 11% (192 kt) reduction of the
annual CO2 emission by 2015, on the basis of emitted quantities
in 2008. In order to meet the energy strategy objectives, we
plan to realize USD 17 million/year average energy costs saving,
including 84 kt/year average reduction of CO2 emission through
energy efficiency development actions implemented between
2011 and 2015.

Our businesses

The taxation regime to be imposed by the European Union on CO2
emission (ETS) has put further emphasis on energy consumption,
since it is our largest cost component that is susceptible to
influence. By September 2011 we collected and audited our
emission data, which is submitted to the benchmark that will be
the basis of free quota allocation, to be distributed from 2013.

We give high priority for protecting our environment. In this
regard, we wish to live up to our corporate social responsibility
by keeping our plants at a high technical level and by doing so
reducing security and environmental risks as well as by operating
our environmental protection system that outperforms
regulatory requirements.

As regards the long term future, we are confident that polymers
and other petrochemical products can play an important role in
making people’s lives more perfect without increasing carbon
dioxide emission that influence climate change significantly.
Our mission is to make this opportunity real.

TVK Annual Report 2011
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Our businesses

Consolidated companies

TVK consolidated companies include strategic trading subsidiaries as well as companies that are indispensable for supporting
operations.  In December 2011, TVK Plc. has sold two 100% consolidated foreign trade subsidiaries, TVK Italia S.r.l. and TVK InterChemol
GmbH to MOL Plc.

Main figures of consolidated companies

TVK Italia S.r.l.**

TVK UK Ltd.*

TVK InterChemol GmbH**

TVK France S.a.r.l.

TVK Polska Sp. z o. o.

TVK Ukraina Tov

TVK Ingatlankezelő Kft.

TVK Erőmű Kft.

Tisza-WTP Kft.

Sell TVK products in Italy

Sell TVK products in the
United Kingdom

Sell TVK Products in
Germany

Sell TVK products in France

Sell TVK products in Poland

Sell TVK Products in the
Ukraine

Lease and operate real
estate

Power and steam production
and distribution

Supply of raw and feed
water

Year of Foundation

1994

1996

1997

1997

1998

2005

1998

2001

2002

Premises

Line of Business

Milan

London

Frankfurt am Main

Paris

Warsaw

Kiev

Tiszaújváros

Tiszaújváros

Tiszaújváros

Equity capital

-

GBP 200,000

-

EUR 76,225

PLN 109,000

hryvnia 33,996

HUF 2,070 million

HUF 2,630.1 million

HUF 455 million

TVK stake

-

100%

-

100%

100%

100%

100%

26%

0%, non acquired affiliate,
fully consolidated

Co-owner

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

ÉMÁSZ Nyrt.

Sinergy Kft.

24

-

73

144

90

2,290

625

404

2011 Financial Figures (unconsolidated, HUF million)
Owner’s equity

-

Sales income

541

0

3,103

187

523

121

462

16,517

1,108

Net profit / (loss)

66

0

38

48

115

40

76

(370)

2

* Dissolution process begin on July 1, 2009
** Company has been sold in December 2011
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Our production
Plant

Year
commissioned

Capacity                   
Technology
(kt/year)

Olefin Plants

Our major goal called for the optimal operation of our
petrochemicals business, the maximum utilization of
available capacity and the resulting growth of production
volume along with efficiency improvements.

Olefin-1*

The economic pillar of sustainable development is
extremely important for TVK. The most important
challenges we must face are related to the life cycle of our
products: reducing environmental impacts, improving
product quality, ensuring safe products and production
processes and expanding our long term portfolio for
biologically degradable products. Our current production
processes and each development must be based on
scientific results and the best available technology.

Polymer Plants

370

Linde

1975

Olefin-2*

290

Linde

2004

Ethylene total

660

BASF

1991

LDPE-2

65

LDPE total

65

HDPE-1

200

HDPE-2

220

HDPE total

420

PP-3

100

LyondellBasell

1989

PP-4

180

LyondellBasell

1999

PP total

280

Polymers total

765

Chevron
Phillips
Mitsui

1986

Reconstruction and development program
In 2011, the major parts of investments were the maintenance
projects renovations in an amount of HUF 4,449 million and the
efficiency improvement individual projects in a value of HUF
1,454 million. Reconstruction project of Olefin-1 Plant was going
on continuously with a HUF 516 million CAPEX besides carrying
out the planned technical contents.

MOL Group uses the cracking co-products of our Olefin Plants,
such as isobutylene, benzene-toluene, C8 and C9 fractions
to produce MTBE and benzene or as components in blended
gasoline and heating oil. Quench oil is utilised as feedstock for
making carbon black by Tiszai Columbian Koromgyártó Kft.,
located in the TVK industrial site.
In 2011, there were no shutdowns at our plants, the production
volumes were driven fundamentally by the feedstock situation
and the polymer product markets and these were the main
factors influencing the low capacity utilisation values.

Major processes of vertically aligned production at TVK

Monomer production
Purchased ethylene
Purchased
ethylene
Purchased
naphtha, AGO

Polymerisation
Ethylene sold

LDPE Plants

Olefin
Plants

Purchased
liquefied gases
Purchased propylene
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The olefin plants convert naphtha, gas oil and liquefied gases
purchased from the MOL Group into ethylene and propylene
to be processed into polyethylene and polypropylene in our
own polymer plants. A part of our ethylene, produced in
the olefin plants, is sold to BorsodChem. In Q4 2009 we
concluded a contract with Synthos, one of the largest
chemical companies in Poland, for the supply of raw
C4 fraction during 2010-2012. The surplus propylene
produced in the olefin plants are sold to Slovnaft
Petrochemicals and external customers.

2004

* Production capacity calculated for ethylene
Competitive advantages
According to our ‘crude oil to plastic’ philosophy we optimize
our petrochemical and refining production through the
whole hydrocarbon value chain, which not only maximize our
profitability but reduce the risk on group level. We exploit
synergies from integration to enhance our operational excellence
considering coordinated planning, feedstock supply with refining
and shared services within MOL Group. These elements provide
us significant benefits and flexibility. Our geographical location
also gives a competitive advantage, offering low-cost access to
the fast growing polymer markets of Central Europe. We have a
competitive asset base with a well-balanced product portfolio.
Our highly talented staff has capabilities and experiences to
manage most effectively our operation and to face the challenges
as well.

Production processes
We utilise our vertically integrated structure of production to
produce raw materials for plastics processing from a variety
of hydrocarbons. The production process includes two major
stages: making monomers and polymerisation.

Our businesses

Our production plants and their capacities

LDPE

HDPE Plants HDPE
PP Plants

PP

C4, BT, C8, C9 fractions,
quench oil, hydrogen

Propylene sold
TVK Annual Report 2011
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Polymer sales revenue reached HUF 253 billion, which is HUF
27 billion higher than in 2010 (HUF 226 billion). Higher quoted
polymer prices had a favourable impact on the sales income.
Low-Density Polyethylene (LDPE) Product Group
Using ICI technology, the LDPE-1 Plant of TVK came on in 1970
and was complemented by the LDPE-2 Plant of BASF technology
in 1991. The LDPE-1 Plant was eventually shut down in 2009
decreasing the annual LDPE capacity of TVK to 65 kt. In 2011,
the capacity utilization of LDPE-2 improved, and the plant’s
availability reached a historical peak.
The sales income of the LDPE Product Group was HUF 28 billion
in 2011, up by 7% compared to 2010. The sales volume was 78 kt,
that amount contains the LDPE product resale, purchased from
SPC. The production volume of LDPE product was 66 kt, up by 1%
compared to 2010. The capacity utilisation was 100.7%.
High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) Product Group
Utilising Chevron Phillips process technology, the HDPE-1 Plant
was constructed in 1986. The HDPE-2 plant utilising the Mitsui
Chemicals so-called CX-process came on line in 2004. The joint
annual capacity of the two plants is 420 kt.
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In 2011, the sales income of the HDPE Product Group increased
by 10% and was over HUF 128 billion. The total production
volume was 388 kt, down by 7% yoy, while capacity utilization
was 92.3%.

2011

Volume sold (kilotons)
0
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Polypropylene (PP) Product Group
PP-3 Plant has operated since 1989 with Spheripol (Himont,
currently LyondellBasell) technology, and has been
complemented by the PP-4 Plant, which uses Spheripol (Montell,
currently LyondellBasell) technology since 2000. The total annual
capacity of the two plants is 280 kt.
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The PP product sales income was HUF 97 billion, up by
17%. The total production volume was 281 kt, while the
capacity utilization was 100.3%.

Outlook

2008
2009

The most important action in the year of 2012 will be
the accomplishment of the planned shutdowns at Olefin-1,
HDPE-1, LDPE-2 and PP-3 Plants. During this program, the
reconstruction project of Olefin-1 Plant will be finished with a
HUF 1.2 billion planned budget. The capacity utilizations of the
technologies will highly depend on the economic environment.
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The external economic environment compels us to maintain
austerity in cost management while focusing first of all
on the continuous improvement of operating efficiency,
maintaining and ensuring secure operations, enhancing the
energy efficiency of our systems of process technology in
view of the substantial rise of energy prices and on identifying
and immediately implementing any remaining opportunities
presented by our technological systems besides considering
the environmental aspects in full.
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HDPE Plants were affected most sensitively by the economic
situation. The decreasing capacity utilization is due to the
reduced ethylene production on one hand, and on the other
hand the fact that the exposure of this product is the highest in
the market. Black HDPE compound production was finished in
Q4 2011.

Our businesses

120

H D P E P r o d u c t g r o u p, 2 0 0 7 - 2 0 1 1

g r o u p, 2 0 0 7 - 2 0 1 1

90

2007-2011

Polymer Production
The total polymer production amounted to 735 kt in 2011, 16 kt
lower than in the previous year. Production was higher in case of
LDPE and PP product segment, while in case of HPDE products
the production was lower than in 2010. Reducing the capacity
utilization of HDPE Plants was necessary due to market reasons.

60

g r o u p,

In 2011, pyrolysis feedstock supply was insured by exclusively
MOL Group companies.
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Produc t

In 2011, we sold 126 kt of ethylene to BorsodChem, 6kt of which
was purchased on the market. On the export markets we sold
20 kt of propylene to Slovnaft Petrochemicals and 39 kt raw C4
fractions to the Synthos Kralupy, Polish company.
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PP

In 2011, the sales income of olefin production increased by 26%,
ethylene output was lower by 1%. The capacity utilisation of
both plants calculated for ethylene remained at 90%.

Olefin sales income (HUF million)

2008

Product

In 2011, the Olefin plants’ monomer production (ethylene and
propylene together) was 99,4% of the year 2010 level. We did
not utilize fully our olefin capacities in the second half of 2011,
due to the breakdown in August and the unfavourable polymer
market circumstances.

olefin

The two main product of olefin production is ethylene and propylene.

LD P E P r o d u c t g r o u p . 2 0 0 7 - 2 0 1 1

Olefin Production
Olefin-1 Plant started up in 1975 and Olefin-2 came on line in
2004. Both utilise Linde technology. The annual capacity of
the two plants, calculated for ethylene increased from 620 kt
to 660 kt since 2008 as a result of the capacity improvement
modifications carried out in the Olefin-2 Plant.
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Our sales
3%)
HDPE (5
)
PP (38%
)
LDPE (9%

We develop our products by continuously examining the
requirements of our customers. We are out for delivering
high quality services and product information related
to our products in order to satisfy customer needs. We
permanently monitor and regularly communicate the
health, safety and environmental (HSE) effects during the
life cycle of our products and production processes. Tailor
made products were launched and we are working on
further product developments with higher added value.
It is our aspiration to integrate product liability into each
section of the life cycle.

Despite lower production we were able to improve our sales
figures and price levels in the changing market environment.
In 2011 quoted polyolefin prices have rose by over EUR 100
until April but started to fall afterwards, approximately by Euro
330, except LDPE. However currency rates have also negatively
impacted our profit generation in 2011.
Besides exploiting our favourable geographic location in Central
Europe we continuously improve our competitiveness in the field
of logistics services and sales support, product development
and costumer relations, strengthening further the focus to our
understanding the specifics of Central-European polyolefin
market.
In line with our sales focuses, we concentrated on sales in the
Central European markets.
In 2011 the total polymer production remained below the
preceding year’s volume by 2% and amounted to 735 kt. Polymer
product sales amounted to 752 kt, which is 15 kt lower than in
the previous year. Total sales contracted by 1.4% in LDPE and by
6% in HDPE products, while PP product sales increased by 11 kt.
The net income from polymer sales amounted to HUF 253 billion
in 2011 that represents HUF 27 billion improvements in the sales
income compared to the previous year, due to the positive effect
of the higher sales volume and quoted polymer prices.
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Domestic sales have remained at the level of 2010 (253 kt), the
export volume decreased by 15 kt, representing 3% loss of total
sales volume compared to the preceding year. Export share was
72% (544 kt) of total polymer sales, whilst the domestic market
proportion was 28% (208 kt).
Our proprietary distribution network, which we have been
operating successfully for several years covering several
European countries, has been instrumental in achieving these
results. We have offices in Austria, France, Poland, Germany,
Italy, Ukraine and Romania. Our foreign trading subsidiaries
are engaged in selling the products of both TVK and the MOL
Group member Slovnaft Petrochemicals. By concentrating on
the Central European polyolefin markets and improving our
customer portfolio, the ratio of sales to non-core destinations
reduced from 7% in the previous year to 5% in 2011.
We operate four selling points in Hungary in order to enhance
the selling towards middle- and smaller size enterprises.
We continued to implement the tactical elements of our sales
and marketing strategy successfully: we improved our market
intelligence and analyses and moreover we are developing a
new portfolio of sales services to strengthen customer loyalty.
We have focused on the improvement of our sales channels
efficiency and we continued to develop our product portfolio in
response to the outcome of permanent analyses. We laid special
emphasis on direct customer communications.

In addition to efficiency increase and strict cost control, we are
focusing to firm our competitive position in our markets,
continuing to develop our business and managing
proactively our product and customer portfolio.
We are elaborating a new portfolio of service packages,
to develop quality of our sales services. As the polymer
markets of Central Europe have greater growth potential
than the European average, our sales strategy continues
to focus on exploiting our favourable geographic location.
Besides, we intend to strengthen our presence on some key
Western European markets. In 2011 the sales volume also
proved, that there are further growth prospect regarding our
main activity and markets.

Our businesses

We succeeded to maintain our market position in Central
Europe, in line with our objectives set in our sales and
marketing strategy. Although demand continuously alters
in our markets and plastic-processing companies’ activity
was highly affected by the awakening fear of double-dip
crisis, we successfully kept our sales performance in the
region.

mer
TVK Poly
sales
on
distributi
2011

Our future goals
• Maintain regional leadership in polymer production
• Retain and build the reliable and stable customer base, by
laying more emphasis on customer support and further
improving customer loyalty
• Manage customer portfolio actively
• Develop product portfolio according to market requirements

Outlook
In the present environment, TVK can benefit from its central
position in the landlocked markets of Central Europe where
the demand for plastics is rapidly growing, as opposed to the
Western-European markets, which are more exposed to the
competition with the producers of the Middle East having
great cost advantage.
On the basis of our integrated operation and actively managed
product and customer portfolio we are out for building our
position in the regional markets. In the forthcoming years our
prime objective is to further improve customer reputation
both in Hungary and in the countries of Central-Europe.
Competition has increased in Europe, since Middle East cargoes
arrive to the continent and small scale polymer producers
restarted their production capacities in the region. We have made
numerous efforts in order to offset the unfavourable changes.
TVK Annual Report 2011
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Financial and
operational performance
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Management discussion and analysis on the results
Key Financial Data
(IFRS)
Net revenue
EBITDA
Operating profit/loss (-)

2010

2011

Vált.

HUF million

HUF million

%

365,185

2010

2011

Vált.

EUR million

EUR million

%

411,462

13

1,310

1,322

1

13,812

7,429

(46)

800

(5,902)

-

50

24

(52)

3

(19)

-

Profit/loss of financial transactions (-)

(2,807)

(4,981)

(77)

(10)

(16)

(60)

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders

(1,170)

(11,226)

(859)

(4)

(36)

(800)

Operating cash flow

12,349

5,381

(56)

44

17

(61)

Note: Calculated using the average mid FX rate quoted for the period by the National Bank of Hungary

INCREASING SALES BESIDES UNFAVOURABLE CIRCUMSTANCES
In 2011 external environment brought extreme challenges for petrochemical industry. Price of naphtha, produced
from crude oil, grew continuously until April, than moderated a bit and stayed comparatively stable at the last months
of the year. At the same time, polymer prices had fallen significantly after the April peak and this tendency did not turn
back until the end of the year. As a consequence of the currency crisis typical of euro zone, US dollar strengthened
significantly against Euro during the second half of the year that is unfavourable for petrochemical industry. Due to the
above mentioned, integrated petrochemical margin, which indicates profitability, plummeted to historical low points
several times during the year, and finally we had to book one of our lowest operating profit. Decreasing demand for
polymer products arose from the third quarter due to the strengthening recessionary expectations of the euro zone,
which sharpened the competition amongst peers for customer orders. Besides these circumstances TVK, as a member
of the MOL Group, thanks to its vertical integration, was able to maintain its customers, could perform its contractual
obligations as a reliable partner, and is ready to obtain the determinant player role in the regional market by keeping
its competitiveness, when recession is over.

The figures presented in the Annual Report of the business year 2011 of Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company (TVK Plc.)
are audited and final. The term „TVK Group level data” is used in this annual report to refer to the figures of TVK Plc and its affiliates
consolidated in line with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 7 subsidiaries, 1 affiliated business and 1 nonparticipating business were fully consolidated while 1 business was consolidated by the equity method. As required under law, the
annual report presents true and fair figures and statements, and does not withhold any facts that the issuer – to its best knowledge
– considers to be of material importance in terms of evaluating the issuer’s position. The issuer is liable for the contents of this annual
report. The issuer is also liable for damages arising from a failure to make regular and extraordinary disclosures and any misleading
representation in its disclosures.
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The significant decline of the operating profit in the year 2011 as opposed to the year before was the result of the unfavourable
changes of the integrated petrochemical margin and the olefin by-products. The significant rose of the energy prices, the
maintenance costs and depreciation also had negative effect. The lower production and sales volumes contributed slightly to
the decrease.
• Overall capacity utilization in 2011 showed a year on year decrease of about 2 percentage points besides the planned
turnaround at several plants in Q2 2010. Due to the more favourable feedstock structure, the yearly monomer yield improved
in case of both Olefin Plants.

Financial and
operational performance

Financial highlights

• Polymer production and sales were 2% and 2% lower in the year of 2011 than in the previous year, respectively. Regarding the
composition of the polymer sales, ration of polypropylene (PP) was up by 2% and that of HDPE was down by the same degree.
Regarding the year 9% of the polymer production was LDPE type, 53% HDPE and 38% PP type.
• As regards the sales and purchases in foreign currency HUF 1,830 million realized and HUF 283 million non-realized exchange gain
on receivables and payables was booked in 2011. It was an exchange gain of HUF 1,417 million in 2010.
• The loss of HUF 4,991 million on financial operations includes realized exchange loss of HUF 472 million and non-realized exchange
loss of HUF 2,515 million that amounted to HUF 1,181 exchange loss in 2010.
• EBITDA (HUF 7,429 million) played a major role in the fact that the operating cash flow was HUF 5,381 million; however changes
in the elements of the working capital had a cash flow deteriorating effect. Accounts payables increased most significantly among
working capital elements, but inventories, other receivables and account receivables also grew. Other short term liabilities went
down, and beside this, Taxes paid against the profit/loss further reduced the cash flow.
• As December 31, 2011 the debt from the short and long term loan of the parent company amounted to HUF 12,141 million,
increased by HUF 7,687 million compared to the amount on December 31, 2010.
• TVK Group realized a net loss of HUF 11,226 million in 2011.

TVK Annual Report 2011
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Operating environment
A comparison of year 2011 to year 2010, regarding polymer average quoted prices (ICI’s lor
fd NWE)   shows a rise of 3% in case of LDPE, 16-17% in case of HDPE and 6-7% in case of
polypropylene prices. The price (FOB med) of a ton of naphtha went up by 31% to average
USD 906. The HUF/EUR rate and declined by 1%, the HUF/USD rate rose by almost 3%,
while the EUR/USD cross rate weakened by almost 5%. As a result, the average integrated
petrochemical margin decreased by 14% in HUF and EUR terms in the year 2011. Exchange
rate changes had an overall negative impact on TVK Group level operating profits in the
period under review.

TVK group level personnel expenses was down by HUF 242 million (3%) despite the salary
increase, due to the staff reduction and the variance of the accrual of bonuses and wages.
Depreciation, amortization and impairment increased by 2% due to the surplus depreciation
accounted on the renovation works realized during the turnaround in the previous year.
Other operating expenses was down by HUF 191 million (4%); the most important element
of this is the annual amount of sector separate tax booked at TVK Erőmű Kft. Furthermore
insurance fees, bank expenses, public sanitation fee, and educational costs decreased.

Key Profit and Loss figures
TVK Group consolidated audited figures according to IFRS (HUF million)
Net revenue
Operating profit

Y 2010

Y 2011

365,185

411,462

800

(5,902)

Financial expenses, net

(2,807)

(4,981)

Profit before tax

(1,989)

(10,883)

Profit for the year

(1,170)

(11,226)

Change in inventory of finished goods and work in progress shows an increase of HUF
2,092 million in 2011, mainly as a consequence of inventory revaluation caused by higher
feedstock prices. The level of olefin and polymer inventories was very low in December
2010. In case of polymer products, after the temporary volume increase during the year, the
closing volumes were only a little bit higher than at the end of the previous year. Altogether
HUF 583 million depreciation was accounted at the end of December because of those
polymer goods in case of which the prime cost was higher than the expected sales price.

Sales income, operating costs, operating profit
Total operating income was
higher by 13%

In the year of 2011, the total TVK Group level operating income hiked by 13% year on
year compared to the year of 2010 and totalled at HUF 414,826 million. Within this, the
other operating income was HUF 3,364 million. Within this, exchange gain on AR/AP was
HUF 2,113 million, compensation received amounted to HUF 533 million, HUF 506 million
incomes occurred on the sales of subsidiaries, and the income on CO2 quota sale was HUF
73 million. The 48%, HUF 1,085 million rises, compared to the previous year was caused
mainly that the income of exchange rate difference of the accounts payable and receivable
was up by HUF 696 million, gain on selling subsidiaries amounted to HUF 506 million, the
default interest and compensation received was HUF 422 million higher, furthermore the
income from the CO2 quota sale was HUF 539 million less.

Sales income grew by HUF 46
billion

In 2011, the consolidated TVK Group level net sales amounted to HUF 411,462 million that
is HUF 46,277 million more than in year 2010, due to the higher prices and the impact of
exchange rate fluctuations.

48% export

In 2011, TVK Plc. realized 48% of its sales revenues from export sales. Italy (17%), Germany
(17%), Poland (15%), Czech Republic (10%), Slovakia (6%), Austria (5%) represented the
majority of export sales.

Costs

TVK Group raw material costs increased by HUF 57,553 million (19%) to HUF 356,885 million
year on year mainly due to naphtha cost increase; in addition, energy costs also went up
significantly. The higher costs reflect the radical rise of the quoted price of feedstock used
for monomer production which were was by the strengthening of the forint against the
dollar and the lower feedstock volumes used. Energy costs hiked by 16%, mainly as a result
of the increased price of steam, electric energy and natural gas.
Value of material type services used increased by HUF 720 million (5%). Maintenance
costs and the freight and warehousing costs increased due to the higher fuel prices and
the increased quantities sold with delivered parity. Commission fees went up, however,
amount spent on, research and development, information technology services and on
business trips decreased.

Work performed by the enterprise and capitalized totalled at HUF 1,385 million grew by
33%.
EBIT - HUF 5.9 billion loss

The Group level consolidated loss from operation amounted to HUF 5,902 million in the
year of 2011 compared to the operating profit of HUF 800 million realized in 2010.

Profit/loss on financial operations
Net financial loss was
HUF 5 billion

Compared to the loss of HUF 2,807 million in Y2010, the group realized a loss on
financial operations of HUF 4,981 million in Y2011. The financial revenues of the
group increased by HUF 51 million in the reporting period compared to the previous
year, due to a profitable feedstock forward transaction, at the same time interest
incomes fall. Financial expenses rose by HUF 2,225 million mainly because HUF 1,995
million more non-realized exchange rate loss and HUF 189 million less realized exchange
loss was generated during the up-valuation of the loans and other assets received in foreign
currency. Interest expenses grew by HUF 702 million due to the higher loan amount, while
the discount due to the payment period dropped by HUF 223 million.

Financial and
operational performance

The annual integrated
petrochemical margin
decreased by 14%

The drop of 97% in mediated services reflects the change of the income from the energy
services mediated by TVK Erőmű Kft.

Taxation
Tax liability

In the year of 2011 TVK Group profit before tax amounted to a loss of HUF 10,883 million.
The income tax was HUF 902 million, deferred tax amounted to a negative amount of HUF
559 million.

Earnings per share

Net profit
Consolidated net loss totalled at HUF 11,226 million. Earnings per share (EPS) declined from
a HUF -462, compared to HUF -48 last year value.

Cost of goods sold hiked by 66% because of the increased quantity and price of tar purchased
and sold. This increase in the costs was offset by the sales revenues.
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Net asset position

Owner’s equity

Key Balance Sheet figures
31.12.2010.

31.12.2011.

131,462

125,186

2,648

2,351

128,480

122,465

334

370

Current assets

79,210

83,844

Inventories

10,136

11,848

Total assets

210,672

209,030

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Invested financial assets

136,241

122,952

Share capital

24,534

24,534

Non-current liabilities

21,491

19,427

Current liabilities

52,940

66,651

210,672

209,030

Total equity and liabilities

Total assets

The value of the total assets of TVK Group as at December 31, 2011 stood at HUF 209,030
million.

Non-current assets

The consolidated value of non-current assets amounted to HUF 125,186 million as at
December 31, 2011, 5% lower than on December 31, 2010 mainly due to the lower value attributable to recognized depreciation - of tangible and intangible assets.

Current assets

The value of current assets went up by 6% to HUF 83,844 million including a 17% year on
year increase in inventories. The growth is basically due to the up-valuation (resulting from
the growing feedstock prices) of the inventory of the self-manufactured olefin and polymer
finished products and of the olefin feedstock purchased. Besides this, the olefin inventories
significantly, while polymer inventories slightly increased. The higher selling prices explain
the increase of 2% in accounts receivable compared to the end of year 2010. The value of
other current assets surged by 9% which is attributable mainly to the fact that the amount
of VAT reclaim went up considerably. Tax receivables increased slightly.

Financial position
Long term debts on decreased
by 10%

Short term liabilities rose by 26%
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The portfolio of long term debt, net of current portion increased by HUF 1,057 million (7%)
year on year, mainly because HUF 1,882 million non-realized exchange loss was booked,
which was compensated by the realized exchange gain of HUF 83 million. Besides this, HUF
1,038 million subsidiary loan were transferred to the short term loans.
Deferred tax liabilities shows a year on year drop of HUF 559 million (39%), mainly
attributable to the increase of negative tax base, however the higher tax rate resulting from
the regulations had an adverse effect.
The portfolio of other non-current liabilities decreased by HUF 2,553 million, as the part
due within the year of the obligations deriving from forward transactions were transferred
to the other short term liabilities.
The value of current liabilities rose by 26% to HUF 66,651 million. The growth reflects
mainly the increase of accounts payable and of short term loans. Within this, the higher
amount of accounts payable reflects the price and volume increase of purchased olefin
feedstock in December 2011 compared to December 2010; at the same time other liabilities
fall due to the decrease of the accrual of customer bonuses and management premiums.
The increased working capital and the dividend payment triggered the growth of the short
term loan portfolio.

Significant off-balance sheet items and contingency liabilities
Capital and contractual
commitments

The total value of capital commitments as of December 31, 2011 was HUF 2,527 million,
which is fully attributable to TVK Plc.

Cash flow
Operating cash flow

Operating cash flow amounted to HUF 5,381 million. EBITDA increased the cash flow by HUF
7,429 million, while the changes in working capital (inventories, trade accounts receivable
and payable, other receivables and other liabilities altogether) decreased the cash flow by
HUF 997 million. The cash flow deteriorating effect of the changes in the inventory follows
from the fact that the olefin feedstock prices – which determine the inventory value –
increased and the inventory of self-manufactured olefin products stood at a significantly
higher level as at the end of the previous year, while that of polymer products stood at
just a slightly higher level. The reason of the increase of accounts receivable was that sales
prices of olefin and polymer products were higher at the end of 2011 than at the end of
2010, at the same time olefin and polymer product sales decreased. The growth of accounts
payables is a consequence of the higher volumes and prices of olefin feedstock purchased
in December 2011, compared to December 2010. The increase of other receivables
reflects mainly the growth of VAT receivables. Other short term liabilities fall due to
the decrease of the accrual of customer bonuses and management premiums. Taxes
paid against the profit/loss further reduced the cash flow by HUF 940 million. The
adjustment due to the non-cash effects included in the EBIT reduced the operating
cash flow by HUF 110 million. The main elements of this change were: the gain on
selling subsidiaries (HUF -506 million) the impairment of inventories and receivables
(HUF 590 million), the unrealized exchange gain on payables/ receivables (HUF -284
million), the change of provisions (HUF 183 million), the sale of CO2 emission quota
(HUF -73 million), the sales of non-current assets (HUF -15 million), and the dividendliability write-off (HUF -5 million).

Financial cash flow

Net cash provided by investing activities decreased the cash flow by HUF 6,838 million,
within this the amounts disbursed to the suppliers amounted to HUF 5,590 million,
payments in connection with closing a forward transaction were HUF 2,091 million. The
HUF 215 million gain on sales of subsidiaries, the HUF 92 million income on sale of tangible
assets - the CO2 quota sale represents HUF 73 million within this - improved the cash flow.

Investment activity

Net cash from financial operations increased the cash flow by HUF 1,983 million in the
examined period mainly due to the revolving short-term and long-term loans granted by
MOL Plc. At the same time, the disbursement of dividends in the amount of HUF 1,991
million and the interests and other financial expenses of HUF 1,026 million decreased the
cash flow.

Financial and
operational performance

TVK Group consolidated audited figures according to IFRS (HUF million)

Shareholder’s equity amounted to HUF 122,952 million on December 31, 2011, reflecting
a drop of 10% since December 31, 2010. The decrease is attributable to the variance in the
value of the profit/loss after taxation furthermore to the paid dividend and to the balance
sheet loss realized in 2010 and reported in the profit reserve.

Capital expenditure
Total CAPEX reached to
HUF 6,5 billion

In 2011 the total capital expenditure of TVK Group amounted to HUF 6,477 million - an
amount of HUF 6,347 million of which is due to expenditure incurred by TVK Plc. Within
this HUF 4,892 million was spent on sustain capital expenditures and HUF 1,454 million on
individual projects. We spent HUF 443 million on other development projects, within which
value of Olefin-1, Olefin-2 and PP-4 catalyst purchase was HUF 250 million.
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TVK share

Organization

There was no major change occurring in the company structure in 2011.

Senior management

As of 30 April, 2011, Mr. József Molnár, Mr. Michel-Marc Delcommune and Mr. Vratko
Kassovic, the members of the Board of Directors resigned from membership. The GM
elected dr. Péter Medgyessy and Gyula Gansperger for a period of five (5) years – but latest
till the day of the annual ordinary general meeting in 2016 – commencing with 21 April
2011 as a member of the Board of Directors of TVK Plc. GM elected Zoltán dr. Nagy, Miklós
Kamarás and Ferenc Horváth for a period of five (5) years – but latest till the day of the
annual ordinary general meeting in 2016 – commencing with 1 May 2011 as a member of
the Board of Directors of TVK Plc. The GM elected Judit Turóczy the employee of TVK Plc.
for a period of five (5) years – but latest till the day of the annual ordinary general meeting
in 2016 – commencing with 21 April 2011 as a member of the Supervisory Board of TVK Plc.

In 2011, the yearly turnover of the TVK shares was HUF 1,422 million and 520,852 pcs, while
the average daily turnover was HUF 5.6 million. The market capitalization of the TVK shares
amounted to HUF 54.4 billion, down by 32% compared to the last year (HUF 80.2 billion).
TVK was the 8th among the listed companies in terms of market capitalization. The TVK
shares did not really belonged to the liquid papers, as a consequence of the small fraction
of public shares.  
According to the Resolution of BSE CEO, TVK shares as from April 1, 2011 was removed
from the BUX basket and was included in the BUMIX basket; than from October 3, 2011
the equity was removed from BUMIX basket as well. On March 30, 2011, TVK share had a
ratio of 0.19% of BUX basket capitalization. During the supervision of BUX index, made in
spring 2011, the share did not meet one criterion, due to the low free-float; therefore it
was removed from the basket. The share was included in the BUMIX basket with a ration
of 3.08% basket capitalization on April 1, 2011. During the supervision of the composition
of BUMIX made in the fall, the equity met only three of the seven criteria, therefore was
removed from the BUMIX basket from October 3, 2011; due to the low free-float and
capitalization ratio, the low turnover data, no. of transaction and volatility.

Árpád Olvasó resigned as of 31st of May, 2011as TVK Plc’s Chief Executive Officer and as
member of the Board of Directors. As of 1st of June, 2011 Zsolt Pethő is the Chief Executive
Officer of TVK Plc.
Mr. Tamás Pénzes, HR manager, left TVK, and as from January 3, 2012 Adrienn Bodnár Rácz
is the Senior Manager of Human Resources.
Employment

During the year of 2011 the share price of TVK decreased by 35%. The closing price of the
first day the year was HUF 3,445, while the closing value of the last day was HUF 2,240. This
share price is the lowest of the former ten years. In the first seven months of the year, share
price showed a continuously decreasing tendency. After a downturn in August-September,
price share stagnated until the end of the year. The minimum closing price was HUF 2,150,
while the maximum closing price was HUF 3,540 in the year 2011.

As at December 31, 2011 the total consolidated headcount of TVK included 1,116 full time
employees which is 24 persons less than the closing headcount on December 31, 2010.
The reason behind the reduction was mainly related to the more efficient employment
of the staff at the parent company. In case of subsidiaries, 12 employees worked at TVKInterchemol GmbH and TVK Italia S.r.l. which were sold in December 2011. One more staff
is employed at TVK Polska Sp zoo.

According to the ranking supervision made among “A” category listed share series in
September 2011 TVK share met the criteria, so belong to the „A” category.

Headcount
Full Time Employees

December 31, 2010

December 31, 2011

Corporate level

1,112

1,099

Group level

1,140

1,116

TVK shares on the Budapest Stock Exchange (BSE)
Global economy effects
on stock exchanges

BUX index
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Although 2011 saw a reduction in the activities of capital markets globally which also
resulted in a decrease of the domestic stock exchange’s turnover, Budapest Stock Exchange
(BSE) managed to preserve its operational stability. For BSE, the main feature of the year
2011 was the extension of its product range, the main result of which was the successful
launch of trading with foreign equities on the newly established MTF, called BETa Market.
The increasing trend of new listings in recent years has continued as more and more
domestic companies opt for capital market financing. Financing through corporate bond
has been on the increase. In total, six new equity issuers had their shares listed, and four
companies issued seven new series of bonds on the market.

Ownership structure
Shareholders with more than
5% stake
Shareholder structure

Dividend payment

There was no significant change in the shareholder structure of the company
during the year of 2011, since there was no change in the person and share of those
shareholders having more than 5% of shares. According to the Shareholder Register
MOL Plc. has 86.79%, while Slovnaft a.s., a subsidiary of MOL Plc, has 8.07% shareholder
stake. Therefore MOL Plc. has 94.86% direct and indirect influence on TVK Plc is.

Financial and
operational performance

Organizational and personnel changes, employees

At the end of the year, the shareholder stake of the domestic institutional investors was
88.1%, while the stake of the foreign investors remained at 9.2%. The ownership share of
private investors was not significant, reaching 1.3%. The company had no treasury shares
in 2011 either.
The Annual General Meeting of TVK Plc. held on April 14, 2011 approved to pay a dividend
of HUF 1,991,849,126 in respect of the 2010 financial year to its ordinary shares. Accordingly
the gross dividend is HUF 82 per share. The payment of dividend commenced on June 6,
2011.

In the first half of 2011, BUX index, the index of BSE outperformed European and regional
markets. Then, as a result of the eurozone crisis the market’s opinion turned negative;
therefore BUX index started a slide in the second half of the year, and lagged behind the
markets of the continent. As opposed to the value of 21,746 points in the beginning of
the year the index peaked on April 7, 2011 at 24,451 points. It reached its lowest value on
September 26 at 14,930 points. BUX index strengthened by the end of the year, and closed
at 16,974 points, showing a 22% decrease over the whole year. On the cash market the
tendency of the previous years continued, the contribution of the equities section to the
total turnover was significant (93.1%). The turnover in equities continued to concentrate in
the blue chips (97.5%).
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Ownership Structure

Description of owner

Interest
(%)
89.30

Domestic institution/company

December 31, 2010
Voting Ratio
(%)
89.30

Quantity
(of shares)
21,690,707

Interest
(%)
88.10

December 31, 2011
Voting Ratio
(%)
88.10

Quantity
(of shares)
21,401,032

Foreign institution/company

9.21

9.21

2,237,133

9.20

9.20

2,231,796

Domestic individual

1.19

1.19

288,245

1.29

1.29

314,443

Foreign individual

0.02

0.02

6,190

0.03

0.03

7,227

-

-

-

-

-

-

Employees, senior officers
Treasury shares
Shares held by unidentified parties
TOTAL

-

-

-

-

-

-

0.28

0.28

68,568

1.38

1.38

336,345

100.00

100.00

24,290,843

100.00

100.00

24,290,843

Shareholders with more than 5% according to the Share Register
December 31, 2011
Név

Quantity (of hares)

Interes (%)

Voting ratio (%)

MOL Hungarian Oil and Gas Public Limited Company (MOL Plc.)

21,083,142

86.79

86.79

Slovnaft, a.s.

1,959,243

8.07

8.07

Financial and
operational performance

According to the Share Register, MOL Plc. shareholding in TVK Plc. is 86.79%. The stake of Slovnaft, a.s. (subsidiary of MOL Plc) is
8.07%. The direct and indirect influence of MOL Plc. in TVK Plc. is 94.86%.
Notes:
In accordance with the resolution of 2007 Annual General Meeting, every ordinary share with a par value of HUF 1,010 (i.e. one thousand ten forint) entitles the
holder thereof to have one and one hundredth vote.
Please note that in Hungary, the Share Register does not fully reflect the ownership structure, as registration is not mandatory
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Tisza Chemical Group
Public Limited Company and Subsidiaries
Financial and
Operational
operational performance
Performance

Consolidated financial statements prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
together with the independent auditors’ report

31 December 2011
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This is a translation of the Hungarian Report
Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company

Emphasis of matter

Report on financial statements s

7.) We draw the attention to Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements that describe the environmental aspects of the
Company’s operations and highlights the risk of additional significant decontamination expenses that might incur over the current
amount of the provision in relation to past environmental damage as may be identified by future environmental surveys. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

1.) We have audited the accompanying 2011 consolidated annual financial statements of Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company
(“the Company”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011 - showing a balance sheet
total of HUF 209,030 million and a loss for the year of HUF 11,226 million -, the related consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
2.) Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Other reporting requirement - The consolidated business report
8.) We have reviewed the consolidated business report of Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company for 2011. Management
is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated business report in accordance with the Hungarian legal requirements. Our
responsibility is to assess whether the consolidated business report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements for the
same financial year. Our work regarding the consolidated business report has been restricted to assessing whether the consolidated
business report is consistent with the consolidated annual financial statements and did not include reviewing other information
originated from non-audited financial records. In our opinion, the consolidated business report of Tisza Chemical Group Public
Limited Company for 2011 corresponds to the disclosures in the 2011 consolidated annual financial statements of Tisza Chemical
Group Public Limited Company.

Auditor’s responsibility
Financial and
Operational
operational performance
Performance

Budapest, 21 March 2012
3.) Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hungarian National and International Auditing Standards and with applicable laws and regulations in Hungary.  
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
4.) An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

Havas István
Ernst & Young Kft.
Registration No. 001165

Havas István
Registered Auditor
Chamber membership No.: 003395

5.) We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
6.) We have audited the elements of and disclosures in the consolidated annual financial statements, along with underlying
records and supporting documentation, of Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company in accordance with Hungarian National
and International Auditing Standards and have gained sufficient and appropriate evidence that the consolidated annual financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU. In our opinion
the consolidated annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the equity and financial position of Tisza Chemical Group
Public Limited Company as at 31 December 2011 and of the results of its operations for the year then ended.
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Consolidated balance sheet
31 December 2011
Notes
ASSETS

2011

2010

HUF million

HUF million

Non-current assets
Intangible assets

4

2,351

2,648

Property, plant and equipment

5

122,465

128,480

Investments in associated companies

6

132

132

Other non-current assets

8

238

202

125,186

131,462
10,136

Total non-current assets
Current assets
9

11,848

Trade receivables, net

10

50,881

49,942

Other current assets

11

15,246

13,945

154

107

12

5,715

5,080

Prepaid taxes
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
31 December 2011
Tiszaújváros, 21 March 2012

83,844

79,210

209,030

210,672

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capital

13

24,534

24,534

Reserves

14

109,644

112,877

Net income attributable to equity holders of the parent

(11,226)

(1,170)

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

122,952

136,241

-

-

122,952

136,241

Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities

Zsolt Pethő
Chief Executive Officer
     

    

Gyula Hodossy
Chief Financial Officer,        
Deputy CEO

Long-term debt, net of current portion

15

16,248

15,191

Provisions for liabilities and charges

16

2,312

2,321

Deferred tax liabilities

26

862

1,421

Other non-current liabilities

17

5

2,558

19,427

21,491

58,411

51,271

Total non-current liabilities

Financial and
Operational Performance

Tisza Chemical Group
Public Limited Company and Subsidiaries

Inventories

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions for liabilities and charges

16

458

407

Short-term debt

19

6,623

286

Current portion of long-term debt

15

Total current liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

44

18

1,159

976

66,651

52,940

209,030

210,672
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Consolidated Statement of comprehensive income
31 December 2011
Notes

Net sales (revenue)

20

Other operating income

21

Total operating income

2010

HUF million

HUF million

411,462

365,185

Notes
Profit for the year

3,364

2,279

414,826

367,464

Exchange differences on translating foreign operations

-

-

-

-

342,150

9,404

9,646

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

4,5

13,331

13,012

Share of other comprehensive income for associates

Other operating expenses

24

4,170

4,361

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

(2,092)

(1,461)

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to:

Profit from operations

(1,044)
366,664

Equity holders of the parent

(5,902)

800

Non-controlling interest

Financial income

25

276

225

Financial expense

25

(5,257)

(3,032)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (calculated from comprehensive income)
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent (HUF)

Net financial expense

25

(4,981)

(2,807)

Gain / (Loss) from associates
Profit before tax
Income tax expense/(benefit)

26

Profit for the year
Attributable to:
        Equity holders of the parent
        Non-controlling interests
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent (HUF)

27

-

18

(10,883)

(1,989)

343

(819)

(11,226)

(1,170)

(11,226)

(1,170)

-

-

(462)

(48)

(1,170)

Cash-flow hedges, net of deferred tax

397,300

(1,385)

HUF million

(11,226)

Available-for-sale financial assets, net of deferred tax

22

420,728

HUF million

24

23

Total operating expenses

2010

(66)

Personnel expenses

Work performed by the enterprise and capitalized

2011

Other comprehensive income

Raw materials and consumables used

Change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

46

2011

27

-

-

(66)

24

(11,292)

(1,146)

(11,292)

(1,146)

-

-

HUF (465)

HUF (47)

Financial and
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Consolidated income statement
31 December 2011
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24

24

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total equity attributable
to equity holders of the
parent

12,918

12,599

Amortization and impairment

413

413

Write-off of inventories, net

545

151

Increase/(decrease) in environmental provisions

284

59

5

57

(88)

(673)

-

24

Net (gain) / loss on sale of subsidiary
Assigned receivables

24

-

24

-

24

-

-

-

-

-

(1,170)

(1,170)

-

(1,170)

Total comprehensive income and expense for the year

-

-

-

24

24

(1,170)

(1,146)

-

(1,146)

Transfer to reserves of retained profit for the previous
year

-

-

(9,192)

-

(9,192)

9,192

-

-

-

Dividends

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

24,534

15,022

97,767

(1,170) 136,241

-

136,241

Currency translation differences

-

-

-

(66)

(66)

-

(66)

-

(66)

Total comprehensive income and expense for the year
recognized directly in equity

-

-

-

(66)

(66)

-

(66)

-

(66)

Retained profit for the year

-

-

-

-

- (11,226) (11,226)

-

(11,226)

Total comprehensive  income and expense for the year

-

-

-

(66)

(66) (11,226) (11,292)

-

(11,292)

Transfer to reserves of retained profit for the previous
year

-

-

(1,170)

-

-

-

Dividends

-

-

(1,992)

-

(1,992)

-

(1,992)

-

(1,992)

Other

-

-

(5)

-

(5)

-

(5)

-

(5)

24,534

15,022

94,600

22 109,644 (11,226) 122,952

-

122,952

-

Depreciation and impairment

HUF
million
137,387

24

1,170

(1,989)

HUF
million
-

-

(1,170)

24

(10,883)

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash provided by operating activities

-

88 112,877

-

HUF million

Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net (gain) / loss on sale of tangible assets

(506)

-

-

1

Write-off  of receivables

45

22

Write-off dividend liabilities

(5)

-

Other non cash items

(1)

-

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss on receivables and payables
Interest income

(284)

(242)

(143)

(192)

Interest on borrowings

1,990

1,288

Net foreign exchange (gain)/ loss excluding foreign exchange differences on receivables and payables

2,987

1,181

Other financial (gain) / loss, net
Share of net (profit)/loss of associates
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital
(Increase)/ decrease in inventory

379

-

(18)

7,318

13,036

(2,257)

(2,535)

(986)

(6,244)

(Increase)/ decrease in other receivables

(2,088)

(1,464)

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

5,665

5,206

(1,331)

2,816

(Increase)/ decrease in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Income taxes paid

(940)

1,534

Net cash provided by operating activities

5,381

12,349

(5,590)

(7,594)

92

698

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets
Loans and long-term bank deposits
Liabilities by CO2 emission quotas
Proceeds from liquidation of investments
Interest received and other financial income
Net cash used in investing activities
Proceeds from issue of new debts
Repayments of long-term debt
Increase/(Decrease) in short-term debt
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities

655

893

(2,362)

-

215

-

152

206

(6,838)

(5,797)

17,866

42,995

(17,667)

(56,964)

4,805

7,387

1

-

Interest paid and other financial costs

(1,026)

(1,860)

Dividends paid

(1,991)

-

Other
Net cash provided by financing activities
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

48

41

(5)

-

1,983

(8,442)

526

(1,890)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

5,080

6,942

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

5,606

5,052
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HUF
HUF
million million
(9,192) 137,387

2010

HUF million
Profit before tax

-

Closing balance 31 December 2011

-

HUF
HUF
million million
64 122,045

2011

Currency translation differences
Total comprehensive income and expense for the year
recognized directly in equity
Retained profit for the year

Closing balance 31 December 2010

-

HUF
HUF
million million
15,022 106,959

Total reserves

Retained earnings

Share premium

Share capital
Opening balance 1 January 2010

HUF
million
24,534

Net income attributable
to equity holders of the
parent

Consolidated statement of cash-flows
31 December 2011

Translation reserve

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
31 December 2011
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1. Presentation of the Group structure

2. Authorization, statement of compliance and basis of preparation

Background to the consolidated companies
TVK Plc.

i) Authorization and Statement of Compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2012.

Tiszavidéki Vegyi Kombinát, TVK’s legal predecessor was founded in 1953. In 1961 it was transformed into a state-owned company
called Tiszai Vegyi Kombinát (the “state-owned company”). Prior to its privatisation, the state-owned company was incorporated
as a public limited liability company on 31 December 1991 (the “Company”). In accordance with the law on the transformation of
unincorporated state-owned enterprises, the assets and liabilities of TVK were revalued as at that date.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
and all applicable IFRSs that have been adopted by the EU. IFRS comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).

As at 31 December 1995, the Company was 99.92% owned by the Hungarian State Privatisation and Holding Company (“ÁPV Rt.”) and
the remaining 0.08% was owned by local municipalities.
In 1996, the Company was privatised through an offering of shares owned by ÁPV Rt. to foreign and domestic institutional and private
investors.
Following this privatisation, shares of the Company were listed on the Budapest Stock Exchange and Global Depository Receipts
(“GDRs”) representing the shares were listed on the London Stock Exchange. As of 31 December 2011, MOL Plc. holds the majority
of the shares.
The Company, with its registered seat in Tiszaújváros (H-3581 Tiszaújváros, TVK-Ipartelep TVK Központi Irodaház 2119/3. hrsz. 136.
épület), produces chemical raw materials including ethylene, propylene and polymers of these products for both domestic and
foreign markets.

Effective 1 January 2005, the change in the Hungarian Accounting Act allows the Group to prepare its consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS that have been adopted by the EU.  Currently, due to the endorsement process of the EU, and the activities
of the Group, there is no difference in the policies applied by the Group between IFRS and IFRS that have been adopted by the EU.  
ii) Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
IFRIC interpretations issued and effective on 31 December 2011.
TVK Plc. prepares its statutory unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the accounting regulations
contained in Law C of 2000 on Accounting (HAS). Some of the accounting principles prescribed in this law differ from International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
For the purposes of the application of the Historical Cost Convention, the consolidated financial statements treat the Company as
having come into existence as of 1 October 1991, at the carrying values of assets and liabilities determined at that date, subject to
the IFRS adjustments.

The Group had 1,116 and 1,140 employees as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Consolidated subsidiaries

Company name

Country

Range of activity

TVK Ingatlankezelő Kft.

Hungary

Property leasing, management

Ownership
31 Dec 2011
100%

Ownership
31 Dec 2010
100%

Consolidation Method
31 Dec 2011
Full consolidation

TVK Italia Srl*

Italy

Wholesale and retail trade

-

100%

-

TVK UK Ltd.**

United Kingdom

Wholesale and retail trade

100%

100%

Full consolidation

TVK Inter-Chemol GmbH***
TVK France S.a.r.l.

Germany

Wholesale and retail trade

-

100%

-

France

100%

100%

Full consolidation

26%

26%

Full consolidation

TVK Polska Spzoo

Poland

Wholesale and retail trade
Electricity production and
distribution
Wholesale and retail trade

100%

100%

Full consolidation

TVK Ukraina tov

Ukraine

Wholesale and retail trade

100%

100%

Full consolidation

Tisza WTP Kft.*****

Hungary

Feed water and raw water

0%

0%

Full consolidation

TVK Erőmű Kft.****

Hungary

*TVK Italia S.r.l was sold on December 12, 2011, but only its accumulated profit until November 30 was fully consolidated.
**Dissolution started on 1 July, 2009
***TVK Interchemol GmbH was sold on December 20, 2011, but it was fully consolidated until December 31, 2011.
**** The ownership of TVK Plc. is 26%. Based on the syndicated agreement TVK Plc. fully consolidated it - as a special purpose entity - in 2011 and 2010.
***** Tisza-Wtp Kft. was formed in 2002 specifically for providing feed water and raw water to TVK Plc. and TVK Erőmű Kft. under a long-term co-operation
agreement. Tisza WTP Kft. has been consolidated by the Company since 1 January 2006 in accordance with SIC 12. According to service agreement Tisza WTP Kft.
provides services that is consistent with the Group’s ongoing major operations and TVK Group is the exclusive purchaser of services provided by Tisza WTP.
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iii) Principles of Consolidation
Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TVK Plc. and the subsidiaries that it controls. This control is
normally evidenced when the Group owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the voting rights of a company’s
share capital and is able to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to benefit from its activities. As
required by IAS 27, immediately exercisable voting rights are taken into account when determining control.
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The financial year is the same as the calendar year.

The acquisition method of accounting is used for acquired businesses by measuring assets and liabilities at their fair values upon
acquisition, the date of which is determined with reference to the date of obtaining control. The cost of an acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest (formerly known as minority interest)
in the acquiree. The income and expenses of companies acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal.
Intercompany balances and transactions, including intercompany profits and unrealised profits and losses - unless the losses indicate
impairment of the related assets - are eliminated. The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
Non-controlling interests represent the profit or loss and net assets not held by the Group and are shown separately in the
consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated income statement, respectively. For each business combination, non-controlling
interest is stated either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s fair values of net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests is the initially recognised amount of those interests adjusted with the non-controlling interests’ share of
consecutive changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the noncontrolling interests having a negative balance.
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the company.

TVK Annual Report 2011

51

Joint ventures
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties (ventures) undertake an economic activity that is subject
to joint control. Joint control exists only when the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the
unanimous consent of the ventures. A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture that involves the establishment of a company,
partnership or other entity to engage in economic activity that the Group jointly controls with its fellow ventures.
The Company’s interests in its joint ventures are accounted for by the proportionate consolidation method, where a proportionate
share of the joint venture’s assets, liabilities, income and expenses is combined with similar items in the consolidated financial
statements on a line-by-line basis. The financial statements of the joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting year as the
parent company, using consistent accounting policies. The joint venture is proportionately consolidated until the date on which the
Group ceases to have joint control over the venture.
When the Group contributes or sells assets to the joint venture, any portion of gain or loss from the transaction is recognized based
on the substance of the transaction. When the Group purchases assets from the joint venture, the Group does not recognize its
share of the profits of the joint venture from the transaction until it resells the assets to an independent party. Losses on intragroup
transactions are recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of reduced net realisable value of current assets or impairment
loss.

2.1 Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those applied in the previous financial years, apart from some minor modifications
in the classification of certain items in the balance sheet or the income statement, none of which has resulted in a significant impact
on the financial statements except for reclassifying costs related to bank loans from Operating to Financial expenses. While the
comparative period has been restated, an opening balance sheet has not been included as the reclassifications made were not
considered material.
The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations during the year. Except as noted below,
adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial statements of the Group. They did however
give rise to additional disclosures.
• IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (amendment) effective 1 January 2011
• IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (amendment) effective 1 February 2010
• IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (amendment) effective 1 January 2011
• Improvements to IFRSs (May 2010)
The principal effects of these changes are as follows:

Investments in associates
An associate is an entity over which the group is in a position to exercise significant influence through participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but which is not a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity.
The Group’s investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment in the associate is carried in the balance sheet at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets
of the associate. Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortised. The
income statement reflects the share of the results of operations of the associate. Where there has been a change recognized directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of
changes in equity. Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent
of the interest in the associate.
The reporting dates of the associate and the Group are identical and the associate’s accounting policies conform to those used by the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Investments in associates are assessed to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If there is evidence that
the recoverable amount of the investment is lower than its carrying value, then the difference is recognised as impairment loss in the
income statement. Where losses were made in previous years, an assessment of the factors is made to determine if any loss may be
reversed.
When the significant influence over the associate is lost, the Group remeasures and recognises any retaining investment at its fair
value. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of the retaining investment together with any
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss
Other consolidated entities
Special purpose entities are fully consolidated. Special purpose entities are companies which operate substantially in compliance
with the Company business needs. It provides a supply of goods or services that is consistent with the Company’s ongoing major or
central operations. The substance of the relationship between an entity and the SPE indicates that the SPE is controlled by that entity.

IAS 24 Related Party Transactions (Amendment)
The amendments to IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures become effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2011 and
must be applied retrospectively. The revised standard simplifies the disclosure requirements for entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by a government and clarifies the definition of a related party. As a result, such a reporting entity
is exempt from the general disclosure requirements in relation to transactions and balances with the government and governmentrelated entities.
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment)
The amendment to IAS 32 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010 and requires that rights, options
and warrants to acquire a fixed number of an entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed price of any currency are equity
instruments if certain criteria are met.
IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement (Amendment)
The amendment to IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement was issued to remove the unintended consequence
in IFRIC 14 that in some cases entities are not permitted to recognize as an asset some voluntary prepayments for minimum
funding contributions. The amendment becomes effective 1 January 2011.
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When the joint control is lost, the Group measures and recognises its remaining investment at its fair value unless the joint control
does not become a subsidiary or associate. The difference between the carrying amount of the joint entity and the fair value of the
remaining investment together with any proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
This interpretation addresses the accounting by an entity that issues equity instruments to settle financial liability. The equity
instrument is measured at fair value and the financial liability is derecognized, fully or partly, based on the “consideration paid”. The
interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
Improvements to IFRSs
In May 2010, the IASB issued its third omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording. The adoption of the following amendments resulted in changes to accounting policies, but no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
The annual improvements to IFRS 1 include: a) accounting policy changes in the year of IFRS adoption - if a first-time adopter changes
its accounting policies or the use of exemptions in IFRS 1 after it has published its interim financial report in accordance with IAS 34
but before its first IFRS financial statements, it should explain those changes; b) revaluation basis as deemed cost – clarifies that a
first-time adopter is permitted to use event-driven fair value as deemed cost during the first IFRS period and c) use of deemed cost
for operations subject to rate regulation for certain items of property, plant and equipment or intangibles.
IFRS 3 Business Combinations:
Amendment to IFRS 3 specifies that the option to measure non-controlling interests either at fair value or at proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets applies only to non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests. All other components of
non-controlling interests should be measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
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The last amendment to IFRS 3 clarifies that IAS 32, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 do not apply to contingent consideration from a business
combination which occurred before the effective date of the revised standard IFRS 3 in 2008.
All amendments to IFRS 3 are effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures:
The improvement to IFRS 7 clarifies disclosure requirements regarding credit risk and collateral held in order to enable users better
to understand the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments.
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
The amendment to IAS 1 clarifies that the entity may elect to present the analysis of other comprehensive income by item either in
the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
The amendment to IAS 27 clarifies that amendments made to IAS 21, IAS 28, and IAS 31 as a result of IAS 27 revisions in 2008 should
be applied prospectively with some exceptions. The amendment is effective 1 July 2010.
IAS 34 Interim Financial Statements
Amendments to IAS 34 clarify how significant events and transactions in interim periods should update the relevant information
presented in the most recent annual financial report.
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
Amendment to IFRIC 13 specifies that fair value of award credits should consider the discount or incentives that customers who have
not earned award credits would otherwise received as well as any expected forfeitures.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
i) Presentation Currency
Based on the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances the functional currency of the parent company and the
presentation currency of the Group has been determined to be the Hungarian Forint (HUF).
ii) Business Combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. This involves assessing all assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification in accordance with the contractual terms and economic conditions and recognising identifiable assets
(including previously unrecognized intangible assets) and liabilities (including contingent liabilities and excluding future restructuring)
of the acquired business at fair value as at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value as at the acquisition date and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration are adjusted against the cost of acquisition, only if they qualify as period measurement
adjustments and occur within 12 months from the acquisition date. All other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent
consideration are accounted for either in profit or loss or as changes to other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of
contingent consideration classified as equity are not recognised.
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If the consideration
transferred is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the acquiree, the difference is then recognised in profit or loss. Following
initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating
units, or groups of cash generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, and is not larger than a segment based on the Group’s reporting format determined in accordance
with IFRS 8 Operating Segments.
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IFRS 3 specifies that requirements to measure awards of the acquirer that replace acquiree share-based payment transactions with
regards to IFRS 2 applies also to such transactions of the acquiree that are not replaced. The amendment also clarifies that marketbased measurement of replacement awards applies to all replacement awards regardless of whether the acquirer is obliged to replace
the awards or does so voluntarily.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (or group of cash generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
(or group) is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus cumulative translation differences and
un-amortized goodwill is recognized in the income statement.
iii) Investments and Other Financial Assets
Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held to maturity investments, or available for sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognized
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group considers whether a contract contains an embedded derivative when the entity first becomes a party
to it.
Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on settlement date which is the date when the asset is delivered to the counterparty.
The Group’s financial assets are classified at the time of initial recognition depending on their nature and purpose. Financial assets
include cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, loans and other receivables, quoted and unquoted financial instruments and
derivative financial instruments.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit and loss.
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Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; or (ii) the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that would need to be separately recorded. Such financial assets are recorded as current,
except for those instruments which are not due for settlement within 12 months from the balance sheet date and are not held with
the primary purpose of being traded. In this case all payments on such instruments are classified as non-current.
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, no financial assets have been designated as at fair value through profit and loss.
Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets which carry fixed or determinable payments have fixed maturities
and which the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement held to maturity investments
are measured at amortised cost. This cost is computed as the amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the initially recognized amount and the
maturity amount, less allowance for impairment. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts. Gains
and losses are recognized in the income statement when the investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognized in the
income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
in any of the three preceding categories. After initial measurement, available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses being recognized as other comprehensive income in the fair valuation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded as other comprehensive income is
recognized in the income statement.
After initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are evaluated on the basis of existing market conditions and management
intent to hold on to the investment in the foreseeable future. In rare circumstances when these conditions are no longer appropriate,
the Group may choose to reclassify these financial assets to loans and receivables or held-to-maturity when this is in accordance with
the applicable IFRS.
Fair Value
For investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices
at the close of business on the balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction costs. For investments where there is no
quoted market price, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the investment.

Financial instruments (including compound financial instruments) are classified as assets, liabilities or equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains, and losses relating to a financial instrument classified
as a liability, are reported as expense or income as incurred. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity
are charged directly to equity. In case of compound financial instruments the liability component is valued first, with the equity
component being determined as a residual value. Financial instruments are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends to settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The derecognition of a financial asset takes place when the Group no longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the financial
asset, which is normally the case when the instrument is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the instrument are passed through
to an independent third party. When the Group neither transfers nor retains all the risks and rewards of the financial asset and
continues to control the transferred asset, it recognises its retained interest in the asset and a liability for the amounts it may have
to pay.
v) Derivative Financial Instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks
associated with interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to net
profit or loss for the year as financial income or expense.
The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar
maturity profiles. The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is determined by reference to market values for similar instruments.
An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if all of the following conditions are
met:
• the economic characteristics and the risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics
of the host contract,
• a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and
• a hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value reported in current year net profit.
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Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments or
a financial guarantee contract. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognized as finance income or finance expense
in the income statement.

vi) Hedging
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as
• fair value hedges
• cash flow hedges or
• hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.
A hedge of the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is accounted for as a cash flow hedge. At the inception of a hedge
relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge
accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification
of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to
the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods
for which they were designated.
Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

iv) Classification and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the consolidated balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents marketable
securities, trade and other accounts receivable and payable, long-term receivables, loans, borrowings, investments, and bonds
receivable and payable. The accounting policies on recognition and measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective
accounting policies found in this Note.
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Fair value hedges
Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group’s exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized
firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability or firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk that
could affect the income statement.
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Amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and shall begin no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for
changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.
When an unrecognized firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the
firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognized as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognized in
the income statement. The changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are also recognized in the income statement.
The Group discontinues fair value hedge accounting if the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the Group revokes the designation.
Cash-flow hedges
Cash flow hedges are a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction that could affect the income statement. The effective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized directly as other comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion is
recognized in the income statement.
Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the income statement when the hedged transaction affects the
income statement, such as when hedged financial income or financial expense is recognized or when a forecast sale or purchase
occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or liability, the amounts previously taken to equity are transferred
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognized in equity are transferred to the income
statement. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation
as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income until
the forecast transaction occurs. If the related transaction is not expected to occur, the amount is taken to the income statement.
Hedges of a net investment
Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the net
investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge are recognized as other comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are
recognized in the income statement. On disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recognized
as other comprehensive income is transferred to the income statement. The Company had no derivative financial instrument and
hedging transactions in 2011 and 2010.
vii) Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment losses
on a financial asset or group of financial assets are recognised only if there is an objective evidence of impairment due to a loss event
and this loss event significantly impacts the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets.
Assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognized in the income statement.
The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.

58

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognized in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.
Available-for-sale financial investments
If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in the income statement, is transferred from
other comprehensive income to the income statement. Impairment losses recognized on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed, increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses recognized on debt instruments classified as available-for-sale are reversed through income statement, if the
increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in
the income statement.
viii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and cash at banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with maturity less than three months from the date of acquisition and that are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.
ix) Trade Receivables
Receivables are stated at face value less provision for doubtful amounts. Where the time value of money is material, receivables are
carried at amortized cost. A provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original
terms of the invoice. Impaired debts are derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.
If collection of trade receivables is expected within the normal business cycle which is one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
x) Inventories
Inventories, including work-in-progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after provision for slowmoving and obsolete items. Net realisable value is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of making
the sales. Cost of purchased goods, including naphtha and purchased gas oil inventory, is determined primarily on the basis
of weighted average cost. The acquisition cost of own produced inventory consists of direct materials, direct wages and the
appropriate portion of production overhead expenses including royalty. Unrealisable and unusable inventory is fully written off.
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For fair value hedges, the carrying amount of the hedged item is adjusted for gains and losses attributable to the risk being hedged,
the derivative is remeasured at fair value and gains and losses from both are taken to the income statement. For fair value hedges
relating to items carried at amortised cost, the adjustment to carrying value is amortised through the income statement over the
remaining term to maturity. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged financial instrument for which the effective interest
method is used is amortised to the income statement.

xi) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost (or the carrying value of the assets determined as of 31 December
1991) less accumulated depreciation, depletion and accumulated impairment loss. When assets are sold or retired, their cost and
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the
consolidated income statement.
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use, such as
borrowing costs. Estimated decommissioning and site restoration costs are capitalized upon initial recognition or, if decision on
decommissioning is made subsequently, at the time of the decision. Changes in estimates thereof adjust the carrying amount of
assets. Expenditures incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance
and overhead costs (except form periodic maintenance costs), are normally charged to income statement in the period in which the
costs are incurred. Periodic maintenance costs are capitalized as a separate component of the related assets.
Construction in progress represents plant and properties under construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction,
plant and equipment and other direct costs. Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant asset is
available for use.
xii) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalized at cost and from business acquisitions are capitalized at fair value as at the date
of acquisitions. Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the enterprise; and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
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Following initial recognition, the cost model is applied to the class of intangible assets. The useful lives of these intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Amortization is charged on assets with a finite useful life over the best estimate of their
useful lives using the straight line method. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed annually at each
financial year-end. Intangible assets, excluding development costs, created within the business are not capitalized and expenditure is
charged against income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash generating unit level.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units), to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment losses relating to Goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is carried forward when its
future recoverability can reasonably be regarded as assured. Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure the
cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Costs in development stage
can not be amortized. The carrying value of development costs is reviewed for impairment annually when the asset is not yet in use,
or more frequently when an indicator of impairment arises during the reporting year indicating that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are monitored for impairment indicators throughout the year and are tested for
impairment at least annually as of 31 December either individually or at the cash generating unit level, as appropriate.

xiii) Depreciation, Amortization
Depreciation of each component of an intangible asset and property, plant and equipment is computed on a straight-line basis using
the following rates:

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a 15-year period. The average pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 9.28% (2010: 9.43%).

Buildings and infrastructure
Production machinery and equipment
Office and computer equipment
Vehicles

20 – 33%
2 – 10%
5 – 14.5%
14.5 – 50%
10 – 20%

Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method over the term of the respective lease or the
useful life of the asset, whichever period is less.

The calculation of value in use for cash generating units are most sensitive to the following assumptions:
• Raw materials price;
• Product price;
• Exchange rate;
• Material balance; and
•Discount rates.
With regard to the assessment of value in use of these cash-generating units, the management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the units to materially exceed its
recoverable amount.

Periodic maintenance costs are depreciated until the next similar maintenance takes place.
The useful life and depreciation methods are reviewed at least annually to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment and, if necessary, changes
are accounted  for in the current period.
The base of the depreciation of security and strategic spare parts is the average depreciation rate of technical equipments and
vehicles relating to the production.

xv) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated
with the borrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or
premium on settlement. Gains and losses are recognized in net in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognized, as well
as through the amortisation process, except to the extent they are capitalized as borrowing costs.

xiv) Impairment of Assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the income statement for items of property, plant and equipment and
intangibles carried at cost. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair
value is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction while value in use is the present value of
estimated net future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if this is not practicable, for the cash-generating unit.

xvi) Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable
(i.e. more likely than not) that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of the provision to be reimbursed;
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is actually certain. Provisions are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. The amount of the provision is the present value of the
risk adjusted expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation, determined using the estimated risk free interest rate as
discount rate. Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of the provisions increases in each period to reflect the unwinding of
the discount by the passage of time. This increase is recognized as interest expense.

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the impairment
assumptions considered when the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset neither exceeds its recoverable amount, nor is higher than its carrying amount net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

Provision for Redundancy
The employees of the Group are eligible, immediately upon termination, for redundancy payment pursuant to the Hungarian law and
the terms of the Collective Agreement between TVK and its employees. The amount of such a liability is recorded as a provision in the
consolidated balance sheet when the workforce reduction program is defined, announced and the conditions for its implementation
are met.
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Software

Cash generating units
The Company identified two cash generating units (CGU) which are the ethylene production of Olefin plants for sales and the
production of Olefin plants for internal use for the production of polymers.

Provision for Environmental Expenditures
Environmental expenditures that relate to current or future economic benefits are expensed or capitalized as appropriate.
Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations and do not contribute to current or future earnings
are expensed. Liabilities for environmental costs are recognized when env ironmental assessments or clean-ups are probable and
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the associated costs can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these provisions coincides with the commitment to a
formal plan of action or, if earlier, on divestment or on closure of inactive sites. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the
expenditure required. Where the liability will not be settled for a number of years, the amount recognized is the present value of the
estimated future expenditure.

as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

Provision for litigations
TVK Group entities are parties to a number of litigations, proceedings and civil actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
Management uses estimations when the most likely outcome of these actions is assessed and provision is recognized on a consistent
basis.

Cash-settled transactions
The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the grant date using the binomial model. This fair value is
expensed over the vesting period with recognition of a corresponding liability. The liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date
up to and including the settlement date to fair value with changes therein recognized in the income statement.

Provision for Retirement Benefits
The Group operates long term employee benefit program. None of these schemes requires contribution to be made to separately
administered funds. The cost of providing benefits under those plans is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit
credit actuarial valuation method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense immediately. Past service costs,
resulting from the introduction of, or changes to the defined benefit scheme are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become vested.

xix) Leases
The determination whether an arrangement contains or is a lease depends on the substance of the arrangement at inception date. If
fulfilment of the arrangement depends on the use of a specific asset or conveys the right to use the asset, it is deemed to contain a
lease element and is recorded accordingly.

Every five years, the Company pays a fix set amount to all employees who had worked at least 10 years for the Company. Based on
actuarial calculations, the Company made provision for Old Team benefits of current employees that reflects the expected payments
based on their past service levels.
xvii) Greenhouse gas emissions
The Group receives free emission rights in Hungary as a result of the European Emission Trading Schemes. The rights are received  on
an annual basis and in return the Group is required to remit rights equal to its actual emissions. The Group has adopted a net liability
approach to the emission rights granted. A provision is only recognized when actual emissions exceed the emission rights granted and
still held. Where emission rights are purchased from other parties, they are recorded at cost, and treated as a reimbursement right,
whereby they are matched to the emission liabilities and remeasured to fair value.
xviii) Share-based payment transactions
Certain employees (including directors and managers) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (‘equity-settled transactions’).
Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by applying generally accepted option pricing models (usually by the binomial model). In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares
of the parent company (‘market conditions’).
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (‘vesting
date’). The cumulative expense recognized for equity settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the number of awards that, in the opinion of the directors of the Group at that
date, based on the best available estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not been
modified. An additional expense is recognized for any increase in the value of the transaction as a result of the modification, as
measured at the date of modification.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalized at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income. Capitalized
leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating a finance lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same
bases as the lease income. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
xx) Government grants
Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income over the
years necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is released to the income statement over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
xxi) Reserves
Reserves shown in the consolidated financial statements do not represent the distributable reserves for dividend purposes.
Reserves for dividend purposes are determined based on the company-only statutory earnings of TVK Plc.
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Provision for Old Team benefits
Based on the valid Collective Agreement , the Company pays Old Team benefits to its employees as follows:

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Translation reserves
The translation reserve represents translation differences arising on consolidation of financial statements of foreign entities.
Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in substance, forms part of the company’s net investment in a foreign entity
are classified as other comprehensive income in the consolidated financial statements until the disposal of the net investment. Upon
disposal of the corresponding assets, the cumulative revaluation or translation reserves are recognized as income or expenses in the
same period in which the gain or loss on disposal is recognized.
Fair valuation reserves
The fair valuation reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of effective cash flow hedges and available for sale
financial instruments.
Equity component of debt and difference in buy-back prices
Equity component of compound debt instruments includes the residual amount of the proceeds from the issuance of the instrument
above its liability component, which is determined as the present value of future cash payments associated with the instrument. The
equity component of compound debt instruments is recognized when the Group becomes party to the instrument.
xxii) Treasury Shares
The nominal value of treasury shares held is deducted from registered share capital. Any difference between the nominal value and
the acquisition price of treasury shares is recorded directly to share premium.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognized for the award is recognized immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
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xxiv) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with a transaction will flow to the enterprise and
the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are recognized net of sales taxes and discounts when delivery of goods or
rendering of the service has taken place and transfer of risks and rewards has been completed.
Interest is recognized on a time-proportionate basis that reflects the effective yield on the related asset. Dividends due are recognized
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. Changes in the fair value of derivatives not qualifying for hedge
accounting are reflected in income in the period the change occurs.
xxv) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized.
Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing
costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are ready for their intended use. Borrowing costs include
interest charges and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds, including exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to finance these projects to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.
xxvi) Income and Sales Taxes
The income tax charge consists of current and deferred taxes.
The current income tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because of items of income or expense that are never taxable or deductible or are taxable or deductible in other
years. The Group’s current income tax is calculating using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting year.
Deferred taxes are calculated using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income
tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the enterprise expects, at the balance sheet
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and tax losses when
it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized, except:
• where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

At each balance sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets and the carrying amount of deferred tax
assets. The enterprise recognizes a previously unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. The Company conversely reduces the carrying amount of a deferred
tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or all of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the
same or a different period, directly to equity, including an adjustment to the opening balance of reserves resulting from a change in
accounting policy that is applied retrospectively.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities which relate to income taxes imposed by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.
Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except:
• when the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the
sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
• receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included
The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the statement of financial position
xxvii) Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange rate differences
arising on the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the
periods are recognized in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. Items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Foreign exchange differences on trade receivables and payables are included in operating profit, while foreign
exchange differences on borrowings are recorded as financial income or expense.
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xxiii) Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the year in which they are approved by the shareholders.

Financial statements of foreign entities are translated at year-end exchange rates with respect to the balance sheet, and at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year with respect to the income statement.  All resulting translation differences are included
in the translation reserve in other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognized
in other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation shall be recognized in the income statement. Any
exchange differences that have previously been attributed to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they are not reclassified
to profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

In case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary without any loss of control in the foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other disposals
such as associates or jointly controlled entities not involving a change of accounting basis, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

• where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

xxviii) Earnings Per Share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders using the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year after deduction of the average number of treasury shares held over the period.
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is consistent with the calculation of basic earnings per share while giving effect to all
dilutive potential ordinary shares that were outstanding during the period, that is:
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• the net profit for the period attributable to ordinary shares is increased by the after-tax amount of dividends and interest recognised
in the period in respect of the dilutive potential ordinary shares and adjusted for any other changes in income or expense that
would result from the conversion of the dilutive potential ordinary shares.
• the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding is increased by the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares which would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
xxix) Segmental Disclosure
The Group has two major divisions (Petrochemicals – Corporate and other) that serve as the primary basis for the Company’s segment
reporting purposes. The Group shows net sales by geographical area.
xxx) Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements unless they are acquired in a business combination.
They are disclosed in the Notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent
asset is not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments and estimates
Critical judgments in applying the accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, which are described in note 2.2 above, management has made  certain judgments
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements (apart from those involving estimates, which are
dealt with below). These are detailed in the respective notes, however, the most significant judgments relate to:
• Outcome of certain litigations
• assessment of control (over operation) of TVK Erőmű Kft. and Tisza WTP (Note 1)
Sources of estimate uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and the Notes thereto. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates. These are detailed in the respective notes,
however, the most significant estimates relate to the following:
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• Scope of environmental provision and quantification and timing of environmental liabilities (Note 16, 29)
• The availability of taxable income against which deferred tax assets can be recognized (Note 26)
• Actuarial estimate applied in the calculation of retirement benefit obligations (Note 16)
• Determination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
•Impairment of tangible assets and intangibles (Notes 4, 5)
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At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations were in issue but not yet
effective:
IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified (or
‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition or settlement) would be presented separately
from items that will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and has therefore no impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
IAS 12 Income Taxes – Recovery of Underlying Assets
The amendment clarified the determination of deferred tax on investment property measured at fair value. The amendment
introduces a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on investment property measured using the fair value model in IAS 40 should
be determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through sale. Furthermore, it introduces the requirement that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the revaluation model in IAS 16 always be measured on a sale basis
of the asset. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 and will have no impact on
the Group.
IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Amendment)
The IASB has issued numerous amendments to IAS 19. These range from fundamental changes such as recognition of unvested
past service cost and transferring the remeasurement component of the defined benefit cost to Other comprehensive income to
simple clarifications and re-wording. The Group is currently assessing the full impact of the amendments but expects those not to be
material. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (as revised in 2011)
As a consequence of the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, what remains of IAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities, and associates in separate financial statements. The Group does not present separate financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 establishes a single
control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management
to exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a
parent, compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27. Based on the preliminary evaluation of the Group, the amendment will
have no material impact. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly-controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers.
IFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation.  Instead, JCEs that meet
the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method. The application of this new standard will impact the
financial position of the Group. This is due to the cessation of proportionate consolidation of jointly controlled entities (see note 9)
meeting the definition of joint ventures in IFRS 11 to equity accounting for these investments. Based on the preliminary evaluation
of the Group such impact will not be significant. This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Involvement with Other Entities
IFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the
disclosures that were previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. This standard becomes effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not change when an entity
is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS when fair value is required or
permitted. The Group is currently assessing the impact that this standard will have on the financial position and performance.
This standard becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)
As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, IAS 28 has been renamed IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and
describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. The amendment becomes
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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2.4 Issued but not yet effective International Financial Reporting Standards

IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Clarification on asset/liability offsetting
The IAS 32 amendments clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of
financial position, ie. that the right of set-off must be available today and legally enforceable for all counterparties in the normal
course of business, as well as in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. Consequent change to IFRS 7 intends to enhance
current offsetting disclosures. The amendments become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and 1
January 2013, respectively.
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements
The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but not derecognised to enable the
user of the Group’s financial statements to understand the relationship with those assets that have not been derecognised and their
associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment requires disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognised assets to enable
the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement in those derecognised assets. The
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. The amendment affects disclosure only and has
no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB will also address hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets. The adoption of
the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially
have no impact on classification and measurements of financial liabilities. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with the
other phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive picture.
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3. Segmental information
Petrochemicals

Corporate and other

Inter-segment transfers

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

Net Revenue
Sales to external customers
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue

2011 Assets and liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, net

410,712

750

-

411,462

266

1,894

(2,160)

-

410,978

2,644

(2,160)

411,462

Results

Intangible assets, net

2,351

Trade receivables, net

50,792

89

-

50,881

-

132

-

132

-

(5,902)

Not allocated assets

(4,981)

Total assets

-

-

-

-

(7,109)

(3,774)

-

(10,883)

1,525

(1,182)

-

343

(8,634)

(2,592)

-

(11,226)

Petrochemicals

Corporate and other

Inter-segment transfers

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

Trade payables

365,185

218

1,950

(2,168)

-

364,708

2,645

(2,168)

365,185

2,961

(2,161)

-

800

(1,533)

(1,274)

-

(2,807)

-

18

-

18

1,428

(3,417)

-

(1,989)

Income tax expense/(benefit)

712

(1,531)

-

(819)

Profit for the year

716

(1,886)

-

(1,170)

Inter-segment sales
Total revenue
Results
Profit/(loss) from operations
Net finance costs
Income from associates
Profit before tax

70

209,030
47,643

245

-

47,888

Not allocated liabilities

161,142
209,030

Petrochemicals

Corporate and other

Inter-segment transfers

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

123,525

4,955

-

128,480

2,451

197

-

2,648

Inventories

10,129

7

-

10,136

Trade receivables, net

49,809

133

-

49,942

-

132

-

132

Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

-

21,353

Total liabilities

2010 Assets and liabilities

695

122,465
11,848

-

364,490

HUF million

-

(1,785)

Sales to external customers

HUF million

5,005

-

Investments in associates

Net Revenue

HUF million

117,460

69

(1,989)

2010

HUF million

238

(4,117)

Profit for the year

Total

2,113

(2,992)

Profit before tax

Inter-segment transfers

11,779

Profit/(loss) from operations

Income tax expense/(benefit)

Corporate and other

Inventories

Net finance costs
Income from associates

Petrochemicals

Investments in associates
Not allocated assets

19,334

Total assets
Trade payables

210,672
40,384

236

-

40,620

Not allocated liabilities

170,052

Total liabilities

210,672
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Petrochemicals

Corporate and other

Inter-segment transfers

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

Capital expenditure:

6,256

239

-

6,495

Property, plant and equipment

6,218

160

-

6,378

38

79

-

117

12,950

381

-

13,331

79

-

-

79

Intangible assets
Depreciation and amortization
From this: impairment losses  and reversal
of impairment recognized in income statement

4. Intangible assets
The Group’s intangible assets as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
Goodwill

Property rights

Software

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

At 1 January 2010
Gross book value
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Net book value

2010 Other segment information

92

2

7,020

7,114

-

-

(4,116)

(4,116)

92

2

2,904

2,998

Petrochemicals

Corporate and other

Inter-segment transfers

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

- additions

-

-

65

65

Capital expenditure:

5,838

1,247

-

7,085

- amortization for the year

-

-

(413)

(413)

Property, plant and equipment

5,837

1,183

-

7,020

- impairment

-

-

-

-

1

64

-

65

- transfers

-

(2)

-

(2)

12,620

392

-

13,012

Closing net book value

92

-

2,556

2,648

207

At 31 December, 2010
92

-

7,073

7,165

-

-

(4,517)

(4,517)

92

-

2,556

2,648

- additions

-

18

99

117

- amortization for the year

-

-

(413)

(413)

- impairment

-

-

-

-

Intangible assets
Depreciation and amortization
From this: impairment losses  and reversal of
impairment recognized in income statement

207

-

-

Year ended 31 December 2010

Gross book value
Accumulated amortization and impairment

The operating profit of the segments includes the profit arising both from sales to third parties and transfers to the other business
segments. Petrochemicals transfers various by-products to the Corporate. The subsidiaries of the Corporate segment provide other
services to the Petrochemicals. The internal transfer prices used are based on prevailing market prices. Divisional figures contain the
results of the fully consolidated subsidiaries engaged in the respective divisions.
Value of assets relating to foreign locations amounts to HUF 6 million. It is not significant to the total amount of assets.

Net book value
Year ended 31 December 2011

- transfers
Closing net book value

-

-

(1)

(1)

92

18

2,241

2,351

92

18

7,159

7,269

-

-

(4,918)

(4,918)

92

18

2,241

2,351

At 31 December, 2011
Gross book value
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Net book value

Financial and
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Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs) that are expected to
benefit from that business combination. Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated
as follows:
31 December 2011
Net book
value before  
impairment
HUF million

Impairment
HUF million

31 December 2010
Net book value
HUF million

Net book
value before
impairment
HUF million

Impairment
HUF million

Net book value
HUF million

TVK Polska Spzoo

92

-

92

92

-

92

Total goodwill

92

-

92

92

-

92

The Company recognized goodwill of HUF 92 million relating to TVK Polska Spzoo, which is subject to annual impairment test according
to the requirements of IAS 36 – Impairment of Assets.
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5. Property, plant and equipment

Impairment

The Group’s tangible assets as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Technical
equipment,
vehicles

Land and
buildings

Scraps*

Other
equipment and
vehicles

Capital projects

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

45,101

174,144

20,109

1,993

241,347

(12,965)

(81,000)

(13,722)

-

(107,687)

32,136

93,144

6,387

1,993

133,660

At 1 January 2010
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

79

168

Effect of rescheduled periodic maintenance

-

39

Impairment on the basis of market price

-

-

79

207

Total

* In 2011 impairment expense was recorded in the amount of HUF 79 million. Significant part of it related to the accounted part
scrapping, which belonged to olefin reconstruction.

Year ended 31 December 2010
- capitalization
- depreciation for the year

-

-

-

7,020

7,020

587

6,171

919

(7,677)

-

(1,416)

(9,811)

(1,165)

-

(12,392)

- impairment

(10)

(179)

(18)

-

(207)

- disposals  

(23)

-

(2)

-

(25)

-

(1)

425

-

424

- transfers and other changes
Closing net book value

31,274

89,324

6,546

1,336

128,480

45,639

178,030

21,345

1,336

246,350

(14,365)

(88,706)

(14,799)

-

(117,870)

31,274

89,324

6,546

1,336

128,480

-

6,378

6,378

At 31 December, 2010
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value

Leased assets
Property, plant and equipment includes machinery under finance leases:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

Gross value

478

478

Accumulated depreciation

453

441

25

37

Net book value

Pledged assets
None of the assets of the Company were pledged as of 31 December 2011 and 2010. Assets of TVK Erőmű Kft. (HUF 9,380 million) and
assets of Tisza-WTP Kft. (HUF 1,185 million) are pledged as collateral for long-term investment loans.

Year ended 31 December 2011
- additions
- capitalization
- depreciation for the year
- impairment
- disposals  
- transfers and other changes
Closing net book value

-

-

910

3,637

800

(5,347)

-

(1,418)

(10,324)

(1,097)

-

(12,839)

(10)

(66)

(3)

-

(79)

(4)

-

(2)

-

(6)

(131)

(42)

30,621

82,529

704

-

531

6,948

2,367

122,465

Borrowing Costs
Property, plant and equipment include borrowing costs incurred in connection with the construction of certain assets. There were
no capitalised borrowing costs in 2011 and 2010, that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset.
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- additions

At 31 December, 2011
Gross book value
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value

74

46,367

180,146

22,578

2,367

251,458

(15,746)

(97,617)

(15,630)

-

(128,993)

30,621

82,529

6,948

2,367

122,465
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6. Investment in associated companies

7. Sale of subsidiaries

The Group’s financial investments as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Carrying amount of disposed assets and liabilities of TVK Italia S.r.l (on 12 December 2011) and TVK Interchemol GmbH (on 20
December 2011) and analysis of net cash inflow on sales of the subsidiary was the following:

Country

Net book value Net book value
Ownership Ownership
of investment of investment 31
31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
31 Dec 2011
Dec 2010

Range of activity

HUF million
Associates
TMM Tűzoltó és Műszaki
Mentő Kft.
Total associates

Hungary

1995

Fire prevention, technical
rescue, technical supervision

30%

30%

Total

HUF million

132

132

132

132

132

132

Financial information on associates
Main financial data of the Group associates at 31 December 2011 (These amounts represent 100% of the values of the companies
reported by those companies in accordance with IFRS):
Total assets

Liabilities

HUF million
TMM Tűzoltó és Műszaki Mentő Kft.

HUF million
514

Total operating revenues

Profit and loss for the year

HUF million

HUF million

74

550

0

Main financial data of the Group associates at 31 December 2010 (These amounts represent 100% of the values of the companies
reported by those companies in accordance with IFRS):

TMM Tűzoltó és Műszaki Mentő Kft.

Total assets

Liabilities

Total operating revenues

Profit and loss for the year

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

505

66

537

31

Property, plant and equipment

TVK Italia Srl

TVK Inter-Chemol GmbH

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

1

1

2

Trade receivables

86

305

391

Other current assets (excluding cash)

46

59

105

133

365

498

Provisions

Total assets (excluding cash)

48

227

275

Other non-current liabilities

27

69

96

2

290

292

Trade payables
Other current liabilities

117

9

126

Total liabilities

194

595

789

Net assets

(61)

(230)

(291)

Net gain (loss) on sale of subsidiaries

302

204

506

Cash inflow / (outflow)

241

(26)

215

8. Other non-current assets
Financial and
Operational Performance

Company name

Date of
foundation

The Group’s other non-current assets as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million
Government bonds*
Advances for construction in progress
Loan to Plastico S.A.**
Other***
Total

HUF million
210

200

26

-

-

-

2

2

238

202

*Long-term securities include type 2013/C government bonds maturing in December 2013. Government bonds bear a floating interest rate equivalent to the
Treasury Bonds previous 6 month average interest rate. These bonds are accounted for as held to maturity instruments.
**In 2002, TVK Plc. sold its investment in Plastico S.A. In 2006, based on a legal opinion, the Company reassessed the recoverability of its outstanding loan receivable
from Plastico S.A. and decided to fully write it off. Net of impairment of HUF 575 million as of 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively (See Note 11.).
*** It contains loans given which are interest free in the amount of HUF 2 million in 2011 (HUF 2 million 2010).
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9. Inventories

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010 the analysis of trade receivables that were past due is as follows:

Inventories as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
At cost

Net book value

At cost

Net book value

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

9,208

8,625

6,661

6,533

Raw-material

2,381

2,381

2,546

2,546

Other materials

1,073

800

1,036

788

42

42

269

269

12,704

11,848

10,512

10,136

Total

Past due but not impaired
Within 90 days

Work in progress and finished goods

Purchased goods

Neither past due nor impaired

The Group believes that the level of provision as of 31 December 2011 is sufficient to cover potential future losses on sale of inventories.
As of 31 December 2011 and 2010, no inventory owned by TVK Plc. was pledged as collateral.
The total amount of impairment was HUF 856 million and HUF 376 million as of 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively (as
cumulative figures).

91 - 180 days
Over 180 days
Total

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

49,595

48,176

1,286

1,766

1,081

1,754

7

4

198

8

50,881

49,942

The Group recorded a write-off on doubtful debts of HUF 18 million and HUF 30 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Income from
bad debts and written off receivables amounted to HUF 1 million and HUF 5 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively.
To assess provision for doubtful debts, the Company estimated incurred losses that arise due to the liquidity problems of certain
major debtors. The provision has been determined by reference to past default experience.
Export receivables are denominated primarily in EUR, USD and PLN and are recorded at the exchange rate as of 31 December 2011
and 2010. The resulting gain or loss is classified in a net amount either as other income or other expense, respectively (see notes 21,
24) in the accompanying income statements.

Inventories are regularly reviewed for impairment.
Financial and
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10. Trade receivables, net
Receivables as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

Domestic debtors
     - of which: MOL Group members
Borsodchem
Export debtors

26,977

26,763

7,454

8,988

4,153

3,222

24,115

23,368

960

1,061

51,092

50,131

     - of which: MOL Group members
Less: provision for doubtful debts
Total

(211)

(189)

50,881

49,942

Movements in the provision for doubtful receivables were as follows:

At 1 January
Additions
Reversal
At 31 December

78

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million
189

198

28

3

(6)

(12)

211

189
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11. Other current assets

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million
Reclaimable VAT

31 December 2011

HUF million

HUF million

14,407

12,380

Loan to MOL

325

Energy sector extra tax

165

Advances to suppliers
Prepayments
Loans to employees and other receivables

3,095

3,731

1,000

Cash at bank – HUF

1,984

1,007

65

Cash at bank – USD

455

205

133

40

Cash at bank – PLN

145

121

113

94

Cash at bank – other currencies

33

12

15

21

Cash on hand – other currencies

2

3

Interest receivables

5

6

2

140

Loan to Plastico S.A.*
Total

HUF million

Cash at bank – EUR

Accrued income
Other

31 December 2010

-

-

81

199

15,246

13,945

Cash on hand – HUF
Total

1

1

5,715

5,080

*The long-term part of the loan receivable from Plastico S.A. reduced by the proportionate impairment loss has been recorded as other non-current asset (See
Note 8).
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In 2006, based on a legal opinion, the Company reassessed the recoverability of its outstanding loan receivable from Plastico S.A. and
decided to fully write it off.
Analysis of loans receivable

Loan to Plastico S.A.
Write off  doubtful receivables
Total

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

323

323

(323)

(323)

-

-

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

Movements in the provision for doubtful loans receivable were as follows:

323

323

Additions

At 1 January

-

-

Reversal

-

-

Amounts written off

-

-

Currency differences

-

-

323

323

At 31 December

80

TVK Annual Report 2011

81

13. Share capital

Shareholders with a shareholding above 5% registered in the Share Register as of 31 December 2010:
Shareholder

Share capital as of 31 December 2011 was as follows:

Shareholding %

MOL Hungarian Oil and Gas Company

86.79

Slovnaft a s
Shareholder
Domestic entities
International entities

Number of shares

Face value (HUF)

Total (HUF million)

Shareholding %

21,401,032

1,010

21,615

88.10

2,231,796

1,010

2,254

9.20

314,443

1,010

318

1.29

7,227

1,010

7

0.03

336,345

1,010

Domestic private investors
International private investors
Unregistered investors
Total

24,290,843

340

1.38

24,534

100.00

8.07

MOL is the parent company of Slovnaft a s., it is the ultimate parent company of TVK.
Share capital by type of shares as of 31 December 2010:
Type of share

Number of shares

Share capital (THUF)

Ordinary shares representing equal and equivalent rights of members
(face value of one share is HUF 1,010)

24,290,843

24,533,751

Total

24,290,843

24,533,751

Shareholders with a shareholding above 5% registered in the Share Register as of 31 December 2011:
Shareholder

14. Reserves

Shareholding %

MOL Hungarian Oil and Gas Company

86.79

Slovnaft a s

The total amount of reserves legally available for distribution based on the statutory separate financial statements of TVK Plc. is HUF
94,266 million and HUF 105,577 million as of 31 December 2011 and 2010, respectively.

8.07

MOL is the parent company of Slovnaft a s., it is the ultimate parent company of TVK.
MOL’s direct and indirect influence over the Company is 94.86%.  

Type of share

Number of shares

Share capital (THUF)

Ordinary shares representing equal and equivalent rights of members
(face value of one share is HUF 1,010)

24,290,843

24,533,751

Total

24,290,843

24,533,751
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Share capital by type of shares as of 31 December 2011:

Share capital as of 31 December 2010 was as follows:
Shareholder
Domestic entities
International entities
Domestic private investors
International private investors
Unregistered investors
Total

82

Number of shares

Face value (HUF)

Total (HUF million)

Shareholding %

21,690,707

1,010

21,908

89.30

2,237,133

1,010

2,260

9.21

288,245

1,010

291

1.19

6,190

1,010

6

0.02

68,568

1,010

24,290,843

69

0.28

24,534

100.00
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16. Provision for liabilities and charges

Long-term debt, net of current portion as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Provisions for expected liabilities and charges as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Weighted average
interest rate

Weighted average
interest rate

2011

2010

31 December
2011

31 December
2010

%

%

HUF million

HUF million

Secured bank loan of TVK Erőmű Kft. in EUR*

2.17%

1.62%

7,246

7,318

Secured bank loan of Tisza-WTP Kft. in EUR**

2.17%

1.63%

1,211

1,234

Unsecured loan in EUR from MOL Plc. (majority
stakeholder)***

5,519

4,169

Other****

3,431

3,446

17,407

16,167

1,159

976

16,248

15,191

Total long term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Total long-term debt, net of current portion

*On 26 July 2002, TVK Erőmű Kft. signed a project financing agreement with OTP Bank Rt., and the facility, that amounted to HUF 9,810 million (EUR 40 million), had
been fully drawn by 31 December 2004. The loan is secured by a pledge on TVK Erőmű Kft’s assets. At the end of 2011 the short-term part of the loan amounts to
HUF 989 million (EUR 3,180 thousand) reported as short-term loan payable.

Balance as of 1 January 2010
Provision made during the year and
revision of previous estimate
Unwinding of the discount
Provision used during the year and
revision of previous estimate
Balance as of 31 December 2010
Provision made during the year and
revision of previous estimate
Unwinding of the discount
Provision used during the year and
revision of previous estimate
Acquisitions, divestitions
Balance as of 31 December 2011

** In order to implement a water treatment plant to be operated by Tisza WTP Kft., on 17 December 2002, the Kft. signed a long-term project and development loan
agreement for HUF 1,883 million (EUR 8 million) with OTP Bank Rt. By the end of the availability period (29 December 2003), the Kft. had drawn down a total of EUR
7,340,000 from the facility. The project loan is secured by the Company’s assets. At the end of 2011, Tisza WTP Kft. reclassified an instalment of HUF 175 million (EUR
562 thousand) due in 12 months to current liabilities.
*** On 21 December 2009, a revolving loan contract was made between TVK Plc. and MOL Plc. in an amount of EUR 100 million. The company modified the loan
contract and divided the credit the credit line into long term part (EUR 70 million) and short term part (EUR 30 million) during 2011.
**** According to service agreement the shareholding of the majority owners of the capital of TVK Erőmű Kft. and Tisza WTP Kft. is to be reimbursed during the
lifetime of the project, and is recorded as other long-term debt in accordance with IAS 32, as it qualifies as a financial liability.

Secured loans were obtained for specific capital expenditure projects and are secured by the assets financed from the loan.
According to maturity the long-term debts were as follows:
31 December 2011
HUF million
Maturity two to five years
Maturity over five years
Total

84

HUF
million
1,971

HUF
million
56

Long term
employee
retirement
benefits
HUF
million
307

139

17

25

138

-

(218)

Environmental

Current portion 31 December 2010
Non-current portion 31 December 2010
Current portion 31 December 2011
Non-current portion 31 December 2011

Severance

Old Team
benefit
HUF
million
206

Early
Retirement
benefits

Provision for
litigation

HUF
million

HUF
million

Total

64

-

HUF
million
2,604

27

112

13

333

6

7

-

-

151

(6)

(38)

(34)

(64)

-

(360)

2,030

67

300

206

112

13

2,728

279

19

40

85

49

16

488

97

-

4

5

-

-

106

(92)

(31)

(18)

(24)

(112)

-

(277)

-

(48)

(183)

(15)

-

(29)

(275)

2,314

7

143

257

49

-

2,770

194

32

33

23

112

13

407

1,836

35

267

183

-

-

2,321

363

7

13

26

49

-

458

1,951

-

130

231

-

-

2,312

Environmental provision
The amount of provision contains the discounted value of amounts estimated for 12 years. The environmental provision might
further increase subject to the completion of an ongoing environmental survey. (See Note 29) The amount of the provision has been
determined on the basis of existing technology at current prices by calculating risk-weighted cash flows discounted using estimated
risk-free real interest rates.
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15. Long-term debt, net of current portion

Provision for severance
The provision for severance equals to the amount of severance payments due but not yet paid as at 31 December 2011.

31 December 2010
HUF million

10,923

8,725

5,325

6,466

16,248

15,191
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17. Other non-current liabilities
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

Loans granted by MOL/parent company and secured by CO2 emission quotas*

-

2,552

Other

5

6

Total

5

2,558

Provision for Old Team benefits
Every five years, TVK pays a fix set amount to all employees who had worked at least 10 years for the Company. On 31 December 2011,
based on actuarial calculations, the Company made HUF 257 million provision for the future Old Team benefits of current employees.

*At the end of 2011 the short-term part of the forward of CO2 emission quotas reported as trade and other payables.
(See Note 18)

The following table summarises the main financial and actuarial variables and assumptions based on which the amounts of retirement
benefits were determined:

18. Trade and other payables

2011

2010

Discount rate in %

2.5-4.1

2.0-4.3

Average wage increase in %

0.5-2.1

0-2.3

Mortality index (male)

0.02-0.84

0.06-3.45

Mortality index (female)

0.01-0.35

0.02-1.50

The Group’s payables and other current liabilities as of December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

Domestic trade creditors

41,981

36,532

     - of which: MOL Group members

36,461

30,570

1,224

53

Associates
Suppliers related to capital projects

3,260

1,468

     - of which: MOL Group members

1,645

556

Import creditors

2,647

2,620

556

283

     - of which: MOL Group members
Discount payable to customers

4,017

4,950

Loans granted by MOL/parent company and secured by CO2 emission quotas *

2,996

2,083

Accrued expenses

1,916

2,659

Dividend payable to the majority owner of TVK Erőmű Kft.

881

277

Amounts due to employees and related contributions

315

330

Dividend payable to owner of Tisza-WTP Kft.

91

94

State budget taxes

53

94

Deferred other revenues

39

28

4

8

Dividends payable**
Other

211

128

Total

58,411

51,271
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Provision for long term employee retirement benefits
TVK operates benefit schemes that provide lump sum benefit to all employees at the time of their retirement. TVK employees
are entitled for maximum of 2 months of final salary respectively, depending on the length of service period. None of these plans
have separately administered funds. The value of provision has been determined using the projected unit credit method, based on
financial and actuarial variables and assumptions that reflect relevant official statistical data and are in line with those incorporated
in the business plan of TVK. Principal actuarial assumptions state an approximately 2% difference between the discount rate and the
future salary increase. As of 31 December 2011 the Company has recognized a provision of HUF 143 million to cover its estimated
obligation regarding future retirement benefits payable to current employees expected to retire from group entities.

* See Note 17
** Dividend payable in 2011 are related to 2007’s, 2008’s and 2010’s dividends which have not been paid yet.

86

TVK Annual Report 2011

87

19. Short-term debt

21. Other operating income

HUF million
Revolving loan in EUR from MOL Plc. (majority shareholder)*

HUF million
6,623

286

-

-

6,623

286

Unsecured loans
Total short term debt

Other operating income as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

31 December 2010

* On 21 December 2009, a revolving loan contract was made between TVK Plc. and MOL Plc. in an amount of EUR 100 million. The company modified the loan
contract and divided the credit line into long term part (EUR 70 million) and short term part (EUR 30 million) during 2011.

20. Net sales by geographical area

2011

2010

HUF million

HUF million
Foreign exchange gain on receivables and payables, net

HUF million
2,113

1,417

Default interest received, indemnity, penalties

533

111

Net gain (loss) on sales of subsidiaries

506

-

Gain on sale of CO2 emission quota received free of charge

73

612

Donations received

16

12

Gain on the disposal of tangible assets

15

60

-

7

Other

108

60

Total

3,364

2,279

22. Raw materials and consumables used

HUF million
210,977

189,295

Italy

34,275

26,279

Germany

33,004

31,347

Poland

30,557

29,550

Czech Republic

20,641

10,247

Slovakia

11,970

12,729

Austria

9,230

7,622

Raw materials and consumables as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:
2011

2010

HUF million

HUF million

Material costs

356,885

299,332

     Naphta, AGO and other raw materials

321,257

268,025

28,477

24,491

Energy

Ukraine

8,050

6,650

Romania

7,885

7,554

     Other indirect and auxi. materials

4,678

4,413

2,434

2,391

39

12

15,462

14,742

6,739

6,497

     Maintenance costs

4,493

4,032

     Other costs

3,012

2,971

     Sundry sales costs

599

568

     Information technology service

204

221

     Technical development cost

198

230

     Other postal service cost

155

153

Switzerland

5,867

5,152

     Other materials

France

5,100

4,827

     Impairment of materials
Material type services

United Kingdom

3,257

3,558

Other European Countries

28,532

23,773

Non-European Countries

4,676

9,233

Less: Quantity discount of foreign sales
Total

(2,559)

(2,631)

411,462

365,185

     Transportation, loading, storage

     Hiring cost of labour

31

37

     Other administration cost

31

33

24,554

14,786

399

13,290

397,300

342,150

Cost of goods sold
Cost of services sold
Total

88

2010

Retrospective discount

Net sales by geographical area as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Hungary (reduced by quantity discount)

2011
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23. Personnel expenses

25. Financial income / (expense)

Personnel expenses as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

The financial income / (expense) as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 was as follows:
2010

HUF million

2011

HUF million

2010

HUF million

Wages and salaries

6,284

6,590

Social security

1,941

1,975

Impairment, reverse impairment and revaluation of securities

Other personnel expenses

1,179

1,081

Other

Total

9,404

9,646

Total financial income

24. Other operating expenses

HUF million

Interest received

2010

HUF million

HUF million

Insurance premium

969

1,088

Rental costs, leasing

439

422

Property protection and fire prevention

418

424

Local and other taxes

284

262

Administrative charges and duties

221

307

Consulting, advisory and auditing costs

202

175

PR and promotion

176

159

Public sanitation

164

212

Damages, default interest, penalties, fines

143

132

Energy sector extra tax

138

303

Elimination of waste

135

140

91

105

Donations, contributions to set off costs and expenses

66

69

Receivables impairment, net

44

16

Bank charges

Debt forgiven
Other*
Total
*Including environmental costs and provisions.

-

1

680

546

4,170

4,361

16
17

276

225
(1,181)

Interest expense*

(1,990)

(1,288)

(106)

(151)

Commitment fee of bank loans

(96)

(113)

Discounts given for early payment of receivables

(69)

(292)

(9)

(7)

Total financial expenses

(5,257)

(3,032)

Total financial income / (expense), net

(4,981)

(2,807)

* Interest expense of the Group for 2011 includes HUF 925 million (2010: HUF 357 million), being the share from the net income of TVK Erőmű Kft. of its majority
shareholder (ÉMÁSZ Nyrt.), and Tisza WTP Kft. of shareholder (Sinergy Kft.).

26. Income taxes
Corporate income tax:
In 2011, TVK Plc. had a negative profit before taxation, which was further decreased by the tax base corrections, thus no
corporate income tax occurred. The current corporate income taxes contain the consolidated companies’ corporate income
taxes. TVK Plc. deferred the occurred loss.
Income taxes:
Total applicable income taxes reported in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010
include the following components:

2011

2010

HUF million

HUF million

Local trade tax

599

757

Current corporate income taxes

254

490

35

48

Robin Hood tax
Innovation fee
Deferred income taxes
Total income tax expense / (benefit)

90

9
124
(2,987)

Other
2011

192

Foreign exchange losses of loans and other financial assets
Interest on provision

Other operating expenses as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

143
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2011

14

12

(559)

(2,126)

343

(819)
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27. Earnings per share (EPS)

Deferred tax:
The deferred income/expense consisted of the following items as of 31 December 2011 and 2010:
Balance sheet

Depreciation
Environmental provision
Statutory tax losses carried forward
Impairment losses and other provisions
Differences due to capitalisation according to IFRS
Capitalized periodic maintenance cost
Other
Total deferred tax liability

The Group’s earnings per share based on consolidated information for 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Effect on profit and loss

2011

2010

2011

2010

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

13,042

6,301

6,741

(4,307)

(440)

(203)

(237)

171

(11,375)

(4,348)

(7,027)

1,106

(544)

(491)

(53)

889

20

15

5

(22)

159

147

12

37

-

-

-

-

862

1,421

(559)

(2,126)

2011
Net income/(loss), IFRS (million HUF)
Weighted average of shares outstanding in the period (pieces)

(11,226)

(1,170)

24,290,843

24,290,843

HUF (462)

HUF (48)

EPS (HUF 1,010 face value)

The Group’s earnings per share (calculated from comprehensive income) based on consolidated information for 31 December 2011 and

2010 are as follows:
2011
Comprehensive income/(loss), IFRS (million HUF)
Weighted average of shares outstanding in the period (pieces)
EPS (HUF 1,010 face value)

The Group recognized HUF 11,375 million deferred tax assets from tax losses of HUF 60,612 million (of which TVK Plc. HUF 58,014
million, TVK-Erőmű Kft. HUF 1,329 million, TVK Ingatlankezelő Kft. HUF 1,268 million) that are available indefinitely for offset against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The amount of such tax losses was HUF 43,482 million as of 31
December 2010. Deferred tax assets arising from negative profit before tax at group companies shall be recognized if it is probable
that future taxable income will be available to offset these deferred tax assets. In 2011 the Group has recognized deferred tax effects
in respect of losses at Group companies.

2010

2010
(11,292)

(1,146)

24,290,843

24,290,843

HUF (465)

HUF (47)

The average number of ordinary shares was determined based on the weighted mathematical average method. Employee shares
were also considered in the calculation as employees are also entitled to dividends.
Diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS as the Company has no diluting instruments or purchase options.
Financial and
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The temporary difference relating to foreign subsidiaries have not been recognized because of the xxvi.) section of the accounting
policy. Deferred tax of the foreign subsidiaries was not significant.
A numerical reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as the
follows:

Profit before tax per consolidated income statement
Tax at the applicable tax rate
Impact of changes in Hungarian tax legislation
Robin Hood tax
Differences not expected to reverse
Effect of different tax rates

92

2011

2010

HUF million

HUF million

(10,883)

(1,989)

(2,068)

(378)

1,157

(1,314)

35

39

241

340

81

87

Local tax

486

614

Other

411

(207)

Total income tax expense / (benefit)

343

(819)
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28. Financial instruments

The net book value and fair value of financial instruments as the follows:

The following tables sets out the carrying amount, by maturity of the Group’s financial instruments that bear interest as of 31
December 2011:
Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 years

Over 5 years

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents*

5,715

-

-

-

-

-

-

210

-

-

-

-

325

-

-

-

-

-

Borrowing from MOL Plc.*

(6,623)

-

-

(5,519)

-

-

Capital project loan

(1,346)

(1,396)

(1,465)

(1,515)

(1,560)

(1,934)

Forward quota

(2,996)

-

-

-

-

-

Government bonds**(2013/C)
Loan to MOL

* Carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and borrowing from MOL Plc. equals to the contracted amounts.
** Contracted amount of the government bonds (2013/C) is HUF 231 million.

Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

Capital project loan
Net book value
Interest
Undiscounted contractual amounts

(1,159)

(1,231)

(1,307)

(1,390)

(1,476)

(1,894)

(8,457)

(187)

(165)

(158)

(125)

(84)

(40)

(759)

(1,346)

(1,396)

(1,465)

(1,515)

(1,560)

(1,934)

(9,216)

Net book value
2011

Fair value

2010

HUF million

2011

HUF million

2010

HUF million

HUF million

Financial assets
Loans given (notes 8,11)
Trade receivables (note 10)
Cash and cash equivalents (note 12)
Other current assets (excluding loans given and prepaid and recoverable taxes)
(note 11)
Total

330

1,009

330

1,009

50,881

49,942

50,881

49,942

5,715

5,080

5,715

5,080

511

558

511

558

57,437

56,589

57,437

56,589

Net book value
2011
HUF million

Fair value

2010

2011

HUF million

HUF million

2010
HUF million

Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings:
   Floating rate long-term bank loans (note 15)

8,457

8,552   

8,457

8,552

   Floating rate other long-term loans (note 15)

5,519

4,169

5,519

4,169

   Floating rate other short-term loans (note 19)

6,623

286

6,623

286

   Other (notes 15,19,)

3,431

3,446

3,431

3,446

Liabilities from emission allowances

2,996

4,635

2,996

4,635

Trade and other payables (note 18)

58,411

51,271

58,411

51,271

Total

85,437

72,359

85,437

72,359
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Financial instruments in the balance sheet include associated investments, other non-current assets, trade receivables, other current
assets, cash and cash equivalents, short-term and long-term debt, other non-current   liabilities, trade and other payables. The
financial assets and liabilities are carried at amortized cost.

The following tables sets out the carrying amount, by maturity of the Group’s financial instruments that bear interest as of 31
December 2010:
Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF  million

4-5 years

Over 5 years

HUF million

HUF million

Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents*
Government bonds** (2013/C)

5,080

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

200

-

-

-

Loan to MOL

1,000

-

-

-

-

-

Borrowing from MOL Plc.*

(286)

-

-

(4,169)

-

-

Capital project loan

(1,148)

(1,223)

(1,288)

(1,351)

(1,388)

(3,162)

Forward quota

(2,083)

(2,552)

-

-

-

-

Within 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 years

Over 5 years

Total

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

HUF million

Capital project loan
Net book value

(976)

(1,038)

(1,102)

(1,171)

(1,245)

(3,020)

(8,552)

Interest

(172)

(185)

(186)

(180)

(143)

(142)

(1,008)

(1,148)

(1,223)

(1,288)

(1,351)

(1,388)

(3,162)

(9,560)

Undiscounted contractual amounts
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Financial risk management
Foreign exchange and commodity price risks

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years 2011 and 2010.

The prices of the most important raw materials and those of olefin and polymer products produced by TVK Plc. fluctuate according to
international market rates. Sales are significantly affected by the EUR/HUF exchange rate, while purchases are primarily USD based. In
2011 TVK Plc. did not have any forward or option contract nor had other derivatives to hedge FX risks. The loan granted to the Company is
denominated in EUR in order to reduce exchange rate risks.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
Three different strategies are followed based on the level of Net Gearing. In the three various scenarios, Risk Management focuses
on the followings:

Sensitivity analysis for key exposures
In line with the international benchmark, Group Risk Management prepares sensitivity analysis. According to the Financial Risk
Management Model, the key sensitivities are the following:

• High Gearing situation is declared when the Net Gearing ratio will exceed 40% for any of the next consecutive four business quarters
according to actual 12 month rolling forecast. In a high gearing situation, the prime objective of risk management is to reduce the
probability of breaching debt covenants, where a breach would seriously impair the company’s ability to fund its operations.
• Moderate Gearing situation is triggered when the Net Gearing ratio is between 20% and 40%. In Moderate Gearing situation, risk
management aims to enhance the commitment in maintenance of investment grade credit rating. Having public investment grade
credit rating ensures significant financial flexibility as capital market sources are also available at reasonable cost level.
• Low Gearing status occurs if the Net Gearing ration is below 20%. In this status, the focus of risk management shall be directed more
toward guarding of shareholder value by maintaining discipline in CAPEX spending, ensuring risk-aware project selection.

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

16,248

15,191

Current portion of long-term debt

1,159

976

Short-term debt

6,623

286

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

5,715

5,080

18,315

11,373

122,952

136,241

-

-

Total capital

122,952

136,241

Capital and net debt

141,267

147,614

12.96

7.70

Net debt
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Gearing ratio (%)

Effect on profit from operations

2011
HUF billion

2010
HUF billion

Petrochemical
Brent crude oil price (change by +/- 10 USD/bbl; with fixed crack spreads and petrochemical margin)

- / +4.4

Integrated petrochemical margin (change by +/- 10 EUR/t)

- / +5.9

+ / - 2.0

+ / - 2.0

Exchange rates (change by +/- 10 HUF/USD; with fixed crack spreads)

- / + 12.4

- / + 10.0

Exchange rates (change by +/- 10 HUF/EUR; with fixed crack spreads / targeted petrochemical margin)

+ / - 10.8

+ / - 9.8

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers may not be able to settle their liabilities to the Company within the normal terms
of trade. Credit risk arises from the risk of late payment by another party. In order to mitigate these risks, the Company carefully
assesses each debtor and the debtor’s ability to repay its debt on a regular basis. The company covers a significant part of trade
receivables by credit insurance. Management is of the opinion that the maximum credit risks approximate the carrying amounts of
the respective assets.
Interest rate risk management
As a chemical company, TVK has limited interest rate exposure.
As of 31 December 2011 and 2010, 100% of the Company’s debt was at variable rates respectively.
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Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios
in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

As of 31 December 2011 and 2010, there was no open interest rate swap transaction.
Liquidity risk
The Company is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents or have available funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to cover the liquidity risk in accordance with its financing strategy. The amount of undrawn facilities as of 31 December
2011 consists the followings:
2011

2010

HUF million

HUF million

Short - term facilities available
- bank

3,000

3,000

- majority stakeholder

2,711

5,289

- majority stakeholder

16,261

19,131

Total loan facilities available

21,972

27,420

Long - term facilities available
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NAV revision
In 2011, the National Tax and Customs Administration (NAV) conducted a full scope tax audit at the Company with respect to the year
2006 to 2008. The result of the tax audit was tax difference of HUF 15.7 million, which generated HUF 5.3 million tax penalty and HUF
2.8 million default surcharge, of which, the amounts that weren’t appealed (HUF 5.3 million) recognized in January, 2012.
Operating leases
The operating lease commitments of TVK Ukraina tov. are as follows:
31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million

Due not later than 1 year

3

-

Over 1 year

-

-

Total

3

-

Capital and contractual commitments
The total value of capital commitments as of 31 December 2011 is HUF 2,527 million, which is fully attributable to TVK Plc.
Gas Purchase Obligation, Take or Pay Contract
The TVK Erőmű Kft. has concluded long-term gas purchase contract with MOL Energiakereskedő Zrt. in order for continuous operation
of equipments in the power plant. As of 31 December 2011, 566 million cubic meters of natural gas will be purchased during the
period ending 2018 based on this contract. (from which 481 mcm under take-or-pay commitment calculated with a contractual
average price)
TVK Plc. signed a long-term natural gas purchase contract with MOL Plc. and MOL Energiakereskedő Zrt.. The buyers (TVK Plc. and
MOL Plc.) engage themselves to receive and pay the annual minimum quantity, which is the 85 % of the contractual annual quantity.
As of 31 December 2011, 281 million cubic meters of natural gas will be purchased during the period ending 2015 based on this
contract

Environmental protection
In 1996, before the privatisation of TVK Plc., an environmental audit of the Company had been carried out. Based on the findings
of the audit, the restoration of the contaminated soil in the area of the Olefin plant began. The restoration on the area of the Paint
Factory continued. The restoration of contaminated soil and water in other areas started in 1999, for which the Company contracted
external expert company.
Based on the findings of this environmental audit, the Company recorded a provision for the estimated total environmental expenses
to clean up existing pollution in 1996. As a full-scale assessment of the Company’s potential environmental obligation is still
outstanding, the amount of provision has been updated every year based on the results of the original study, the actual cleanup work
performed and on management estimate.
The management of the company regularly assessed the measures and/or investments necessary in order to meet new Hungarian
environmental requirements issued based on applicable EU directives.
In connection with this, an assessment of the underground pollution of the areas under decontamination began in the second half
of 2002. Further to the findings of an environmental review carried out by an external consultant, HUF 2,101 million additional
environmental provisions were created for expected extra restoration costs in 2002. The amount of provisions covers only those
expenses that could be assessed and properly quantified at the time of reporting.
In 2003 the Company continued the survey of the underground pollution in order to get sufficient information about extension of
environmental pollution and determine the most applicable technology for environmental restoration. The surveys found extensive
underground pollution caused in the past. The Company submitted the summary report on the environmental survey completed at
the end of 2003 to the North-Hungary Area Environment Authority (ÉMIKÖTEVIFE) by the required deadline in 2004.
The environmental authority requested further additions to the closing document. All the requested additions were prepared by
TVK Plc. and have been submitted to the authority. Based on the documentation submitted, the North-Hungary Authority for the
Environment, Nature and Water issued a note to TVK Plc. to prepare and submit a technical action plan by 30 September 2005.
The submitted Technical Intervention Action Plan has been prepared in accordance with relevant legislation in force and
contains, in a scheduled manner, all the strategic measures and actions to be taken in the short and middle-term to achieve
standard management of environmental responsibilities and to ensure compliance with environmental regulations with
respect to the entire area of the TVK-TIFO industrial site. The Company manages liabilities and commitments related to past
operations as part of an integrated project in co-operation with MOL Plc. The joint liability was agreed to by both TVK Plc. and
MOL Plc. in their Co-operation Agreement signed in July 2006.
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29. Commitments and contingency liabilities

In its decision dated in December 2006 in relation to the complex Technical Intervention Plan, the Authority issued a decontamination
order to both TVK and MOL with respect to the entire area of the TVK-TIFO industrial site. The decision approved the companies’
short and middle-term action plan that aims to manage decontamination commitments on a risk and exposure basis while focusing
on the continuous optimisation of environmental expenses and on decontamination solutions. On the basis of the action plan, as a
major milestone, we drew a complete pollution risk map in 2009. The map will then be used to re-define middle-term environmental
goals and to prioritise implementation.
Within the TVK Plc’s site, work is carried out  to avoid further pollution on the southern part of the plant and the Company is making
significant efforts to gauge the extent of the pollution as well as to identify and map the possible movement of the pollutants.
Resulted from the complexity and the extent of the polluted areas, the Company initiated along this project continued the common
risk based concept strategy approach of recognizing environmental liability at TVK-TIFO plant participating by contracted external
expert company.
In line with strategic environmental planning, the highest priorities at the TVK-TIFO industrial site are to protect human ecological
receptors and to minimise environmental exposures (i.e. to identify and prevent both horizontal and vertical spread of pollution).
In order to gauge the deep pollutant towards the south-east of the Company’s premises, the boundaries of the polluted area (both
vertically and horizontally) were identified with a so called “pollutant dynamism monitoring system”. Sampling and analysis already
in progress need to be finalised in order to understand the pollutant’s movement and dynamics.
Pollution is unchanged or is receding at the Emergency storage facility area of the Olefin container park.
The results of risk assessment reviews first started in 2006 have already limited the number of risks. Health hazards reviews of
farmland in 2006 and 2007 found that crops produced in farmland at the eastern boundary of the TVK-TIFO site as reviewed in phase
1 and phase 2, did not represent over-the-limit health hazard for breeding stock or for humans.
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The TVK-TIFO site’s exploration and establishment of facts and its complementary information were prepared and submitted to
ÉMIKÖTEVIFE in 2009. On the basis of these documents, the Authority prescribed the continuation of the exploration and the actual
technical tasks of restoration with joint responsibility. The filing deadline of the exploration’s closing documents is on December,
2012.
During 2011, the mapping up of the resources was finished, geological structure of the site and the water streams were further
specified and we completed their integration into the hydrodynamic transport model. On the basis of surveys, the extension of
environmental pollution was determined and its quantity isolation was done. We have begun identifying the technical intervention
for damage elimination, which is potentially required because of the exploration processes, and begun studying the potential impacts
and efficiency analysis of such intervention through a hydrodynamic transport model.
To prevent any pollution from escaping from the area, the Company spent HUF 92 million in 2011 and HUF 130 million in 2010 on
actions associated with monitoring and the exploration of the facts performed as part of the additional tests.

30. Related party transactions
Transactions with associated companies in the normal course of business
MOL Group has been TVK Plc’s main raw material supplier and buyer of TVK products ever since the Company was established. The
contract, which was signed by the Company with MOLTRADE-Mineralimpex Zrt. in 2001 and related to the long-term raw material
supply and by-product repurchase between 2004 and 2013, was modified in 2011. It granted supply both the division of raw material
supply between MOL Plc. and MOLTRADE-Mineralimpex Zrt. and the continuous supply of the Company. The Company signed a
contract with MOL Plc. in 2011 about the naphtha and light pyrolysis raw material supply and by-product repurchase. The atmospheric
gasoline was supplied mainly by MOLTRADE-Mineralimpex Zrt., which was complemented with a small quantity from MOL Plc.

TVK Plc. and MOL Plc., involving outsider specialists, set up a research project, and as a consortium successfully applied for the tender
„ For a Liveable Environment” invited by the National Research Technological Agency. The main objective of the research programme
is to prevent the transport of contaminants in the 16-32 m deep water-bearing zone and to study the methods of the reduction of
their concentration. The Company received subsidy in the amount of HUF 65 million, of which it utilized HUF 30 million until 2011.
Under this project, we had good results in studying the removal of independent phase hydrocarbons heavier than water, as well as in
the landscape rehabilitation program aimed to draw the decontaminated areas under agricultural cultivation. In 2011, MAG Zrt, being
the support organisation to the project, successfully prepared the technical and financial report on the project.
ÉMI-KTVF ordered a partial assessment of pollution in the surrounding area of well T-15 at AKZO’s premises. The area was
decontaminated in 2002 and the situation has been regularly followed-up ever since. An increased concentration of contaminants
led us to conclude that AKZO has re-contaminated the area.
We prepared a closing report on the follow-up process and sent it to both the authority and AKZO. In response to the report, the
authority issued decision N° 10431-14/2011 and required both TVK Nyrt. and AKZO NOBEL Co., under several and joint liability, to
make a factual assessment of the situation. We appealed against the decision on the grounds that proof is presented in our earlier
documents submitted to the authority that TVK Nyrt. is not responsible for the increased concentrations of pollutants. No response
to our appeal has been received as yet.

2010

HUF million

HUF million

Sales
     - of which: to MOL Group companies
                 of which Moltrade-Mineralimpex Zrt.

Concerning the closing actions required for the slag and ash deposit built in 2000, we raised a special reserve worth HUF 170 million.
To cover the costs of after-management actions, a yearly budget of HUF 3 million shall be separated as a special reserve for the
subsequent 30 years. The Company had negotiations about the future of the slag deposit. Based on previous coordination, the
Company initiated the enlargement of the deposit. The actions and licensing procedures required for the expansion will begin in
2012. The procedures associated with the expansion do not require any special reserve for the possible actions of environmental
protection.

2011

84,014

91,881

-

52,786

                        Slovnaft Pethrochemicals s.r.o.

11,736

12,651

                        MOL Plc.

71,895

25,530

73

614

                         MOL  Commodity Trading.

152

140

                         Slovnaft a.s.

                         Petroszolg Kft.

-

62

to other related parties

2

3

            of which Tűzoltó és Műszaki Mentő Kft.

2

3

Purchases
     - of which: from MOL Group companies

357,110

287,540

10,697

216,309

320,428

52,969

11,731

6,050

                         Petroszolg Kft.

6,593

5,838

                         Slovnaft Pethrochemicals s.r.o.

5,240

4,851

                         MOL Commodity Trading

1,314

1,165

from other related parties

268

264

            of which Tűzoltó és Műszaki Mentő Kft.

268

264

            of which Moltrade-Mineralimpex Zrt.
                         MOL Plc.
                         MOL Energiakereskedő Kft.
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We made a quantitative risk assessment in 2008 whose instantaneous findings showed that no agricultural, human exposure and
ecological risks are expected to turn up that could be attributed to a contaminated subsoil under the industrial complex. Given that
the information creating the input data for risk analyses need continuous updating, we added biological monitoring to our chemical
analytical testing and monitoring programme in 2009 in order to explore any quantity of soil gas, which has a significant impact on
human health and long-term impact on living organisms.

The Company recognized – in consideration of the above-mentioned risks - environmental provision based on the currently available
quantifiable future expenses in the amount of HUF 2,314 million as of 31 December 2011 (HUF 2,030 million as of 31 December 2010).
Beyond the provision recognized in the Balance Sheet, there are further contingent environmental liabilities whose amount may
exceed HUF 4 billion. However, the probability of having these tasks completed is less than 50% due to the fact that there is no legal
obligation to carry them out and that their exact technical content is uncertain.
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31. Share-based payment plans

Details of the share option rights granted during the year are as follows:
Number of shares
2011

The incentive scheme involves company and organizational level financial and operational targets, evaluation of the contribution to the
strategic goals of the company and determined individual tasks in the System of Performance Management (TMR), and competencies.
Expenses incurred by this scheme were HUF 250 million, and HUF 118 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

2008

2007

2006

Total

share

share

share

share

share

share

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

13,000

13,000

13,000

13,000

Outstanding at the beginning of 2006
Granted during the year
Forfeited/Exercised during the year

The liabilities related to incentive scheme as of 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Short term incentive

2009

0

Outstanding at the end of 2006

31 December 2011

31 December 2010

HUF million

HUF million
254

256

254

256

0

0

0

14,939

Forfeited/Exercised during the year

(1,512)

(583)

(2,095)

13,427

12,417

25,844

Outstanding at the end of 2007

0

0

0

Granted during the year

The incentive stock option is a material incentive disbursed in cash, calculated based on call options concerning MOL shares, with annual
recurrence, with the following characteristics:

º a 3-year waiting period and a 2-year redemption period in case of managers staying in the previous system for 2009,  
º a 2-year waiting period and a 3-year redemption period in case of managers choosing the new system already for Y2009,  and  it
is valid for all of the entitled managers from Y2010.
• its rate is defined by the quantity of units specified by MOL job category
• the value of the units is set annually (in each year since the initiation of the scheme, 1 unit equals to 100 MOL shares).
According to the new system it is not possible to redeem the share option until the end of the second year (waiting period); the
redemption period lasts from 1 January of the 3rd year until 31 December of the 5th year.

15,000

Forfeited/Exercised during the year

0

Outstanding at the end of 2008

0

0

0

15,000

13,427

0

Granted during the year

0

14,500

(600)

14,400

13,427

Outstanding at the end of 2011

12,417

54,744

(12,417)

(12,417)

0

49,827

7,500

7,500

Forfeited/Exercised during the year
Outstanding at the end of 2010

0

7,500

14,500

14,400

13,427

4,111
4,111

40,844
14,500

(600)

Outstanding at the end of 2009

Granted during the year

12,417

14,500

Forfeited/Exercised during the year

• covers a 5-year period starting annually, where periods split into

0

14,939

15,000

Forfeited/Exercised during the year

The incentive system based on stock options and launched in 2006 ensures the interest of the management of the MOL Group in the
long-term increase of MOL stock price.

0

Granted during the year

Granted during the year

Share-option incentive from 2006

0

4,111
(2,500)

(5,996)

(4,400)

(13,427)

5,000

8,504

10,000

0

(26,323)
0

27,615

As required by IFRS 2, this share-based compensation is accounted for as cash-settled payments, expensing the fair value of the
benefit as determined at vesting date during the vesting period. Expense incurred by this scheme was HUF (80) million, and HUF
93 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively, recorded as personnel-type expenses with a corresponding increase in Trade and other
payables.

Financial and
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General Incentive Schemes for management

2010

Liabilities (without payroll related contributions) in respect of the share-based payment plans amounted to HUF 75 million as at 31
December 2011 (31 December 2010: HUF 224 million), recorded in Trade and other payables.
Fair value as of the balance sheet date was calculated using the binomial option pricing model. The inputs to the model were as
follows:

The incentive is paid in the redemption period according to the declaration of redemption. The paid amount of the incentive is
determined as the product of the defined number and price increase (difference between the redemption price and the initial price)
of shares.

2011

Weighted average exercise price *
Weighted average share price *

72.94

2010

58.69

2009

2009

(2 years
waiting
period)

(3 years
waiting
period)

41.88

41.88

2008

104.82

56.1

56.1

56.1

56.1

56.1

46.42%

42.16%

36.89%

36.89%

37.57%

1.23%

1.23%

1.23%

1.23%

1.23%

4.0

3.0

2.0

2.0

1.0

Risk free interest rate

0.51%

0.29%

0.16%

0.16%

(0.04)%

Weighted average fair value of the options

13.2

13.5

17.5

17.5

0.0

Expected volatility based on historical data
Expected dividend yield
Expected life (years)

* The units of measurement of values are EUR/share.
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Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
Termination benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Share-based payment
Honoraria
Total

2011

2010

HUF million

HUF million

241

201

59

-

-

-

-

-

(17)

69

87

126

370

396

Loans to the members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board

Financial and
Operational Performance

No loans have been granted to Directors or members of the Supervisory Board.
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Key Corporate Data
2001-2010 (HUF)

IFRS, consolidated, audited (HUF million)
Sales
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT)

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

135,124

150,284

175,883

249,693

308,736

337,646

2009

2010

323,406

265,372

2011
365,185

411,462

443

4,177

12,153

13,136

22,058

32,973

4,555

(7,510)

800

(5,902)

Depreciation

8,111

7,797

6,925

9,723

12,405

12,948

13,148

12,609

13,012

13,331

EBITDA

8,554

11,974

19,078

22,859

34,463

45,921

17,703

5,099

13,812

7,429

Net profit

1,819

5,278

8,947

6,409

17,271

23,684

(146)

(9,192)

(1,170)

(11,226)

Capital expenditure

20,132

55,420

42,553

6,981

6,644

7,251

4,539

8,223

7,085

6,495

Balance sheet total

134,274

182,082

202,326

227,714

229,998

234,963

209,781

211,404

210,672

209,030

Shareholders’ equity

97,112

102,363

111,282

117,718

133,959

157,642

148,541

137,387

136,241

122,952

Registered capital

24,510

24,501

24,495

24,492

24,534

24,534

24,534

24,534

24,534

24,534

Major ratios
EPS – Earnings per share (HUF/share)

75

218

369

264

712

975

(6)

(378)

(48)

(462)

ROE – Return on equity (%)

1.87

5.16

8.04

5.44

12.89

15.02

(0.10)

(6.69)

(0.86)

(9.13)

ROA – Return on assets (%)

1.35

2.90

4.42

2.81

7.51

10.08

(0.07)

(4.35)

(0.56)

(5.37)

        - Highest

4,800

4,550

5,375

5,890

5,995

8,490

7,060

3,495

3,780

3,540

        - Lowest

2,800

3,940

3,400

4,605

4,855

5,250

2,405

1,760

2,760

2,150

        - On December 31

3,940

3,955

5,060

5,240

5,345

7,010

2,405

3,400

3,300

2,240

95,485

95,849

122,628

126,990

129,835

179,752

58,420

82,589

80,160

54,412

2,126

2,015

1,686

1,542

1,396

1,187

1,153

1,158

1,138

1,119

Number of shares

24,423,843

24,423,843

24,423,843

24,423,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

       - Ordinary shares

24,234,843

24,234,843

24,234,843

24,234,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

       - Employee stock

189,000

189,000

189,000

189,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

10

7

7

8

10

9

9

9

9

9

Capitalisation (on December 31 closing price, million)
Other Data
Average headcount

Number of consolidated companies
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Key Corporate Data
2001-2010 (EUR)

IFRS, consolidated, audited (EUR thousand)
Sales
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT)

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

572,802

573,100

712,279

987,983

1,223,686

1,332,725

2009

2010

1,221,414

979,811

2011

1,310,081

1,322,476

1,878

15,929

49,216

51,976

87,428

130,148

17,203

(27,729)

2,870

(18,970)

Depreciation

34,383

29,733

28,044

38,472

49,168

51,107

49,656

46,555

46,680

42,847

EBITDA

36,261

45,662

77,261

90,448

136,595

181,255

66,859

18,827

49,550

23,877

Net profit

7,711

20,127

36,233

25,359

68,454

93,483

(551)

(33,939)

(4,197)

(36,081)

Capital expenditure

85,341

211,341

172,328

27,622

26,334

28,620

17,143

30,361

25,417

20,876

Balance sheet total

569,199

694,360

819,366

901,017

911,605

927,425

792,284

780,549

755,774

671,841

Shareholders’ equity

411,666

390,356

450,662

465,786

530,951

622,230

560,998

507,263

488,757

395,179

Registered capital

103,900

93,433

99,198

96,910

97,241

96,838

92,658

90,585

88,014

78,854

EPS – Earnings per share (EUR/share)

0.32

0.83

1.5

1.04

2.82

3.85

(0.02)

(1.4)

(0.17)

(1.49)

ROE – Return on equity (%)

1.87

5.16

8.04

5.44

12.89

15.02

(0.10)

(6.69)

(0.86)

(9.13)

ROA – Return on assets (%)

1.35

2.90

4.42

2.81

7.51

10.08

(0.07)

(4.35)

(0.56)

(5.37)

        - Highest

20.35

17.35

21.77

23.31

23.76

33.51

26.66

6.50

13.60

11.38

        - Lowest

11.87

15.02

13.77

18.22

19.24

20.72

9.08

12.90

9.90

6.91

        - On December 31

16.70

15.08

20.49

20.73

21.19

27.67

9.08

12.55

11.80

7.20

404.77

365.52

496.61

502.47

514.61

709.5

220.64

304.94

287.60

174.89

Major ratios

Capitalisation (on December 31 closing price, million)

Financial and
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Closing price of TVK shares on the Budapest Stock Exchange (EUR)

Remarks:
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 31, 2002: 235.90
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 31, 2003: 262.23
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 31, 2004: 245.93
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 30, 2005: 252.73
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 29, 2006: 252.30
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 28, 2007: 253.35
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 31, 2008: 264.78
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 31, 2009: 270.84
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 31, 2010: 278.75
EUR/HUF mid FX rate quoted by the NBH for December 30, 2011: 311.13
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Sustainability Report

TVK announced its commitment to sustainable
development. In order to support this ambitious
commitment, six group-level strategic SD initiatives were
identified, aimed to take place in the period of 2011-2015.

These initiatives covering twenty topics such as energy efficiency, climate change, product stewardship and the attraction of talented
recruits, embrace all the Company’s activities and are indeed considered to be “key success factors” in the achievement of our
strategic corporate business objectives. “Strategy” implies action; therefore TVK has launched many projects that will bring the
Company closer to its long-term goal of sustainable operations.
Objectives
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1. Climate change

„To manage risks and opportunities related to climate change”

2. Environment

„Reduce environmental footprint”

3. Health and safety

„Ensure health & safety of all of our employees and contractors”

4. Communities

„Enhance trust and credibility among stakeholders”

5. Human capital

„Focus on the next generation”

6. Economic sustainability

„Focus on factors contributing to long term economic developments”

Main results and goals
2011 Performance
Performance supporting economic sustainability
In 2011, the petrochemical markets in Europe were poisoned by
the general negative sentiment on economic outlook. Whilst the
global economy is growing, economies in Europe are hit by the
credit crunch and economic restrictions, which had an immediate
effect on the plastics markets. After a steady first half, the European demand for polymers has slumped considerably in 2011, due
to the economic problems in Europe which suppressed buying,
whilst the annual average of the quoted price for naphtha has
gradually increased, in line with the crude oil price. The annual
average of integrated petrochemical margin has shrunk by 14%
from 2010.
After a reasonable increase in the first half of 2011, quoted
polymer prices were on decreasing along the year. From January
to December, the LDPE shrunk by 26%, HDPE by 14% and PP by
approximately 20%.
Polymer producers in Europe were on the verge of profitable
operation or beneath. As consequence, polymer output in Europe has slowed significantly by the year end. So we had to
concentrate mainly on maintaining our operation and financial
stability.
Despite of the unfavourable business environment we were able
to permanently supply our customers without relevant capacity
cut, while our European competitors cut capacities and shut
down plants, due to poor profitability and weak demand. Our
‘crude oil to plastic’ philosophy - in optimizing our refining and
petrochemical production through the whole hydrocarbon value
chain – provided us the necessary flexibility to keep our units
operational in the second half of the year.
In this kind of environment, our performances were directed
mainly towards exploiting our existing production capacities,
increasing production efficiency, diversifying polymer product
portfolio, replacing the amortized assets, furthermore towards
supporting our general economic sustainability. We used most
of our available resources for those measures and actions that
are related to the above directions. So in the year of 2011, we
also focused on decreasing the material, energy and waste needs
of our products and services to mitigate the operational safety,
health and environmental risks.
Increasing the steam crackers’ efficiency remained a toppriority target.
• The project of Preheating of combustion air for F8001 boiler

also aims increasing its energy-efficiency by utilizing the
seasonal excess of low pressure steam, saving natural gas
accordingly. Project preparation has also been finished; firms
were selected through a tendering procedure for supply
and installation of the new heat exchanger to be built in.
Implementation is scheduled for 2012, year of SC-1 plant’s
turnover.
• By reducing temperature of the flue-gas from F8001 boiler
we intend to further increase thermal efficiency of the boiler
through enlargement of the economizer (BFW pre-heater)
section. The related feasibility study is already available;
implementation is planned between 2012 and 2016.
• Main aim within Processing of olefin by-products project is to
recover butadiene from the crude C4-fraction, which for the
time being is hydrogenated and used as raw material for the
crackers. Project offers possibilities for favourably exploiting
refinery and petrochemical synergies.
Portfolio management supporting economic sustainability:
• Development of new products is stressed part of our basic
activity:
- Based on customer requests, several new products were
developed and finalized in 2011.
• The product portfolio of the HDPE-1 plant widened with
the implementation of the Tipelin BB620-17 grade (for
blow moulding application), while in the HDPE2 plant,
the development of the new Tipelin 6010B grade
was finished (also for blow moulding application,
with greatly improved colour stability).
• In connection with the PP-3 plant, the
developments of the Tipplen R159A (for injection
moulding application) and the R780 (for the
automotive industry and for foamed sheets) - started
in 2010 – were also finished and finalized.
- Also focusing on the newest market needs, for many of our
grades, we have worked out modified additive recipes at
our laboratories. The implementation of these changes onto
plant scale were partly accomplished (FS340-03; H388F),
and partly are in progress (7100S; R1059A, K850, H890,
K899).
- In order to reduce environmental impacts, we continued our
cooperation with internal and external partner institutes,
to modify our traditional plastic products, ensuring their
accelerated biodegradation. As a result of the 2011 yearly
and earlier research activities, the accredited laboratory
of the Széchenyi István University, issued test reports
about the examination of further 11 (previously 8 in 2010)
combinations of TVK’s products and degradation supporting
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We understand that success and social acceptance are not
only measured and reflected by economic indicators in
this day and age. Our activities tend to be evaluated also
in the light of how we perform in terms of our capacity to
downsize our environmental footprint. TVK is committed
to the sustainable development and communicates its
achievements openly to stakeholders. We devote extra
attention to creating a cleaner and liveable environment,
secure and healthy working conditions. To ensure the
attainment of these objectives, we look upon prevention
and thinking responsibly as basic principles. The core
principles environmentally oriented thinking and
sustainability have been integrated solidly into our long
term strategy.
Our 2011 results are presented not separately in annual
financial and sustainability report, but in this integrated
report. Visit our website (www.tvk.hu) to view detailed
information of the below issues. The table of contents of
and accurate references to the full SD report are laid out
at the end of this chapter.
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Economic sustainability objectives with regard to development
of new products:
• With the implementation of the TEAL/TEB unloading system
in the HDPE1 plant, we are now capable to use co-catalysts.
Because of this, we have the opportunity to develop further
grades that were determined by the HDPE product portfolio
team in 2010. The plant trials will be most probably in 2012.
• In 2011, the first trials of two new grades (Tipelin 8200B-blow
moulding application and 8800F-film application) took place in
the HDPE2 plant. These tests are planned to be continued in
2012.
• The Petchem PP portfolio strategy was updated in 2011.
• In 2011 the strategy of the additive recipe optimization mainly about the used clarifying agents - in TVK’s clarified random PP grades was determined. The connecting test series will
continue in 2012.
Social performance
Health and Safety
• There was 1 lost time injury work related accident.
• There were 6 road accidents, what is not occurred personal
injury.
• The number of Total Reportable Occupational Illness equal
with zero.
• The Incident inquiry rate (IIR) reached 100%.
• HSE risk assessment was prepared for PSM critical processes.
• Executed Contractor safety program.
• We started HSE culture development program.
• We intend to increase to 94% the participation ratio of
our employees in health protection programs organised at
workplaces.
• The attendance rate of PETTVK employees achieved 22%
regularity in the STEP (WHP) program by the end of the year.
Fire Protection
• Our fire protection activity was carried out in accordance with
the instructions in force.
• There was no fire incident in the year 2011.
• In the cause of authority inspections no failures were revealed
that would cause imposing of fines.
• Reconstruction of fire fighting pipeline was done in the tank
yard unit.
• Establish dry sprinkler system at Ethylene-2 plant for Pyrogas
compressor protection.
• Renovate passive fire protection systems at Ethylene-1, and
HDPE-1 plants.
• Establish new up-to date LowPolymer upload station at HDPE2 unit.
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Human Resources
• After the introduction, we have successfully operated of our
Performance Evaluation System (PES), which set the rate of
incentives paid against performance in 2011 at 9% of annual
basic wages.
• We continued our Staféta program with 12 participants.
• In 2011, 21 experts and line managers are enrolled for a twoyear competence development program.
• We are running a training course for chemical engineering
technicians in cooperation with Erdey-Grúz Tibor Secondary
Vocational School in Tiszaújváros. At present there are 26 MOL
Group employees participating.
• 13 freshly graduated degree holders joined the company’s
Growww programme in 2011.
• We spent HUF 75 million in 2011 on training and education
courses with altogether more than 500 persons participating.
Environmental performance
• The waste collection and storage method formed as a result of
opening the Central Waste Collection Yard is satisfactory both
to the organisational units of the Company and to our partners
under contract. There were no non-compliances.
• By the cost-efficient performing of the tasks included in the
Technical Intervention Plan we decreased our environmental
protection obligations known at the end of the year 2010, and
having fully observed the authority instructions we released
HUF 149 million on fulfilling the tasks.
• Improving energy efficiency and decreasing specific CO2
emission by implementing major technological developments
and optimising existing ES&DS and production assets both on
the side of supply and demand have specific emission 1.027 t
CO2/t HVC.
• Within Recovery of CH (propylene) gases at the railway
loading-unloading station, two subprojects are being prepared
in parallel: the propylene recovery and the LPG products
recovery. By collecting and processing a part of the CH-gases,
inevitably vaporized and presently flared during the tank cars
loading process, raw material consumption and CO2 emission
are reduced simultaneously.
• A project was started for Replacement of the oil firing in
SC-1 F8001 boiler with normal (NG) and inert-contained
natural gas (AFG – Alternative Fuel Gas). The technical and
economic preparation of the project has been finished; the
implementation is planned for the 2011-2012 period, as it has
to be harmonized with the SC-1 general overhaul scheduled
in 2012. Reduction of the CO2 emission and of the energy
consumption is targeted with the project.
• Executed the renovation sewer system and sulphuric acid and
alkali tanks at HDPE-2 unit.

Attainment of targets set for 2011
TARGETS

EVALUATION

Health protection
Total Reportable Occupational Illness Frequency (TROIF) shall be only zero.

0

J

The attendance rate of PETTVK employees achieved 20% regularity in the STEP
(WHP) program by the end of the year.

22%

J

The attendance rate of Petrochemical Division employees at ‘Take a step for your
health’ (STEP) program is at least 90%.

94.06%

J

Lethal work incidents shall occur neither among the employees, nor among the
contractors.

0

J

In accordance with the long-term tendencies Lost Time Injury Frequency  (LTIF)
shall not exceed 0,61

0.51

J

By developing our defensive driving culture we try to keep the ratio of traffic
accidents (RAR) under 1.77.

2.76

L

We investigated 100% of the extraordinary (work incidents, fire cases and quasi
incidents) events.

done

J

HSE risk assessments will be prepared for PSM critical processes.

The PSM critical processes was identified the risk
assessments are ongoing

J

By executing the tasks cost-effectively determined in the Technical Intervention
Plan, in 2011 we will reduce our environmental provision-based liabilities known
at the end of 2010 by 5% in line with risk based remediation approach.

We reduced our provision 5% of known liabilities

J

Improving energy efficiency and decreasing specific CO2 emission by implementing
major technological developments and optimising existing ES&DS and production
assets both on the side of supply and demand keeping specific emission 1.06 t
CO2/t HVC .

The specific CO2 emission was 1,027.  Executed
several actions for improve energy efficiency  and to
reduce CO2 emission related to SD action plan

J

By utilising the opportunities of integrated water supply we will minimize fresh
water consumption at 3.9 million m3 in 2011.

There was 3.7 m3 fresh water consumption.

J

Set up biodiversity system.

It’s relevant for MOL group level for strategic new
investments. No relevant for TVK

K

Execute HSE culture improve program.

Executed the Phase II.

J

Reach HSE basic awareness level of newly appointed line managers.

The leader training was implemented

K

Execute Contractor safety program.

Executed

J

Labour protection and fire protection

Environmental protection

Sustainability

master batches, which meets requirements of the Környezetbarát Termék Non-Profit Kft. regarding to “biodegradable
packaging materials”.

HSE Governance
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Economic sustainability objectives
Our main goals from the past and for the near future are
closely connected, in our slowly changing industry branch is
not characteristic their abrupt change. TVK’s basic activity is
not supposed to be changed soon; its competitiveness depends
on our capability to satisfy real economic needs, to operate
supporting economic sustainability.
Main goals carried over to 2012 and goals of the projects initiated
in 2012 respectively, are practically same with those defined in
the last years:
- high level exploiting of the existing production capacities,
efficiency improvement
- enlargement of the product portfolios according to
customers’ requirements, improving product quality
- further development of the operational safety
- rationalizing the raw materials and energy needs
- reduction of wastes and emissions related to applied
technologies
- mitigation of the risks threatening health and impact on
environment.
Our economic, environmental and social awareness and
responsibility will not change in the future. Our present and
future competitiveness has sense only in frame of sustainability.
The concrete project targets appear more tighten, but more
precisely defined compared to the above main goals.
More favourable fuel structures, reduction of the energy
consumptions and of the GHG emissions are targeted in case of
next projects being in progress, or planned:
- Replacement of the oil firing in SC-1 F8001 boiler with
natural gas (NG) and AFG in Olefin-1 Plant
- Combustion-air pre-heating for F8001 boiler
- Reducing flue-gas temperature from F8001 boiler
- Processing olefin by-products

SD & HSE OBJECTIVES and TARGETS
We draw up TVK Plc. SD and HSE targets and objectives based
on the MOL-group accepted guidelines and DS Petrochemicals
Y2012 targets and objectives.

AWARENESS - Involving employees & contractors
• Implement a programme that aims at zero injuries and
occupational illnesses by 2015.
• No occupational accident resulting in death should occur
among our employees, contractors and third parties directly
controlled by the TVK Plc.
• Lost Time Injuries Frequency (LTIF) must not exceed 0.61.
• Incident inquiry rate (IIR) reaches 100%.
• Adopt a health promotion programme and keep regularity
rates to at least 30% by the end of 2012 and 40% from the end
of the implementation programme (2015).
• Ensure employees, contractors and our business partners are
HSE competent and have the resources necessary to perform
their tasks.
• Extend Defensive & Eco vehicle-driving practices to all relevant
employees and the Road Accident Rate (RAR) must not exceed
1.77.
RISK - Maintaining operational excellence
• Assess Personnel, Process and Product safety risks
systematically (using risk maps) by 2013 to reach levels as low
as reasonably practicable by end 2015, eliminate high healthrisk workplaces by 2014.
• Create and operate an emergency response framework that
supports business continuity.
• Operate the Process Safety Management System and keep it’s
KPI’s to avoid Process Incidents.

Prizes

and

Based on our performance during the year, the Ministry of National Development awarded the prize Cyclist Friendly Work Place in
the category of large companies to our Company. The prize will be
officially awarded at the end of February 2012. TVK won the same
prize in 2010 and 2009, too.
It had been for the fourth time in 2011 that Superbrands had
awarded us the prize Business Superbrands since the time of its
foundation. The organisation had awarded the prizes Magyarbrands
for the second time in 2011: TVK was again among the rated 25
companies, and this time, it was rated higher than in 2011 when
it had come in 9th. (The international Superbrands program was
launched in Great Britain by prestigious professionals of marketing
and communication one and a half decades ago. Indicative of the
success of the program, the prize is awarded in 86 countries of five
continents, today.)  

Recognition
Cyclist friendly
workplace
business
superbrands,
magyarbrands

ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP - Taking a wider environmental
perspective
• Improving energy efficiency and decreasing specific CO2
emission by implementing major technological developments
and optimising existing ES&DS and production assets both on
the side of supply and demand by 1% on TVK level (compared
to 2010).
• By cost-effectively executing the tasks determined in the
Technical Intervention Plan decrease the amount of known
(year 2010) environmental liabilities of TVK Plc. using risk
based approach by 5.8%.
• Reduce total water withdrawal & specific generated wastes
from routine operations and increase the ratio of reused/
recycled wastes.
• According to the Group level Biodiversity Action Plan (GBAP) to
develop and implement a Biodiversity Action Plan (BBAP) for
new projects from 2012 onwards and monitor the ecological
status of critical operations from 2014.

Sustainability

Future Challenges 2012

CONTROL - Promoting HSE culture and management
frameworks
• Create a behaviour-based culture; achieve and maintain top
quartile HSE performance by 2015.
• Develop and maintain an effective contractor HSE Management
Programme and ensure its mechanism by end 2012.
• We regard the criteria of sustainable development as an
unavoidable factor to our operation, and through our proactive
conduct we encourage our partners to do the same in 2012 as
well.
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Protecting the environment
TVK and MOL have fully harmonized their operations also
in connection with green house gases.

•

We have a permission to emit gases by the UHG5479-1
license. In 2011, CO2 ETS relevant emissions was 1.117
million tons, which is lower than the allocated quantity
recorded in the National Allocation Plan.
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Change of CO2 emissions:
As each process we operate complies with BAT requirements,
we have very little room to reduce CO2 emissions any more.
Moreover, petrol chemistry is highly energy intensive and hence energy consumption is a major cost item of our operations.
Consequently, improving energy efficiency can couple with
further reductions of CO2 emissions. Recognising this, we have
launched several projects aiming at improving our energy
efficiency and in doing so we took into account the financial
implications of potential CO2 emissions during the evaluation of
our project plans and investment decisions.

•

We have taken important measures to contribute to implementing
our climate strategy and to reaching additional improvements of
the efficiency of energy consumption, including the following key
actions:
• The quantity of steam necessary for TVK operations is ensured
by TVK Power Plant (TVK Erőmű) with high CO2 and energy
efficiency. Here we also utilize flue gas heat content in district
heating system.
• A project was started for Replacement of the oil firing in
SC-1 F8001 boiler with normal (NG) and inert-contained
natural gas (AFG – Alternative Fuel Gas). The technical and
economic preparation of the project has been finished; the
implementation is harmonized with the SC-1 general overhaul
scheduled in 2012. Reduction of the CO2 emission and of the
energy consumption is targeted with the project.
• The project of Preheating of combustion air for F8001 boiler also
aims increasing its energy-efficiency by utilizing the seasonal
excess of low pressure steam, saving natural gas accordingly.
Project preparation has also been finished; firms were selected
through a tendering procedure for supply and installation
of the new heat exchanger to be built in. Implementation is
scheduled for 2012, year of SC-1 plant’s turnover.
• A project was started for Replacement of the oil firing in
SC-1 F8001 boiler with normal (NG) and inert-contained
natural gas (AFG – Alternative Fuel Gas). The technical and
economic preparation of the project has been finished; the
implementation is planned for the 2011-2012, as it has to be

•

•

Clean air  2007-2011

harmonized with the SC-1 general overhaul scheduled in 2012.
Reduction of the CO2 emission and of the energy consumption
is targeted with the project.
Within Recovery of CH (propylene) gases at the railway loadingunloading station, two subprojects are being prepared in parallel: the propylene recovery and the LPG products recovery.
By collecting and processing a part of the CH-gases, inevitably
vaporized and presently flared during the tank cars loading
process, raw material consumption and CO2 emission are
reduced simultaneously.
Started to implement of Operational Management and Monitoring System (OMMS.)
The aim of the project is to integrate the production units DCS
systems and energy network monitoring systems to provide
actual database for monitoring of the total system energy
optimisation / asset operation
According to the interconnection pipeline connecting the
Steam Cracker plants we decreased significantly natural gas
consumption of Steam Cracker 1 by fuel gas transfer from
Steam Cracker 2. Due to the applied operational method
natural gas consumption has been reduced by 8 million m3
besides achieved CO2 emission saving was 17 kt.
By a full reconstruction of F-1009 furnace (convection zone,
radiation zone, quench cooler, inwall, burners, insulation) the
heat exchanging and steam producing on quench oil cooling
section more efficient thus we decreased the duty of boiler.
Due to the efficiency increase we saved 1.3 million m3 of
natural gas and 2.4 kt of CO2.
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Clean air
Emission monitoring data suggest that plant process emissions
of pollutants complied with the effective control limits. We spent
HUF 2 million on controlling compliance in 2011. We use the
intermittent measurement method envisaged in legal provisions
and regulatory requirements at the required frequency to control
local point sources. The tests are performed by accredited
laboratories.

2004

Sustainability

Climate change
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Air conditioning devices operated at TVK are filled with ozone
decomposing gases. Air conditioners are registered on the
Authority website and air conditioner leakage tests are carried
out by accredited partners in accordance with the applicable legal
requirements. The website registration fee of air conditioners is
HUF 0.3 million.

Fluegas emission refer to 1kt
ethylene production
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National Air Pollutant Monitoring Network performs regular
checks of the presence pollutants in the ambient air near TVK
and evaluates air quality. Air pollution levels are recorded by
the immission measurement stations located in neighbouring
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Waste management
In 2009 – at MOL Group a group level – concluded waste contracts.
Through involving the services of both active and passive
partners cost-efficiency of all wastes and monitoring of wastes
life time became ensured.
As a result of concluding the long-term joining contracts we
realized significant cost saving regarding the normal wastes
already in 2011.
Waste management at our Company is properly regulated in
accordance with the European Union’s norms. In the year 2011
our waste management activity met the instructions.
The updated recording of wastes (hazardous and non-hazardous)
at TVK Plc is carried out in the break-down as per unit line, in
accordance with formation processes.
In 2011, 5,587 tons of waste formed at the Company. We gave
5,368 tons to contracted partners for utilization and reuse. We
create HUF 69 million incomes due to treatment of waste.
In 2011, the hazardous waste treatment it reached HUF 33 million.
Change of hazardous waste volume is detailed in the following
diagram:

Hazardous waste per 1 kt of ethylene output
2007-2011

volume of hazardous wastes refer 
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The sold, then recycled products and recycled packaging
In order to meet the obligations on the utilisation of packaging
materials TVK Plc. concluded a contract with Öko-Pannon Kht for
undertaking manufacturer’s obligations. The Öko-Pannon Kht. –
as a coordinating organisation – performs its obligations instead
of TVK Plc., in order to reach exemption from the product fee
payment – in such a way that it concludes contracts with
waste treating and waste recycling companies, and performs
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its obligations set in the legal rules relating to the proper ratio
utilisation of packaging wastes using the services of the above
companies. In order to implement the above, TVK Plc. quarterly
supplies the data on quantities of the released packaging
materials and pays the utilisation fee to the coordinating
organisation. Öko-Pannon Kht. ensures implementation of the
required utilisation ratios against payment.
Water and soil
Potable water is provided by operating our own plant that
produces, cleans and distributes drinking water. This plant also
supplies potable water to MOL’s TIFO Refinery via our own
drinking water network.
Water quality protection and damage avert materials and
equipment purchase
New water quality protection and damage avert plan was made
for the whole area of the site in 2010. The plan was accepted
by ÉMI-KTVF. The predicted materials and equipment were
purchased and was stored in 2011, as defined in the emergency
response plan.
Legal Compliance
• Information and confession report were met the authorities’
obligations.
• We made a frame contract for continuous renewal water licences documentations
• The remediation and monitoring of after treatment lake system
were continued in year 2011. The monitoring report was sent
to ÉMI-KTVF till January 31, 2012.
Water permitting
• Water permit for operation for Ethylene-1 plant pre-treatment
system.
• Water permit for establish fire fighting pipeline renewal at
Tank yard.
• Water permit for operation fire fighting pipeline renewal at
Tank yard.
• Water permit for operation for treatment water from
remediation activity at Waste Water Treatment Plant.
• Actualized documentation of self-control of treated
wastewater emission.
• Renewal of water permission for the operation of the rainwater
and not contemned water pipe system at TVK Industrial site.
• Renewal of water permission for the operation of No. VI-VII
recirculation cooling system.
• Starting permitting procedure for operation water withdrawal
unit of Power plant of Tiszapalkonya.

Sustainability

settlements and the recorded levels are read and checked by the
Northern Hungarian Directorate of Environmental Protection,
Nature Conservation and Water Management (the Directorate).
We received no notice from the Directorate of pollutant
concentrations above control limit and that any such instances
were attributable to our activities.

No pollutant emissions in excess of control limit were identified in
the waste water discharged into the recipient (River Tisza) during
the sewer inspections held by the supervisory authority; hence no
penalty was imposed in respect of waste water discharged in 2011.
No environmental spillage of chemical substances in volumes
larger than 1 m3 occurred in 2011. We spent HUF 347 million on
sewage treatment and kept water quality substantially above the
level required under law.
Surface water withdrawal was happened from River Tisza.
TVK Annual Report 2011
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Health
Professional medical control is especially important because
of the large number of potential hazards of different nature
employees may get exposed to and the severity of potential
consequences. It is ascertained by job aptitude tests that cover
checking general health status, heart, blood, urine, hearing,
vision and respiratory functions.
To ensure the provision of professional and rapid first aid, unit
managers had to make sure that a person trained in providing
first aid is available in each work area and in each shift: at present
there are 298 trained first aid providers at 48 locations. At each
first aid providing place there is a modern first aid box that
contains even more facilities than it is prescribed in the legal
rule, and additional equipment (tourniquet, aluminium-covered
elastic patch, eye flusher, revitalizing mask, first aid bandage)
ensure providing efficient first aid.
Employees receive basic training and professional upgrading
from professional ambulance officers specialising in first aid. A
round-the-clock emergency service ensures that injuries and
impairments are treated professionally and swiftly (ambulance
car with ambulance officer).
In 2011 definite steps were made in the area of health
improvement. In addition to the measures required in the legal
rule the following were introduced:
• in order to survey the health status and to initiate the necessary
treatment medical examinations and screening test programs
were carried out, at which totally 363 persons took part.
Type of screening
Cardiovascular
Abdomen ultrasound
Dermatology
Tumour-marker
movement disorders screening
Thermal map screening
Allergology

Person
24
91
41
106
48
25
28

• General health status examinations (blood pressure, blood
sugar, body weight-body mass) were institutionally made to
several hundred employees in two cases (June festivity and the
autumn STEP day);
• Health plans supporting training on healthy way of living were
compiled in 12 cases.
• 58 people were educated in first aid.
• 152 people got immunization against H1N1.
• In 2011, a mobile lung screening station was set up in the
TVK area and 777 employees made use of the lung screening
opportunity.
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The Health Improving Program (STEP) approved as part of the
New Europe Program continued in the year 2011 as well. Health
care is first of all a culture-changing program, aim of which is to
provide assistance to our employees in revealing their health status and improving that.
In Phase3 of the Workplace Health Promotion Program the key
objective is to create an adequate company health culture which
encompasses the company’s health promotion traditions. Main
program elements are Extra Screening, STEP Active and Effective
Health Communication.
In 2011, the rate of participation in the TVK Nyrt STEP was
94.06%. 53 employees joined the STEP programme. The
participation rate indicator was introduced as of 2011 to denote
those TVK employees who took part in mass sports events or
health screenings provided by STEP at least three times. The
rate of participants was 22.09% which demonstrates that the
majority of the employees regularly pursuit some sports and do
pay attention to the healthy way of life.
In 2011, we received again (after 2009 and 2010) the title of
“Cycling-friend Workplace 2011” advertised by Ministry of
Environmental and Water and Ministry of National Development
and won by TVK, after the committee approved our summary
about actions performed in this year.
Work safety
We are committed to strengthening the culture of work safety
and security continuously, which means in plain terms that we
try to avoid any and all work related injuries. Our Company has
records of work related accidents going back to 1961. In addition
to the indicators used across the MOL Group for the analysis
of accidents, we also use to a specific value calculated (for one
thousand blue collar workers) from reportable incidents (injuries
healing over three days) as a benchmark as it allows comparison
with other employers and sectors. Our statistical record of
accident has shown a positive trend since 2000 and only a single
number of reportable accident occurred last year, which resulted
in a negligible specific value. As both the number and severity of
accidents shows a positive trend, the risk rating of our business
fell substantially.
We continued to investigate work related accidents in compliance
with the relevant laws and professional expectations. We used
the TRIPOD methodology with software support for revealing
cause and effect relationships and for formulating comprehensive
measures.

We also took several measures to improve our accident statistics
and to prevent extraordinary events in the course of the year:
• We regularly review security aspects at various stages of
construction projects to ensure that future operations comply
with the technical requirement of safety.
• We monitor extraordinary events and issue warnings if risks
are expected to change.
• We have finished the implementation of COMPASS project
that ensures unified, comprehensive risk investigation and
application of it we executed workplace risk assessments
in 2011. Parallel with it we continued the monthly risk
assessments in frame of site visits.
• We have also performed risk analyses for all job positions
concerned.
• In order to enhance safety evaluating of the preliminary risks
of repair jobs performed while operating was made in several
cases.
• Different level managerial checks assisted exploration of risk
sources. One specific form of such checks is the so called
behaviour audits. During 509 performed behaviour audits.
1,201 positive and 1,473 negative observations were done.
25% of the latter ones were associated with safety instructions
(SRV), 31% with unsafe activity (UA), 44% with failure to create
safe labour conditions (UC).
• We exerted robust effort to enhance the road safety
(by improving road conditions, installing traffic lights,
performing checks and posting warnings).
• Public road conditions were examined on a regular
(monthly) basis.
The behaviour audits conducted as part of our “Safety at
Work” project played a key role in improving our accident
statistics. Rolling out behaviour audits to all employees in
management positions is likely to make jobs safer and to prevent
near misses from turning into accidents.
The case studies published in our HSE Info helped draw
conclusions across the organisation.

Sustainability

Human focus

Process Safety Management System (PSM):
• DuPont experts held PSM trainings for system operation
according to best practice.
• The TVK PSM Manual is updated according to the new version
of MOL Group PSM regulation. Pre-start-up safety review of
plants and equipments in TVK local regulation was issued.
• We conducted HAZOP analyses of SC Tank farm and quench
oil uploading station so all production units have valid Process
Hazards Analysis.
• PSM audits help continuously improve the PSM system with
application of original DuPont check lists.
TVK Annual Report 2011
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Safety on Our Roads (SAFE TRAFFIC PROGRAM)
In view of our functional features, TVK employees are travelling
a lot, first of all by car. Therefore the road safety is one of our
significant workplace risk factors, which we have to deal with.
Instead of the following disposal of the road accidents, we make
efforts for prevention. To reduce the risks our colleagues face
on the roads, we have arranged defensive driving training and
supplemental driving courses for those employees whose work
requires regular driving.
Important road-safety events in 2011:
• We prepared an accession contract, joining to the MOL
defensive driving training contract, what is made sure to
execute defensive driving trainings till 2012.
• We placed two wall-newspapers in connection with road
safety in TVK site, and gave attention its regularly updating.
• We inform our colleagues about changing of “KRESZ” in the
course of training. We deal with special regard to bicycle
traffic.
• We investigated all of road accidents and incidents in 2011. We
prepared based on the next year action plans.
• We participate on the MOL Group Road Safety working group
works by our expert.
• We make opportunity to those colleagues whose driving a lot
to participant supplemental driving training.
• We took part in regularly refresh of MOL Group Road Safety
on-line site (MOS) to give specific commitments in connection
with road safety.
Road accidents
We had no road accident involved personal injuries in year
2011. Our RAR (road accident rate, RA/1M driven km) increased
unfortunately (6 events), and higher than the tolerated value.
We prepared action plans to avert further analogous cases.
SEVESO II compliance
We performed the practice of Internal Defence Plan according to
18/2006. (I.26.) decree 16.§ in this year too and NED took part in
it and paid tribute to it.
The modified and standardized Safety Report was accomplished
made in accordance with the relevant legal requirements.
During the year, and appeared to be effective from January 1,
2012 for Civil Protection Act and its implementing regulation
provided for in connection with additional tasks, we have
undertaken in the relevant internal regulations amendment.
Fire safety
Prevention of fire and damage cases is a highlighted issue in TVK
Plc.’s strategy.
In order to achieve these goals, our Company lays emphasis on
providing the required proper technical conditions.
2011 there was no fire case at the territory of TVK Plc.
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The fire prevention activity has done according to the relevant
legal requirement. During the inspections held by the supervisory
authority there wasn’t any negligence; hence no penalty was
imposed in respect of fire prevention activity in 2011.
According to fire prevention strategy we take the following
actions to improve the fire safety.
• Reconstruction of fire fighting pipeline was done in Tank yard
unit.
• Establish dry sprinkler system at Olefin-2 plant for Pyrogas
compressor protection.
• Renovate passive fire protection systems at Olefin-1, and
HDPE-1 plants.
• Establish new up-to date LowPolymer upload station at HDPE2 unit.
• To improve the safety we implement the SIL in PP-4 unit.
• We integrated the control of fire safety activities in one
supplier (TMM Ltd.).
Havaria drills
In order to practice actions to be taken in emergency cases in
2011 we held 34 anti-damage drills, involving the employees and
fellow organisations. The above drills were mainly carried out
at the acute fire and explosion dangerous units. After the drills
with participating units we evaluated on site the experiences
and took measures for eliminating the deficiencies emerged. The
drills levels have been increasing. 28 drills have excellent and 6
have good classification.
We prepared a cumulative evaluation on the experiences, which
was presented to training instructors and at training of voluntary
institutional fire-fighters during the courses. Based on the
evaluation, an action plan will be prepared to solve the problems
occurred during the exercises.

Labour practices and working conditions
Recruiting, developing and retaining trained resources of
high quality are key components in attaining our corporate
strategic goals. We seek to increase employee loyalty, to expose
employees to challenging tasks and to offer them opportunities
in each operational area while offering the best available working
conditions and remuneration. Moreover, our regular employee
satisfaction surveys and human resource related indicators offer
us continuous feedback about our HR performance and the areas
that need to be developed.
Complex Performance Management System (PMS)
for management
The Performance Management System (PMS) - as part of MOLGroup’s Annual People Cycle - harmonizes the Group’s strategy,
the business plan and the individual goals and activities of the
managers employed at the company.
Because of the complexity of the PMS it relates with other Human Resource processes as well. The performance evaluation
influences the amount of the annual managerial incentive and
the fulfilment of the individual goals is a critical input of the
annual salary increase as well. As part of the Annual People Cycle
it provides information for career and succession planning and
for the preparation of the Individual development Plans. So PMS
supports the professional and leadership development needs of
the managers indirectly.
Managers entitled for PMS – as well as his/her directly managed
team – influence divisional and group-level achievements with
their performance. Through PMS we ensure that this contribution
is realized in a distinguished important area in compliance with
the annual business plan. This way the managers can follow up
on how they contribute to the success of the company and how
they are rewarded for it.
We apply a different performance evaluation system based on
quantified performance indicators for those who work in sales
areas in order to emphasize the financial and efficiency indicators
of the company and to increase employee engagement.
Performance Evaluation System (PES)
At our company we operate a performance evaluation system
(PES) covering all employees in order to increase our employees’
motivation. It also helps us successfully adapt to the rapid
changes of our economic environment. The goal of the PES is
to demonstrate existing relationship between corporate and
individual performance thus promoting the realization of business goals. In this system the evaluating manager evaluates
the performance of the employee based on a pre-defined and
agreed target setting. The objective deliberation does not start
at the time of evaluation, but at the time of target setting. Each
employee has two organizational goals and two to six individual
goals.
Human capital development
Our company operates a HAY system. It means that job positions

will always be used as the basis for the remuneration system.
The largest benefit of the system is that it makes different
remuneration systems used by different companies easy to
compare. Our wage policy measures are determined by basic
wage increases in line with the projected rate of inflation as well
as by case by case wage increases associated with evaluating
individual job positions taking labour market incomes levels into
account and by the recognition of exceptional performance.
Career Management
Career Management System (CMS) is based on business’
strategic requirements and it supports succession planning
and the harmonized development of the organization and the
individuals as well:
• ensures a formal, targeted and yearly repeated succession
planning of managerial and expert positions,
• creates an internal talent pool in order to provide succession
for the current organization and therefore also supports the
growth strategy,
• supports the definition of the individual and organizational
development needs,
• supports the rotation planning within the group,
• ensures unanimous guidelines and transparency for advancing
on the individual career paths for all employees who take part
in this system.
Employing Fresh Graduates
We continued fresh graduates program in 2011 as well, what
is designed to offer job opportunities in a rapidly developing
organisation operating in an international environment to
career starters. The participants of this one-year program
were selected from several applicants with tests and with the
assistance of Assessment Centres. The program itself involves
“on-the-job” training and other forms of development as
well as events that promote seamless integration and
support the attainment of the functional and human
competencies needed for performing successfully. In the
first year, participants have the option to rotate between
various units of the organisation. When they do so, they
always receive individually tailored challenging tasks and
are thereby offered an insight into the operations of our
company. Mentors help participants with integration as well
as with personal and professional growth. Once the program is
completed, participants and their managers decide jointly about
how to progress at the company. 12 out of the 12 graduates who
joined the program in 2010 were offered the option to conclude a
fixed term employment contract with TVK and continue working
with us in 2011. 13 fresh graduates joined the company under
similar circumstances in 2011.

Sustainability

• The findings of SPC PSM GO LIVE Project (check by DuPont)
were taken into consideration in TVK. Individual target settings
have supported the operation of PSM system as well.
• Good practice: knowledge sharing with other businesses.

Employing young talents
In 2011 we focussed sharply on chemical secondary education
students and engineer students. Strategic recruitment activities
were performed at educational institutions. Our experienced
colleagues held lectures. Several units of the company received
students for professional practice in the summer, students were
welcomed to contact TVK engineers to consult about their thesis
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Our Integrated Management Systems

Training and development
It is our basic philosophy that highly qualified and motivated
labour fully committed to the company is one of the most factors
contributing to the successful attainment of our strategic goals.
The development of the company requires an increasing number
of well-trained and talented professional people. The rapid
changes of business environment and the constant modification
of job responsibilities require employees to acquire new trade
related knowledge and skills much faster now than at any time
in the past.

We have maintained our strategic goal of ensuring the availability
of highly trained staff. Accordingly, our employees participate
in professional trainings and competence building courses. We
give priority to conscious development programs and focus on
connecting employees from several units of the organisation.
Emphasis is given to case studies and dialogue evenings by
members of senior management, which complement training
courses.
We spent HUF 75 million in 2011 on training and education.
Our Staféta programme, which we launched in 2006, was
continued successfully. The program is a conscious and
orchestrated effort by the company to develop a second
line of foremen and chief system operators in our polymer
and olefin plants. Participants receive complex education,
including training sessions and a rotation system. Rotation
helps employees acquire several technologies operated outside
their own plant and understand corporate level processes.
Rotation is advantageous as it reduces monotony, creates wider
opportunities for substitution, facilitates organising work and
increases the potential skills of the company and individuals.
Rotation cycles last 5-10 days and a Staféta participant normally
has to take part in 7-8 rotation cycles based on an individually
tailored rotation plan.

New challenges, like changes caused by globalization, sustain
able development mean new requirements for quality manage
ment.
We hold the quality approach as one of the most important core
values in our Company’s management and operation, as well as
in its relationship with social and economic environment.
In May 2011, SGS Hungária Ltd. carried out a successful
surveillance audit on the renewal of certifications about the
integrated management system, operating at our company (ISO
9001, ISO 14001, OHSAS 18001).
Major tasks were set for our accredited laboratories: the
surveillance audit of Technical Inspection Technical Investigation
Laboratory and the renewal certification audit of Central
Laboratory (according to MSZ EN ISO/IEC 17025) which were
conducted by National Accreditation Organization. Both audits
were performed successfully.
The Standards’ requirements of the integrated management
system and accredited laboratories have been checked in the
framework of internal audits. At these audits prevention and the
propagation of “best practices” were emphasized. Outsourced
activities connecting to the Company’s operation are supervised
by planned and/or ad hoc audits. Actions to improve the system
and to correct determined non-conformities were taken and
checked. In order to meet Customers’ requirements TQM tools
have been applied successfully during the claim investigation
process.

Sustainability

and we also provided financial and professional support to
students of outstanding talent as part of our scholarship program. In 2011 TVK scholarship for chemical secondary school
students was carried on. 20 talented children received financial
support for a year.
TVK petrochemical departments at the University of Miskolc and at the University of Debrecen keep on supporting
our goal to educate the future engineer generation. The offsite petrochemical departments of the Universities at the TVK
site promote cooperation in research and education and also
support the recruitment activities of both the universities and
the company. Our experienced colleagues and world class
technologies support the practical part of the education.

The Customer satisfaction has been measured for several years.
In the frame of measuring customer satisfaction nearly 500
partners were interviewed in 2011. The purpose of the survey
was to identify our strengths as well as the areas needing
improvement and to monitor the effects of the corrective
measures taken as the result of the previous surveys. After the
analysis of the information new action plans will be prepared to
improve our activities and processes.
Innovative atmosphere and involving colleagues into
improvements have always high importance at our Company.
Idea Supporting System (ISS) has been operating since more than
10 years, main purpose of which is to find out and to get to know
colleagues’ ideas, proposals aiming more efficient and safer
operation. Due to ISS significant saving was realized year by year.
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Our social commitment

Social investment
In order to secure sufficiently qualified specialists, we keep close
and wide-ranging relationships with the institutes of medium
and higher education and support their educational work and
research activities. In the past year, we gave development support
to four universities and four vocational middle schools. (See the
details in subchapters Labour Practice and Work Environment).
In support of the education and training of future generations,
we endeavour to work up programs in order to
• Make the operations of the chemical industry and the activity
of TVK better known;
• Improve the degree of our social recognition and to make our
usefulness acknowledged;
• To make our measures for the preservation of the natural and
social environments known;
• Support the demand for the employment of new recruits.
Our project Around the TVK in one day initiated in spring of 2009,
supports the implementation of these objectives. Adjusted to
the features of the target age group of pupils, we had comic
books and animated films made to present TVK operations.
In order to catch the pupils’ attention, two characters, Etilla
and Propilla symbolizing ethylene and propylene molecules
take the children through the processes converting chemical
feedstock into polymer pellets first to supply raw materials
for the production of plastic products and parts for daily
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use. Indicative of the success of the program, the open week,
launched in the Kazinczy School, Tiszaújváros in 2009, has been
arranged every year ever since and expanded onto some other  
regional  schools in the form of a one day quiz.
To expand the program, in the months of November and December of 2011, 2,433 pupils under the age of ten in 15 schools
in the South Borsod region had the chance to see a puppet
show telling about the roles of plastics in a modern society and
about TVK as plastic feedstock producer.   
The year 2011 was the International Year of Chemistry. As part
of a series of international programs
• We supported the Akadémiai Kiadó (Academic Publishers) to
publish a book Misbelieves in Chemistry;
• Jointly with other companies and organisations, we contributed
to the preparation of the independent homepage for the program;
• We hosted the winners of the competition arranged for the
youth by MAVESZ on a site visit to TVK ;
• We supported the programs of Chemists’ Night organized
by the Miskolc University, including the setting of a Guinness
record in the category of chemical experiments.
As part of a program to spread an environmental-conscious
attitude, in autumn 2011, we initiated a research program to
asses the individual ecological footprints of our employees. By

the end of the year more than 430 persons, representing almost
40% of the employees had filled in the electronic questionnaire
prepared to collect the data online. At present, we are
evaluating the answers, and when the analysis of the data has
been completed in 2012, we will be able to give advice to our
employees how to reduce their individual ecological footprints
and personal carbon dioxide emissions. International experience
shows that those adopting environmental-conscious attitudes in
their private lives follow the same conduct at work. This way,
the success of the program can contribute to the reduced carbon
dioxide emissions of TVK.
Sponsorship policy and principlesk
Being dedicated to the education of the young generation by
tradition, our Company pays special attention to popularize
healthy lifestyle, to build a responsible approach to the natural
and social environments, and to appreciate sciences and arts.    
We make efforts to share our resources with those who do
professional work, have high skills, and are able to produce
extraordinary individual and group-scale achievements. We
intend to build long-term relationships and focus on supporting
those whose performance remains outstanding in the long run.  
Our sponsorship is concentrated on the region of the Borsod
County including the 31 settlements in the South Borsod region
and the town of Tiszaújváros. According to the types of support,
we give preference to those working in
• culture and sciences;
• sports;
• education and raising of children.
While allocating our donations, we give preference to the
applications meeting the above principles, instead of giving ad-hoc
donations. Our decision is made on the basis on predetermined
professional, strategic, and ethical aspects, while committees
of independent professionals assist our social investment
programs. According to the principles of credibility, reliability, and
independence, our sponsoring and donating actions are made
according to the most stringent ethical norms, and we expect all
of our employees and supporters to meet those.
Based on these principles, we do not support any political
objectives or parties, or governmental organisations or any
other organisations or programs, which abuse human rights,
or are against common good or public morals, or represent any
discriminative opinion

Without the intention of completeness, here is a list of our
supporters
Foundations:
- For the Future of Tiszaújváros (TJA – operated jointly with the
Local Government, Tiszaújváros)
- TVK for the South Borsod Region (DBA for the 31 settlements
except Tiszaújváros)
Both foundations were set up in the middle of 2000. During the
years since their foundation to the end of 2011, TJA distributed a
total amount of HUF 850 million as donations, while DB awarded
HUF 150 million.   
In the academic year beginning in autumn 2011, our Company
granted scholarships of HUF 6,000, each, to 42 gifted pupils in
need in 26 schools in the region for 10 months. The foundation
donated more than HUF 5.1 million to 23 applications for the
equipment and revamp of the community and welfare rooms in
educational institutions.   
Culture and sciences:
- Miskolc National Theatre
- Miskolc International Opera Festival
- Tiszadob Piano Festival
- Herman Ottó Museum
- Hungarian Chemical Museum
- Hungarian Chemists’ Association
Sports:
- TVK-Mali Triathlon Club
- Hungarian Triathlon Association
- TVK Triathlon Week and World Cup
- Tiszaújváros Water Sports Association – Kayak-Canoe

Sustainability

Our strategy focuses on the joint implementation of our
economic targets, environmental and social objectives.
Our social role and environmental objectives associated
with the economic targets are implemented through
our HSE policy and the quality, environmental, health,
and safety systems we operate on a company scale. Our
Company regards its commitment to the employees, safe
work environment, environmental protection, qualitycentred approach, and social role as being its highly
important duties.
We treat our employees responsibly. We respect human
rights as well as the values and differences of the local
and national cultures. Our objective is to secure equal
opportunities to all our employees in order to help them
further train themselves and do their daily work in safe
conditions.

In addition to supporting these highlighted programs, we
consider the training of young athletes an equally important task;
therefore, we gave financial support to the Tiszaújváros sports
clubs securing training opportunities to the children of the region,
in relation to the number of the members of each club.
Our Company spent nearly HUF 50 million for sponsorship
and donations in 2011. Our support is based upon the parties’
voluntary participation and agreement, and it is implemented
according to predetermined conditions and objectives. During
such cooperation, we specifically respect the independence, free
opinions, objectives and activities of the sponsored persons, and
we do not accept or offer any unfair advantage, either direct or
indirect.  

TVK Annual Report 2011

129

Performance indicators
Economic power indicators

Revenues (mHUF)

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

GRI

308,736

337,646

323,406

265,372

365,185

411,462

EC1

Hazardous Waste (from the current activity)

403

808

216

2,049

2,279

3,364

EC1

Hazardous Waste (from the old activity)

Other revenues (mHUF)
Operating cost (mHUF)

287,081

305 481

319,067

274,931

366,777

420,728

EC1

Non Hazardous Waste (from the current activity)

Employee wages and benefits (mHUF)

9,766

10,134

9,328

9,743

9,646

9,404

EC1

Non Hazardous Waste (Communal)

Payments to capital investors (mHUF)

1,025

0

8,963

1,992

0

1,991

EC1

Non Hazardous Waste (From the old activity)

Payments to governments (mHUF)

5,009

9,556

6,702

7,519

5,032

4,695

EC1

All Eliminated Waste

15

0

1

0

11

15

EC4

Reused/Recycled Hazardous and Non Hazardous Waste

Financial assistance received  from government (mHUF)

n.a

n.a

n.a

57.4

49.5

66.7 EN21

2,444

1,862

2,440

2,507

2,437

2,326

EN22

11

1,478

33

44

13

45

EN22

1,657

711

854

4,806

1,414

3,216

EN22

713

692

714

334

326

323

EN22

59,279

14,928

0

6

4

0.6

EN22

3,301

2,576

3,200

3,001

3,707

4,941

EN22

59,724

17,100

808

4,653

488

427

EN22

Customer Satisfaction

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

GRI

Waste Disposed / Landfilled

n.a.

n.a.

144

20

0

0

EN22

Petrochemicals customer loyalty index (%)*

12.96

13.28

14.39

19.52

15.52

16.60

PR6

Waste Reused / Recycled

n.a.

n.a.

0

0

0

0

EN22

Waste Composted

n.a.

n.a.

4

566

41

673

EN22

Waste Incinerated

n.a.

n.a.

205

856

490

145

EN22

Environmental power indicators
Air
CO2 (ton)
CO2 (under ETS) (ton)
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from electricity
consumption – estimated (t)
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from other indirect
energy consumption (steam, heat, etc.) – estimated (t)
ODS (Ozone-Depleting Substances) (ton)
SO2 (ton)
VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) (ton)

GRI

1,210,730

1,147,068

1,056,552

1,127,707

1,116,721

EN16

69

27

1,147,068

1,056,552

1,127,707

1,116,721

EN16

n.a.

n.a.

n.a.

190,041

184,754

181,584

EN16

Total primary energy consumption

n.a.

Electricity

n.a.

Other indirect energy (steam, heat, etc.)

n.a.

Total indirect energy consumption

n.a.

n.a.

n.a.

n.a.

141,727

133,210

139,720

EN16

n.a.

n.a.

0

0

0

0

EN19

57

72

62

88.17

53.39

68.24

EN20

28.54

1.75

2.33

EN20

539.36

550.95

EN20

CO (ton)

71

83

96

167.6

109.6

163.26

EN20

PM (Particulate Matter) (ton)

23

23

25

16.86

23.08

39.18

EN20

n.a.

n.a.

0.0727

0.028

n.a.

n.a.

EN20

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

GRI

410,845

368,641

345,385

234,934

260,955

221,298

EN8

11,136,324

11,411,436

11,048,817

10,277,495

10,277,095

10,229,938

EN8

Surface water withdrawal (m3)

n.a.

n.a.

4,138,027

4,216,203

3,290,075

3,703,767

EN8

Ground water withdrawal (m )

n.a.

n.a.

345,385

234,934

260,955

221,298

EN8

Rainwater collected directly and stored (m3)

n.a.

n.a.

0

0

0

0

EN8

n.a.

n.a.

6,565,406

5,826,358

6,726,065

6,304,873

EN8

Total volume of recycled and reused water (m )

n.a.

n.a.

934,770

859,944

1,372,293

1,373,944

EN8

Total water discharge (m3)

n.a.

n.a.

5,075,205

4,864,544

5,214,677

5,031,114

EN21

TPH (Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons) (ton)

22.5

16

11.5

19.20

14.94

14.6

EN21

COD (Chemical Oxygen Demand) (ton)

275

265

172

227.40

179.9

203.8

EN21

BOD (Biological Oxygen Demand) (ton)

162

154

100

121.6

88,6

94,3

EN21

88.6

94.3

EN21

49,5

66,7

EN21

SS (Solid Substances) (ton)

EN22

1,111,518

809.87

3

0
2011

GRI

24

Wastewater from another organization (m )

0
2010

2011

560

3

0
2009

2010

28

3

0
2008

2009

618

Total water withdrawal (m3)

n.a.
2007

2008

27

Water

n.a.
2006

2007

552

Drinking water consumption (m3)

Waste to Deep Well Injection

2006

NOx (ton)

Hazardous air pollutants (HAP) (ton)

130

Waste (t)

Energy Consumption Data (GJ)
Natural gas

n.a.

n.a.

n.a.

1,403,194

1,693,172

1,167,828

EN3

Other hydrocarbon (fuel, gas, etc.)

n.a.

n.a.

n.a.

17,322,049

18,391,049

18,674,513

EN3

n.a.

n.a.

18,725,243

20,084,221

19,842,341

EN3

n.a.

n.a.

1,938,093

2,015,495

1,980,912

EN4

n.a.

n.a.

2,362,124

2,337,710

2,328,664

EN4

n.a.

n.a.

4,300,217

4,353,205

4,309,576

EN4

Spills and discharges

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

GRI

Number of spills (pieces)

0

0

0

0

0

0

EN23

Volume of spills(m3)

0

0

0

0

0

0

EN23

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

GRI

49

294

38

127

223

315

EN30

HSE related penalties (mHUF)

1.02

1.20

0

0

0

0.1

EN28

Environmental rule contravention (pieces)

n.a.

n.a.

0

0

0

1

EN28

HSE related expenditures
Environmental investments (mHUF)
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Social performance indicators
Employees

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

GRI

Total workforce(Closing on 31st December)(person)

1,200

1,147

1,139

1,139

1,114

1,103

LA1

Number of full-time employees (Annual average) (person)

1,396

1,187

1,153

1,158

1,138

1,119

LA1

Number of employees laid off (person)

282

76

52

44

60

37

LA2

Employee turnover rate (%)

20.2

6.4

4.5

3.8

5.4

3.3

LA2

Absentee rate (AR) (%)

18.9

16.3

15.8

16.4

15.3

14.2

Employees represented by trade unions (%)

64.5

56.1

53

52.6

51.5

49.3

Safety

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

GRI

Lost Time Injury (LTI) (pieces)

5

0

1

1

1

1

LA7

2.08

0

0.49

0.50

0.50

0.51

LA7

TROIF (Total Reportable Occupational Illnesses Frequency)

0

0

0

0

0

0

LA7

Number of fatalities for employees (pieces)

0

0

0

0

0

0

LA7

Number of fatalities for contractors(pieces)

0

0

0

0

0

0

LA7

Number of fires(pieces)

4

3

0

0

3

0

Lost Time Injury Frequency(LTIF)

Fire damage (mHUF)

43.51

25.8

0

0

2.5

0

Diversity

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Ratio of women in total workforce (%)

31.9

33.1

34.5

32.5

32.6

32.1

LA13

Ratio of women in managerial position (%)

13.3

8.3

5.3

7.5

7.5

5.4

LA13

GRI

Ratio of women in non- managerial position (%)

38.1

34.2

36.8

33.5

33.8

33.2

LA13

Other social

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

GRI

Total training cost / total FTE (HUF)

n.a.

n.a.

150,000

76,212

74,500

67,628

LA10

Donations (mHUF)

90.8

88.2

66.7

66.9

49,89

49,95

Training hours/total FTE (hours)

n.a.

n.a.

n.a.

31.59

79,8

25,5

Corporate governance
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Corporate governance
Name

Position

Date of assignment

Independence status

György Mosonyi

Chairman of the Board

26.04.2002

non-independent

Gyula Gansperger

Board member

20.04.2006

independent

Ferenc Horváth

Board member

01.05.2011

non-independent

Miklós Kamarás

Board member

01.05.2011

independent

Dr. Péter Medgyessy

Board member

20.04.2006

independent

dr. Zoltán Nagy

Board member

01.05.2011

independent

Árpád Olvasó

Deputy Chairman of the Board

29.08.2000 - 31.05.2011

non-independent

Michel-Marc Delcommune

Board member

03.11.2000 - 30.04.2011

non-independent

Molnár József

Board member

20.04.2001 - 30.04.2011

non-independent

Vratko Kassovic

Board member

28.04.2005 - 30.04.2011

independent

Operation of the Board of Directors
The Board acts and makes resolutions as a collective body.

The Corporate governance of TVK Plc. complies with
the requirements of the Budapest Stock Exchange, the
guidelines of the Hungarian Financial Supervisory Authority
and the relevant capital market regulations. Furthermore
TVK regularly reviews the principles it applies in order to
comply with international best practices in this area of the
business as well. The voluntary approval of the declaration
on the Budapest Stock Exchange Corporate governance
Recommendations by the Annual General Meeting in
2006, before the official deadline, served as testament to
the Company’s commitment to Corporate governance. A
separate section of the TVK website (www.tvk.hu) is devoted
to Corporate governance and where the company publishes
its Corporate governance policy, convocations to the general
meeting, articles of association, and Code of Ethics.
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Board of Directors
TVK’s Board of Directors acts as the highest governance body
of the Company and as such has collective responsibility for all
corporate operations.
The Board’s key activities are focused on achieving increasing
shareholder value, improving efficiency and profitability, and
ensuring transparency in corporate activities. It also aims to
ensure appropriate risk management, environmental protection,
and conditions for safety at work.   
Given that TVK and its subsidiaries effectively operate as a
single unit, the Board is also responsible for enforcing its aims
and policies, and for promoting the TVK culture throughout the
entire Group.
The principles, policies and goals take account of the Board’s
specific and unique relationship with TVK’s shareholders, the
executive management and the Company. The composition of
the Board reflects this with the majority (four of six members)
made up of non-executive, non-independent directors.
The members of the Board of Directors and their independence
status (professional CVs of the members are available on
corporate homepage):

The Board Charter covers:
- scope of the authority and responsibilities of the Board,
- provision of information to the Board, the frequency of reports,
- main responsibilities of the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman,
- order and preparation of Board meetings and the permanent items of the agenda, and
- decision-making mechanism, and the manner in which the implementation of resolutions is monitored.
Members of the Board have signed a declaration on conflict of interest and they have reported their position as director in the Board
to their employer or principal as regards other key management positions.
The Board of Directors and its Committee reviews continuously its activity on a yearly basis.
Report of the Board of Directors on its 2011 activities
In 2011, the Board of Directors held 4 meetings with an average attendance rate of 92%. Regular agenda items on the meeting
are reports by the CEO on the activities pursued since the last Board meeting, an overview of petrochemical market and the
current situation of the company.
The Board of Directors respectively paid highlighted attention to the improving efficiency, cost-cutting, decreasing external
environment effects, production and sales improvement, market grabbing and product development, and capital expenditure
projects.

Corporate governance

TVK has always been committed to apply the highest
standards of Corporate governance structure and practice.
The basis of that is using such Corporate governance
system that meets the national and even the international
expectations. TVK summits its declaration on Corporate
Government practice in line with the Corporate governance
Recommendations issued by the Budapest Stock Exchange
(BSE) each year since 2004. The Board of Directors accepts
and does its best to observe the Recommendations in the
course of running the Company and its operations.

The Board adopted a set of rules (Charter) to govern its own activities when the company was founded (on December 31, 1991); these
rules are regularly updated to ensure continued adherence to best practice standards.

Committees of the Board of Directors
Certain specific tasks are carried out by the Board’s Committees. The following rules do apply to the Committees, created by the BoD.:
These Committees have the right to approve preliminary resolutions concerning issues specified in the Decision-making and
Authorities List, which sets out the division of authority and responsibility between the Board and the executive management.  
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- The responsibilities of the Committees are determined by the Board of Directors.
- The Chairman of the Board of Directors may also request the Committees to perform certain tasks
The members and chairs of the Committees are elected by the Board of Directors.

Incentives provided for non-executive directors
The basis of the effective incentive scheme for non-executive directors was approved by the ordinary Annual General Meeting (AGM)
in 2007.

Currently, the Board allocates responsibilities to the following Committee:

• Fixed remuneration:
A resolution of the Annual Ordinary General Meeting at April 19, 2007 provided that effective as of the day of the Annual General
Meeting those Board members who are not employed by TVK Plc. or any other subsidiaries of MOL Group should receive the time
proportionate net payment per year of their mandate as follows:    
- Board members
50,000 EUR/year
- Chairman
75,000 EUR/year

Finance and Audit Committee:
Members and dates of appointment (professional backgrounds of members are available on company homepage):
Name

Position

Date of assignment

Ferenc Horváth

Chairman

01.05.2011

Miklós Kamarás

Member

01.05.2011

Dr. Zoltán Nagy

Member

01.05.2011

József Molnár

Chairman

26.04.2002 – 30.04.2011

Michel-Marc Delcommune

Member

26.04.2002 – 30.04.2011

Vratko Kassovic

Member

28.04.2005 – 30.04.2011

Árpád Olvasó

Member

26.04.2002 – 31.05.2011

• Other benefits:
Non resident Board members who are non – Hungarian citizens and have to travel to Hungary to attend the meetings shall receive
EUR 1,500 for a maximum of fifteen meetings attended in person.
Incentive system for the top management
The Board evaluates the performance of the management of the Company individually and at company level once a year and sets the
responsibilities and the related targets of achievement for management for the given period according to the system of incentives.

Responsibilities: The committee is responsible for promoting the efficiency of the Board regarding issues related to finance, risk
management and financial audit as well as for matters designated to it by the Board.
Report of the Audit Committee on its 2011 activities
In 2011, the Finance and Audit Committee held 4 meetings with a 100% average attendance rate. The regular agenda items included
the audit of all public financial reports, providing assistance with the auditor’s work and the regular monitoring of internal audit.

Relationship between the Board and the Executive Management
The Matrix of Decision Making Competencies (MDMC) specifies the powers and competencies delegated by the Board to the
Management in an attempt to ensure the most efficient enforcement of the business, HSEQ, ethics, risk management and internal
control policies specified by the Board. The objective of the MDMC is to maximise the shareholder value of the Company and to
capture unambiguously the decision-making powers and competencies so as to reach operational and financial excellence.

Operating a system of compensation and adopting practical solutions in line with the strategy of the company is a guideline for
developing the structure of performance evaluation and remuneration in a way that it may be used efficiently for attaining the
objectives of the Company whilst giving priority to motivating key employees in the organisation. In case of managers of the company,
in all financial year, performance goals, relevant to the business strategy are determined, and these are evaluated by the one level
higher manager, in case of the senior management it is done by the CEO.
Other fringe benefits: These include company optional benefits (Cafeteria), cars (also used for private purposes), life insurance,
accident insurance, travel insurance, liability insurance, and an annual medical check up.
Principles and framework of the Company’s long-term incentive scheme for senior employees
According to Section 302 of the Company Act, “it is the exclusive competence of the members’ meeting to bring obligatory or
non-obligatory decisions about the long-term remuneration and the guidelines or frameworks of the long-term incentive system
related to the senior officers, supervisory board members and employees in managerial positions, depending on the provisions of
the Articles of Association”.
The General Meeting has already decided on the remuneration of senior officers with the GM resolutions of 15/2010. (04.15.).

Senior management
Members and dates of appointment (professional backgrounds of members are available on company homepage):
Name

Position

Zsolt Pethő

Senior Vice President Petrochemicals, Chief Executive Officer

Árpád Olvasó

Chief Executive Officer

Date of assignment
01.06.2011
  01.07.2003 –
31.05.2011
01.07.2007

Gyula Hodossy

Chief Financial Officer

Krisztina Petrényiné Szabó

Polymer Marketing and Sales Manager

01.10.2009

Tivadar Vályi Nagy

Petrochemical Production Manager

01.07.2007

János Bóta

Head of Petrochemical Technology and Project Development

Tamás Pénzes

Head of Human Resources

Adrienn Ráczné Bodnár

Head of Human Resources

01.08.2007
01.07.2004 31.12.2011
03.01.2012

Note: Mr. Tamás Pénzes, Head of HR, left TVK, and as from January 3, 2012 Adrienn Bodnár Rácz is the Senior Manager of Human Resources
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Regarding its senior employees and management, TVK Plc. operates such an incentive system that encourages in short term the
achievement of the annual financial indexes and the personal tasks and serves the interest in increasing the share price in long run,
while it also creates long-term and sustainable interest in improving profitability.
The long-term incentive system consists of two parts: the incentive based on share options (option incentive) and the incentive built
on profit sharing (or based on added value).
The option incentive is a cash-based wage incentive, calculated annually based on the call option related to the MOL shares,
which operates in 5-year (2+3 years) periods starting annually. The term of the option is 5 years. The first year of every option
period is the year which the incentive aims at. The waiting period lasts till the end of the second year, during this period there
is no chance to redeem the incentive. Incentive can be redeemed only in the last three years.
The incentive built on profit sharing encourages the long-term sustainable increase of profitability based on the “methodology
of added value”, thus ensuring that interests of those participating in the incentive system are the same as the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. The incentive built on profit sharing is a cash-based wage incentive, calculated annually based on the
increase in the added value acknowledged by the extent of the determined base incentive in comparison with the over-cost result of
the invested capital.

Corporate governance

The role of the MDMC is to “translate” Corporate governance rules by capturing the key decision making point in operating the
business and the related competences in the organization. Hence the MDMC identifies the major control points required for efficient
process development and operation.

The extent of the incentive built on profit sharing is determined according to the classification categories belonging to the managerial
levels.
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Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board is responsible for monitoring and supervising the Board of Directors on behalf of the shareholders.
The Articles of Association of TVK provides that the Supervisory Board of the Company should have at least three, but no more than
fifteen members. At present the Supervisory Board has five members. As provided in the Company Act, 1/3 of the members of this
body include employee representatives, hence two members of the Supervisory Board of TVK represent employees and there are
three non-executive members appointed by the shareholders.
The members of the Supervisory Board and their independence status (professional backgrounds of members are available on
company homepage):

László Gyurovszky
dr. Gyula Bakacsi
dr. György Bíró
László Réti
Turóczy Judit
Tamás Magyar

Position
SB chairman
SB member
SB member
SB member
SB member

Date of assignment
22.06.2007
19.04.2007
19.04.2007
19.04.2007
29.04.2010

Independence status

SB member
SB deputy chair  
SB member

21.04.2011
22.06.2007 - 20.04.2011
20.04.2001 - 20.04.2011

non-independent (employee representative)

independent
independent
independent
non-independent (employee epresentative)

non-independent (employee representative)

In 2011, the Supervisory Board held 4 meetings with an average attendance rate of 100%.
Remuneration of the members of the Supervisory Board

External auditors
The auditor is elected by the General Meeting of TVK.
Ernst & Young Könyvvizsgáló Kft. acts as the auditor of TVK since 2003. The Ordinary Annual General Meeting held on April 14, 2011
elected Ernst & Young Könyvvizsgáló Kft. once again as auditor of the Company and an agreement was concluded for auditing the
annual reports closing the business year of 2011. The engagement is in force until the conclusion of the Ordinary Annual General
Meeting held in 2012 to decide on the approval of the 2011 annual reports.
The audit agreement provides that Ernst & Young Kft. should audit the consolidated and non-consolidated annual reports drawn
up under the Accounting Act and the consolidated and non-consolidated annual reports drawn up under International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS, formerly IAS). The aforementioned financial statements have been audited as required by National Audit
Standards, International Standards of Auditing and the provisions of the Accounting Act and any other acts and laws on auditing. The
auditors ensure the continuous nature of performing the audit assignment by working on site and by participating at the meetings of
key TVK bodies as well as through other forms of consultation.
Furthermore, the auditor reviews the quarterly stock exchange flash report but issues no auditor’s statement, as flash reports are
not fully audited.

According to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting held on April 19, 2007, effective as of the day of the Annual General
Meeting the Supervisory Board members should receive the net payment per month of their mandate as follows:
- Board members
1,000 EUR/month
- Chairman
1,500 EUR/month
Non resident Supervisory Board members who are non – Hungarian citizens and have to travel to Hungary to attend the meetings
shall receive EUR 500 for a maximum of fifteen meetings attended in person.

In 2011, Ernst & Young Kft. also delivered other services to TVK Plc. as follows: Supervised the data of TVK’s Hungarian subsidiaries
supplied to the consolidation. (In case of the foreign subsidiaries the operational process became significantly simplified, therefore
the control of the accounting process was made by the Accounting department of the company.)
Fees Paid to Auditors, 2010-2011 (HUF million)

Audit Committee
In 2007, the general meeting appointed the Audit Committee comprised of independent members of the Supervisory Board. The
Audit Committee strengthens the independent control over the financial and accounting policy of the Company. The independent
Audit Committee’s responsibilities include the following activities:
- providing opinion on the report as prescribed by the Accounting Act,
- auditor proposal and remuneration,
- preparation of the agreement with the auditor,
- monitoring the compliance of the conflict of interest rules and professional requirements applicable to the auditor, co-operation
with the auditor, and proposal to the Board of Directors or General Meeting on necessary measures to be taken, if necessary,
- evaluation of the operation of the financial reporting system, proposal on necessary measures to be taken, and
- providing assistance to the operation of the Supervisory Board for the sake of supervision of the financial reporting system.
Members of the Audit Committee and dates of appointment (professional backgrounds of members are available on company
homepage):
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Name

Position

Beginning of assignment

László Gyurovszky

AC chairman
AC member

22.06.2007
19.04.2007

dr. Gyula Bakacsi

AC deputy chair
AC member

22.06.2007
19.04.2007

dr. György Bíró

AC member

19.04.2007

2010

2011

Fee for the audit of TVK Plc.

35.1

35.1

Other audit related services

4.2

4.2

Validation of NRTA project
Total

0.0

0.5

39.3

39.8

The Board of Directors does not think that any of the services rendered by Ernst & Young Kft. under the aforementioned titles
jeopardise its independence as auditor.

Relationship with the shareholders, insider trading 
The Board is aware of its commitment to represent and promote shareholders’ interests, and recognises that it is fully
accountable for the performance and activities of the TVK Group.  To help ensure that the Company can meet shareholders’
expectations in all areas, the Board continually analyses and evaluates developments, both in the broader external environment
as well as at an operational level.

Corporate governance

Name

Report of the Audit Committee on its 2011 activities
In 2011, the Audit Committee held 4 meetings with a 100% average attendance rate. In addition to the regular items on the agenda,
including the audit of all public financial reports, providing assistance with the auditor’s work and the regular monitoring of internal
audit, the Committee also devoted a considerable amount of time to the following topics:
- control of financial and relevant reports,
- observation of the effectiveness of internal audit system,
- ensuring the independency and objectivity of the external auditor.

Formal channels of communication with shareholders include the Annual Report and Accounts and the quarterly results reports, as
well as other public announcements made through the Budapest Stock Exchange (primary exchange) and the London Stock Exchange.
Regular and extraordinary announcements are published on PSZÁF (Hungarian Financial Supervisory Authority) publication site and
on TVK’s homepage. In addition, presentations on the business, its performance and strategy are given to shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting and extraordinary General Meetings. Furthermore, investors are able to raise questions or make proposals at any
time during the year, including the Company’s General Meeting. Investor feedbacks are regularly reported to the Board of Directors.
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TVK’s Investor Relation specialist is responsible for the organisation of the above activities as well as for the day-to-day management
of TVK’s relationship with its shareholders (contact details are provided in the company’s homepage). Extensive information is also
made available on TVK’s website (www.tvk.hu), which has a dedicated section for shareholders and the financial community.
TVK Group is committed to the fair marketing of publicly-traded securities. Insider dealing in securities is regarded as a criminal
offence in most of the countries in which we carry out business. Therefore, we require not only full compliance with relevant laws,
but also the avoidance of even the appearance of insider securities trading and consultancy.
TVK Group employees:
- should not buy or sell shares in TVK or any other company while in possession of insider information,
- should not disclose insider information to anyone outside the company, without prior approval,
- should be careful, even with other TVK Group employees, should disclose insider information to a co-worker when they have
permission to do so and if it is necessary to do their job,
- should protect insider information from accidental disclosure.

Exercise of shareholders’ rights, general meeting participation
Voting rights on the general meeting can be exercised based on the voting rights attached to shares held by the shareholders. Every
ordinary share entitles the holder thereof to have one and one hundredth vote. The actual voting power depends on how many
shares are registered by the shareholders participating in the general meeting.
A condition of participation and voting at the general meeting for shareholders is that the holder of the share(s) shall be registered
in the Share Register. The depositary shall be responsible for registering the shareholders in the Share Register pursuant to the
instructions of such shareholders in line with the conditions set by the general meeting invitation.
The conditions to participate in the general meeting are published in the invitation to the general meeting. Invitations to the general
meeting are published on company homepage. The ordinary general meeting is usually held in late April, in line with the current
regulation.

of the root causes of risks and contributes to a greater awareness of different risk types. As a result, senior management can get a
firmer grip on the risks that influence corporate profits and can determine the elements of risk to be retained and those ones that
require mitigation actions.
Moreover, with a well-defined risk appetite, ERM helps to set up a business portfolio with optimum risk-return features by taking risk
analysis results into account in the decisions on capital allocation.
ERM also sets the framework for developing business continuity plans, crisis management and other risk management activities. In
2009 the framework of Business Continuity Management was prepared at MOL Petrochemical Division.  This aims to shorten the
period of returning to normal operations after a high impact operational breakdown and will also highlight issues and areas must be
developed.
The prices of the most important feedstock used by the company and the olefin and polymer products produced by TVK are pegged
to the global market prices of the same products. From economic point of view TVK has a net long position in EUR, while it has net
short USD and HUF cash flow positions.
In 2011, TVK did not conclude any derivative transactions to hedge against foreign exchange rate risks however short-term hedge
deals were done in order to manage the commodity risk exposure. The company had no open foreign exchange futures positions as
of December 31, 2011.
The credit facilities of the company were denominated in EUR in order to reduce the foreign exchange rate risk embedded in the
operation.
The company covers most of its trade receivables with credit insurance to mitigate liquidity risk. Also, it carefully examines the credit
worthiness of the prospective customers and assesses whether or not the conditions for continuous payment are attainable before
signing a new contract.
In order to exploit opportunities of the portfolio effects TVK’s financial risk exposures (e.g. commodity, FX rates, interests rates) are
managed on MOL Group level.

The ordinary general meeting, based on the proposal of Board of Directors approved by the Supervisory Board, shall have the
authority to determine profit distribution, i.e. the amount of the profit after taxation to be reinvested into the Company and the
amount to be paid out as dividends.
The starting date for the payment of dividends shall be defined by the Board of Directors in such way as to ensure a period of at least
10 working days between the first publication date of such announcement and the initial date of dividend distribution. Only those
shareholders are entitled to receive dividend, who are registered in the share register of the Company on the basis of shareholders
identification executed on the date published by the Board of Directors in the announcement on the dividend payment. Such date
relevant to the dividend payment determined by the Board of Directors may deviate from the date of general meeting deciding on
the payment of dividend. However, the date of the shareholder identification made in compliance with the regulations of KELER in
respect of the dividend payment shall not take place more than five working days after the general meeting passing a resolution on
the payment of dividend.
Corporate governance

Integrated Risk Management 
The aim of risk management in TVK is to support corporate operations to be as safe as possible. The risk management policy of the
company handles significant risks associated with its business activities.
The risk management guidelines covering the management of foreign exchange rate and commodity price risks, as well as property
damage, business interruption, liability, customer, technical, safety, compliance and environmental risks.
Since 2006, the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system has been applied to manage risks at MOL Group level. The ERM is a
widely accepted risk management method that also contributes to the corporate value creation as a decision-supporting tool thereby
enhancing the protection of the shareholder value. The central idea behind the concept is the application of a common method in a
consolidated way to calculate and manage the variety of (financial, operating, compliance and strategic) risks. During the ERM process
potential risks are identified and the risk-return relationships of individual divisions, projects and decisions become comparable, which
contributes to developing a culture of risk awareness within the organization. The measurement of risks facilitates the identification
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Board of
Directors
2

1. György MOSONYI (63)
Vice President of the Supervisory Board of INA d.d.
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of SLOVNAFT a. s.
Chairman of the Sustainable Development Committee of MOL’s Board of Directors between 2006 and 2011;
permanent invitee since 2011.
From 1974 onwards, he worked for the Hungarian Agency of Shell International Petroleum Co. and from 1986 he held the position
of commercial director. In 1991 he worked at Shell headquarters, London. Between 1992-1993 he was the managing director of
Shell-Interag Ltd. and between 1994-1999 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Shell Hungary Rt. During this period he became
Chairman of Shell’s Central & East European Region and CEO of Shell Czech Republic in 1998. Vice-chairman of the Hungarian Chamber
of Commerce & Industry., member of the Joint Venture Association’s Presidium, president of the World Petroleum Council Hungarian
National Committee.
MOL Group CEO and member of the Board of Directors of MOL Plc. between 1999 and 2011.

2. Ferenc HORVÁTH (52)
Deputy Chairman of the Board since June 22, 2011
Member of the Board since May 1, 2011
Executive Vice President of MOL Group Downstream Division since May 1, 2011
He is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of IES Mantua since November, 2007 and he has member of the Board of Directors of
SLOVNAFT a.s. since May, 2007
Certified Economist
From 1984 until 1991, he worked for Mineralimpex, the Hungarian Foreign Trade Company for Oil & Mining Products, in the fields
of crude oil and natural gas imports, and crude oil product exports. Between 1991 and 1997, he was Managing Director of Allcom
Trading Co., the Hungarian Mineralimpex-Phibro Energy joint-venture, dealing with the European trading of crude oil and crude oil
products. He joined MOL Plc in 1998 as Director of LPG Business Unit, and worked from January 2001 onwards as Sales Director, being responsible for the sales of MOL’s entire product range (petrol, diesel, petroleum products, bitumen, LPG, lubricants, and so on).
Between 2002 and 2003 he was Commercial Director, sales activities having broadened to encompass the supply of crude oil and raw
materials necessary for the refining of crude oil. From November 2003 he is the Executive Vice President of MOL Refining & Marketing
Division until May 1, 2011 when he has been nominated as the Executive Vice President of MOL Group Downstream Division.

3. Árpád OLVASÓ (53)
OLVASÓ, Árpád (53)
Deputy Chairman of the Board since April 26, 2002 to May 31, 2011
Member of the Board from August 29, 2000 to 31 May, 2011
CEO of TVK Plc. until May 31, 2011
Qualified Chemical Engineer, MBA
Mr. Olvasó qualified as chemical engineer at the Chemical University Veszprém in 1983 and was awarded a Diploma in Management
Studies at Buckinghamshire College – SZÁMALK in 1992. He received post-graduate degree at the College of Petroleum and Energy
Studies in 1993 and an MBA degree at Brunel University – SZÁMALK in 1995. Worked for Dunai Kõolajipari Vállalat as plant engineer,
operator, shift manager and as deputy plant manager between 1983 and 1992 to move on to the positions of plant manager and later
project manager at Danube Refinery of MOL Rt. between 1992 and 1995; he acted as first consultant and project manager for Oracle
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Hungary from 1995 to 1997. Starting 1997, he worked as manager for partner relations at MOL Group DS until his appointment as
head of the Chemical Division in 1999 and in turn as Director of Chemical Portfolio Management in 2001. The CEO of TVK Plc between
July 1, 2003 and May 31, 2011. The director of the Petrochemical Division of MOL Group since March 8, 2006. Since 1997, Mr. Olvasó
has been member of the Presidium of the Hungarian Chemical Industry Association where he has acted as president since December
15, 2004. The General Assembly of APPE elected Mr. Olvasó a Member of the Board on 2nd June 2005. Mr. Olvasó was a Member
of the Board by the General Assembly of CEFIC between August 2006 and October 2008. As of September 12, 2008 he is honorary
associate professor at Pannon University of Veszprém.

4. Michel-Marc DELCOMMUNE (64)
Member of the Board from November 3, 2000 to April 30, 2011
Chief Advisor to the President of MOL Group since July 1, 2006
Qualified Chemical Engineer, MBA
Currently SeniorAdvisor to MOL Group Executive Chairman, after a career of 40 year in the oil industry that saw him occupy Executive
Director positions first as CFO at PetroFina between 1990 and 1998 and at MOL Group as CFO and Chief Strategy Officer between
2000 and 2006. He left the Board of MOL in 2008. Between November 3, 2000 and April 30, 2011 he was the member of the Board of
TVK plc. He holds a degree in Chemical Engineering from Liege University and an MBA from Cornell University. He is a Belgian citizen.

5. Gyula GANSPERGER (49)
Member of the Board since April 20, 2006
Deputy chairman of KÉSZ Holding Zrt.
Qualified economist.
Mr. Gansperger graduated in 1986 from University of Economics Budapest, Department of Finance. He obtain his professional
expertises between 1986-1987. at Elektrocoop Company as Executive Officer, between 1987-1990. at CET Budapest Tervező Rt.
as Chief accountant, between 1990-1998. at TAXORG Könyvelő és Adótanácsadó Kft. as Managing Director, between 1998-2001.
at Hungarian Privatization and State Holding Company as Chairman and CEO, between 2001-2002. at Budapest Airport Pte. Ltd. as
Chairman and CEO, between 2003-2005. at Wallis Plc. as CFO. He was the Chief Executive Officer of Wallis Ltd. between 2006-2007
and then, until December 2008 the Vice President of KÉSZ Holding Private Limited Company, member of the Board of Directors.
At the present he is the CEO of of MORANDO Kockázati Tőkealap-kezelő Plc.
Titles:
2009MORANDO Kockázati Tőkealap-kezelő Plc., member of the Board of Directors
2008Constans Invest Kft., Managing Director
2006TVK Plc., member of the Board of Directors
2007-2008 Kész Holding Plc., member of the Board of Directors
2005-2007 Wallis Plc., member of the Board of Directors
2005-2007 Graboplast Plc., member of the Board of Directors
2001-2003. MATÁV Ltd., member of the Board of Directors
1998-2000. Hungarian Post Co. Ltd., member of the Board of Directors
1995-1998. Hungarian Privatization and State Holding Company, member of the Supervisory Board
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6. Vratko KASSOVIC (68)

7

†

Member of the Board between April 28, 2005 – April 30, 2011
CEO, Slovnaft a.s. until March 6, 2006.
Qualified Chemical Engineer
Mr. Kassovic graduated as a chemical engineer from the technical university of Bratislava in 1967. He joined Slovnaft in 1969 and filled
several positions until he was appointed as CEO in January 2002. Mr. Kassovic has been the director of the Petrochemical Division of
the MOL Group since October 2003. On March 6, 2006, Mr. Kassovic has retired.

7. Péter MEDGYESSY Dr. (70)
Member of the Board since April 20, 2006.
Former Prime Minister
Qualified economist
Mr. Medgyessy graduated from Budapest University of Technology and Economics, Department of Theoretical Politics and Economy
in 1966. Between 1966-1982 he worked at the Ministry of Finance in different positions. Between 1982-1986 Deputy Minister of
Finance. In 1987 Minister of Finance. Between 1988-1990 Deputy Prime Minister, responsible of economic affairs in the government
at the time of the change of regime. Between 1990-1994 President and Director General of the French Paribas Bank Ltd. in Hungary. Between 1994-1996 President and Director General of the Hungarian Investment and Development Bank Ltd. Between 19961998. Minister of Finance int he Social Democratic-Liberal government. Between 1998-2001 Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Inter Európa Bank and Vice President of Atlasz Insurance Ltd. Between 2002-2004 Prime Minister of the Hungarian Republic in the
Social Demotratic-Liberal government. On August 25, 2004 he resigns for the sake of maintaining the coalition. Extraordinary and
Plenipotentiary Ambassador of the Republic of Hungary since October 14, 2004 until May 31, 2008.
Other professional and public activities:
1973-1977
Member of the Board of the International Institute for State Finance
1994-1996
Chairman of the Hungarian Society of Economics
1994-1996
Member of the Counsellors’ Committee of the World Economic Forum in Davos
1995-1996
Member of the Board of Directors of the Hungarian Banking Association
1998-2000
Member of the Hungarian Atlantic Council
1998-2000
Vice President of the Commercial, Industrial and Cultural Chamber of Central European and Gulf Countries
2006Member of Comité Européen d’Orientation founded by Jacques Delors
2008Chairman of Hungarian-Hong Kong Partner Association
February 2009- Honorary chairman of Hungarian-Hong Kong Partner Association

146

8

9

10

8. József MOLNÁR (56)
Member of the Board from April 20, 2001 to April 30, 2011
Group Chief Executive Officer, MOL Group.
Qualified Economist
From 1978 to 2001, Mr. Molnár held various management positions at BorsodChem Plc., including Pricing Department Head from
1982 to 1987, and Economics Department Head from 1987 to 1991. Between 1991 and 2001, as Chief Financial Officer and first
deputy to the CEO, he contributed to the crisis management and reorganisation of the company, and later to the creation of its
vision, and subsequent privatisation. He played a key role in the stock exchange listing of BorsodChem shares. He was CEO of TVK Plc.
between 2001 and 2003, and MOL Group Planning & Controlling Director until his appointment as Group CFO in September 2004.
Between April 2001 and April 2011 he has been a Board member of TVK Plc., between 2004 and 2008, a Board member of Slovnaft
a.s. and since April 2010 he is also a member of INA Supervisory Committee. He is the Group-CEO of MOL Plc. since May 1, 2011.

9. Zoltán NAGY Dr. (54)
Member of the Board since May 1, 2011
Economist by degree
He graduated from Budapest University of Economic Sciences and Public Administration, Department of Finances in 1983. At the
same university he took his Ph.D. in 1988 and then he completed a course of postgraduate studies at University of Amsterdam.
Between 1983 and 1985 he worked as researcher of the Industrial Economy Institute of the Ministry of Industry and then he was
senior researcher at the Economic Institute of the National Planning Office until 1991. Between January 1991 and January 1994
he was firstly Chief of Cabinet then Permanent Secretary of State of the Ministry of Finances. Then between February 1994 and
October 1996 he was President and CEO of OTP Garancia Biztosító Rt. From March 1997 to September 1998 he was the Director of
the State Audit Office of Hungary. Between September 1998 and November 2010 he was the President of the Hungarian Competition
Authority. Currently he is the head of the Compliance and Ethics Department of the Hungarian State Railways Company.

10. Miklós KAMARÁS (67)
Member of the Board since May 1, 2011
Qualified Economist
Between 1972-1990, he held various senior positions at ÉPGÉP Co., finishing as CEO. Between 1995-1998 he was Deputy General Manager of ÁPV Plc. (the Hungarian Privatisation & State Holding Co.). From 1998, Mr. Kamarás was a partner at Deloitte
& Touche Hungary and head of several auditor firms. Between 2002–2004, he was CEO of ÁPV Plc., a Board member of ÁPV
Plc. He was Chairman of the Board of Directors of Budapest Airport Plc. until 30th May, 2005, and Chairman of the MÁV Plc.
until 18th October, 2008. Between 2002–2010, he was the member of the Board of Directors of MOL Plc. Between 2009-2010 he
was the CEO of the Hungarian State Holding Company (MNV Zrt.).
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Top Management
1. Zsolt PETHŐ (42)

5. János BÓTA (51)

Chief Executive Officer of TVK Plc. since 1st June 2011
Senior Vice President of Petrolchemicals Division since 1st June, 2011
Mr. Pethő graduated in the year 1991 at Bánki Donát Technical College and then, at the same school, he earned a second degree as
engineer specializing in management in 1996. He graduated from the Marketing Academy in Budapest in 1997. He started working
at MOL Plc. in various executive positions in 1998. After his position as LPG (propane-butane) Commodity Director he also worked as
Fuel Products Director and as Sales Director of the South region, before July 2006 he was assigned as the Sales Director of Refining
and Marketing. Afterwards he was appointed as Senior Vice President of MOL Group Petrochemical Division as well as CEO of TVK
Plc. as of June 1, 2011.

Director of Petrochemical Technology and Product Development since August 1, 2007
Chemical Engineer
Mr. Bóta graduated as chemical engineer from the Process Control Faculty of the University of Veszprém in 1985. In 1994 he has
received engineer-manager degree at the University of Miskolc. He has been working at TVK since 1985. For ten years he worked in
various positions at the Production Unit (HDPE-1 and PP-3 Plants), between 1989 and 1995 he was plant manager. From 1995 he was
the sales manager of the HDPE Business Unit, from 1998 worked as PP business unit director. From 2000 he was in the position of
marketing and sales manager, from 2002 he held the post of technology development manager. From August 1, 2006 for one year
he worked at the Netherlands office of Fluor Company, as process engineering manager. Since August 1, 2007 he is the Director of
Petrochemical Technology and Project Development.

Deputy Chairman of the Board since April 26, 2002; Member of the Board since August 29, 2000
Chief Executive Officer until May 31. 2011
Qualified Chemical Engineer, MBA
See CV in the section on the Board of Directors

3. Krisztina PETRÉNYINÉ SZABÓ (35)
Polymer Marketing and Sales Manager, Vice President as from October 1, 2009
Qualified Economist
Mrs. Petrényi graduated from the University of Economics Miskolc as a qualified economist in 2000 and obtained a professional
economist diploma in Foreign Trade Management at Budapest Business School in 2003. She has started her carrier in 2000 at Sales
Department of TVK. From 2002 she has acted as a senior sales executive of polyethylene export sales. She was appointed as an
integrated Senior Sales Executive of polymer export sales starting 2003.
In February 2006 she took over the position of Head of Polymer Sales. Mrs. Petrényi was appointed Deputy CEO responsible for
Polymer Marketing and Sales at TVK Plc. on October 1, 2009.

4. Gyula HODOSSY (41)
Deputy CEO, Management and Finance since July 1, 2007
Qualified Economist
Mr. Hodossy started his career in 1989 at TVK’s Customs and Material Acceptance. Graduated from the Budapest College of Finance
and Accounting in 1995 and obtained a Diploma in Management studies at Euro Contact Business School in 2002. From 1995 continued
his work as an analysing economist at the Controlling Office. He was appointed the group leader of Inventory Management in 1997.
From January 2001, he acted as the economic manager at the Olefin Business Unit. In July 2002 he took over the position of the head
of the Internal Audit, and then from January 2004 he was appointed the head of Energy Supply and Maintenance Management. Since
July 1, 2007 he has been acting as Deputy CEO, Chief Financial Officer of TVK Plc.
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6. Tamás PÉNZES (41)
Human Resources Manager (until December 31, 2011)
Psychologist
Mr. Pénzes graduated from the faculty of psychology of the University of Debrecen as a psychologist specializing in labour and
organization psychology and mathematical modelling. During his academic years, he researched corporate cultures, performed
statistical analyses and worked for an HR consulting company as a specialist of recruitment and selection. He has been member of
the TVK HR team since 2002 and was appointed HR manager in July, 2004. Mr. Pénzes teaches at the psychology department of the
University of Debrecen. He received MBA degree at Durham University in 2008.

7. Tivadar VÁLYI NAGY (56)
Director, Production since July 1, 2007
Qualified Chemical Engineer
Mr. Vályi Nagy graduated as a chemical engineer at the Mineral Oil and Coal Technology faculty of the University of Chemical
Engineering in Veszprém in 1982. He joined TVK in 1978 and worked as plant engineer in various polymerisation plants of the Company
before 1994. He acted as project manager in the implementation jobs of the ERP application to move on to managing the economics
of a business unit starting 1995. Later on was in charge of planning an analysis in the Petrochemical Division. Mr Vályi Nagy has been
chief controller of the Company since 2000. He worked as Deputy CEO, Chief Financial Officer between January 1, 2005 and June 30,
2007. He was appointed TVK’s Production Director on July 1, 2007.
Corporate governance
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Supervisory Board Members
László GYUROVSZKY (53)
Chairperson of the Supervisory Board since June 22, 2007
Member of the Supervisory Board since April 19, 2007
Financial Consultant, Crisis-Manager
Engineer
He is graduated as an engineer from the Slovakian Technical University of Bratislava in 1983. Between 1983 and 1990 he worked
as electrical engineer at Duslo Sala – Slovakian chemical company. Between 1990 and 1992, as a journalist he published political
and economical articles. Between 1992 and 1998, as a businessman, he dealt with the sale of sport and mobile communication
articles. Between 1998 and 2002 as a Member of the Parliament of the Slovak Republic, took part in implementing the reforms of the
Slovakian Economy and in the work of the Budget and Finance Committee of the Parliament. From 2002 until 2006 he was a minister
of the Regional Development and Construction of the Slovak Government. He is a member of TVK Plc’s Supervisory Board since April
19, 2007 and Chairman of it since June 22, 2007.
He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee since June 22, 2007.

Tamás MAGYAR (43)
Deputy Chair of the Supervisory Board from June 22, 2007 to April 20, 2011
Member of the Supervisory Board from March 13, 1998 to April 20, 2011
Manager TVK Plc. Energy Supply, Contract Management
Electric Product Engineer
Mr. Magyar graduated as electric product engineer from Kandó Kálmán Technical College for the Electric Industry in 1989. He worked
for TVK at the Electricity Division and at the Electric Network Plant between 1989 and 1993 to move on to the post of product
engineer at the Technical Department where he worked between 1993 and 1994 and to service manager at the High Voltage Unit
between 1994 and May 1997. He acted as head of the Electric Maintenance Unit of the Energy Supply Division between 1997 and
2000. Mr. Magyar was service manager and service technologist at the Electricians Service Unit between 2000 and 2008. He was
the expert of Energy Supply between 2008 and 2009, and from January 1, 2010 he became the Manager of Energy Supply Contract
Management. Mr. Magyar is the member of TVK Plc’s Supervisory Board since March 13, 1998. He was the Deputy Chairman of TVK
Plc’s Supervisory Board between August 29, 2000 and November 18, 2003. He is the Deputy Chairman of TVK Plc’s Supervisory Board
since June 22, 2007

Gyula BAKACSI Dr. (53)

the Corvinus University of Budapest, Faculty of Organisational Theory, and Deputy Director of the Management Sciences Institution.
From 2003, he is the Chairman of the Economics Sciences Professional Committee of the National Scientific Student Association. He
was a corporate member of the Local Government of Martonvásár between 2004 and 2006. From 2005, he is the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board of the PEMÜ Private Limited Company, Chairman of the Supervisory Board of MÁV KFV Ltd. and member of the
Supervisory Board of E-Star Alternatív Plc.

György BÍRÓ Dr. (57)
Member of the Supervisory Board since April 19, 2007
Director and Head of Department, professor of Civil Sciences Institution of the Faculty of Law, at the University of Miskolc
Lawyer
He graduated as lawyer at the Faculty of Law at the József Attila University of Sciences in 1978. From 1978 he worked at the Diósgyőri
Gépgyár as legal advisor. He works at the University of Miskolc, between 1982 and 1984 he was assistant, and until 1993 adjunct.
From 1999 he is a professor, he is the head of department of the Civil Law, at the University of Miskolc. Since 1989 he works as a
lawyer, since 1997 he is the deputy chairman of the Bar of Borsod-Abaúj-Zemplén County.

László RÉTI (45)
Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board since May 13, 2011
Member of the Supervisory Board since April 29, 2010
Maintenance engineer
Mr. Réti graduated at the Miskolc University in 2001 majoring mechanical engineer. He started to work in 1986 at TVK Plc. at the
chemical fertilizer plant, and continued to work at the maintenance unit of the Olefin Plant in 1995. He participated in the reconstruction
work of the Olefin Unit, while took part in the construction of the Olefin-2 plant between 2002 and 2004, as technological controller.
He works at the Asset management maintenance, as maintenance engineer. He is also member of the Works Council, where he has
been making different tasks in the Human, Sport and Meal Committee in the last 10 years.

Judit TURÓCZY (43)
Member of the Supervisory Board since April 21, 2011
Mrs. Turóczy is a chemist; she has been working at TVK Plc. since 1987. At present she is employed as application technologist in the
customer service of PMÉI. Since 2000 she has been the shop-steward of the Trade Union of Petrochemical Workers. Since 2010, she
has been the member of the Workers Council of TVK Plc., she is vice-president of the Mass Sport Committee.
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Member of the Supervisory Board since April 19, 2007
Head of Department, professor, at the Corvinus University of Budapest
Head of Department, professor of the Sapientia Hungarian University of Transylvania
Economist, doctorate degree, candidate for Economics
Dr. Gyula Bakacsi is the Head of Department, Professor, at the Corvinus University of Budapest, Faculty of Economics, Faculty of
Organisational Theory. He is the Head of Department, Professor of the Sapientia Hungarian University of Transylvania, the Faculty of
Economics and Human Sciences, Business Sciences.
He is graduated in 1983 at the Faculty of Industry of the Marx Károly University of Economics in Budapest. He got his doctorate degree
in 1988, candidate for Economics degree in 1994. Between 1983 and 1985 he worked at the MTA-MKKE (Marx Károly University of
Economics) as science associate at the Coordination Secretary of Faculty „Socialist Company” National Perspective Scientific Research.
Between 1985 and 1990, he was assistant lecturer at the Faculty of Industrial Business Organisation at MKKE. Between 1990 and
2004 he was adjunct, from 1994 docent at the Faculty of Organisation and Management Theory at the University of Economics,
Budapest. Between 2000 and 2002 he was Deputy Rector of the Faculty of University Politics and Development at the University of
Economics and State Administration, Budapest. From 2003 he is a Head of Department of the Business Sciences at the Csíkszereda
Unit of the Sapientia Hungarian University of Transylvania. In 2004, he was the Deputy Rector of the University, between 2004 and
2008, he was the Rector of the Faculty of Economics and Human Sciences. From 2005, he is the Head of Department, Professor, at
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Structure of Organization of TVK Plc.

Report by the Supervisory Board
to the Annual General Meeting of TVK Plc. dated 17th April 2012
Throughout the business year of 2011, TVK Plc’s Supervisory Board performed its activities in the form of regular board meetings. The
Supervisory Board presents the General Assembly with its present business report, pertaining to the business year of 2011, based
on the report of the Board of Directors (BOD), the independent auditor’s report and its continuous review of the operation of the
cooperation.

CEO

According to the opinion of the Supervisory Board, the BOD’s 2011 operation and actions are in line with the laws, with TVK Plc’s
statutes and bylaws. The Corporate information systems and bylaws ensure the transparency and continuous control of Corporate
operations. During the operation of the Corporation each shareholder received equal treatment as required by law.
The Supervisory Board was kept informed by the BOD of the Corporation through the Chief Executive Officer and about the steps
taken to implement its strategy.
In 2011 external environment brought extreme challenges for the Company. Besides the strengthening recessionary expectations of
the euro zone TVK, as a member of the MOL Group, thanks to its vertical integration, was able to maintain its customers, could perform
its contractual obligations as a reliable partner. In the opinion of the Supervisory Board TVK is ready to obtain the determinant player
role in the regional market by keeping its competitiveness, when recession is over.

Monomer and
Chemicals Sales

Security and Protection

Business Analysis and
Operational Support

Internal Audit

SCM Co-ordination

SD & HSE

Legal

In the opinion of the Supervisory Board, the 2011 work of the BOD was successful.

The Supervisory Board supports the election of Ernst & Young Könyvvizsgáló Kft. as auditor for 2012 and the establishment of its
remuneration.
The Supervisory Board supports the approval of discharge for the senior management.
The Supervisory Board approves the election of members to the Board of Directors.
The Supervisory Board approves the election of members to the Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee.

László Gyurovszky
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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Asset management and
Energy Supply

Project Management
and Process
Development

Information Services

HR Administration

Corporate Services

Communication

TVK Annual Report 2011

Corporate governance

The Supervisory Board recommends the General Assembly to accept TVK Plc’s 2011 annual report prepared according to the
Hungarian Act on Bookkeeping with a balance sheet total of 196.747 million HUF and after-tax loss of 9.319 million HUF, as well as the
TVK Group’s 2011 consolidated annual report with a balance sheet total of 209.030 million HUF and an after tax loss of 11.226 million
HUF. The Supervisory Board approves the recommendation of the BOD regarding the utilisation of the 2011 result after tax.
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Corporate Information
Date of incorporation of TVK Plc.: December 31, 1991. Registered by the Borsod-Abaúj-Zemplén County Court of Justice acting as
Court of Registration on 23 March 1992, with effect as of 31 December 1991. (Date of charter: December 31, 1991., initial date of
operation: January 1, 1992)
Legal predecessor:  Tiszai Vegyi Kombinát
Registration number: Cg. 05-10-000065
The Annual Ordinary General Meeting modified the effective Articles of Association on April 14, 2011. The Articles are available for
inspection and may be ordered at the head office of the Company and is available for downloading at the Company web site (www.
tvk.hu).
Capital issued: As of December 31, 2011 the capital of the Company included 24,290,843 ordinary shares with a face value of HUF
1,010, each. The capital of the Company upon foundation amounted to HUF 24,533,751,430.
The Registrar of the Company
The Board of Directors of the Company keeps the Share Register of registered shares and their holders. Issues related to TVK shares
are handled by the Treasury Office of TVK, located at TVK’s registered office in Tiszaújváros:
TVK Plc.
Mailing Address: H-3581 Tiszaújváros, P.O.Box 20., Hungary
Phone: +36 (49) 522-377
Fax: +36 (49) 521-903
E-mail: reszvenyiroda@tvk.hu
The securities of the company are traded in the following foreign markets

Shareholders with more than 5% according to the Share Register December 31, 2011
Shareholder

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

24,290,843

Highest (HUF)

8,490

7,060

3,495

3,780

3,540

Lowest (HUF)

5,250

2,405

1,760

2,760

2,150

On December 31 (HUF)

7,010

2,405

3,400

3,300

2,240

179,752

58,420

82,589

80,160

54,412

21,424

5,637

6,031

2,594

1,422

85

23

24

10

6

369

82

0

82

n.a.

Closing Price of the TVK Share on the Budapest Stock Exchange:

London

August, 1996

International Order Book

Capitalisation (HUF million) (on December 31)
Annual turnover (HUF million)

August, 1996

Freiverkehr

8.07

24,290,843

Number of shares (on December 31)

OTC organised

Frankfurt

86.79

8.07

Most Important Data of the TVK Share

Category

OTC not organised

86.79

1,959,243

Notes:
In accordance with the resolution of 2007 Annual General Meeting, every ordinary share with a par value of HUF 1,010 (i.e. one
thousand ten forint) entitles the holder thereof to have one and one hundredth vote.
Please note that in Hungary, the Share Register does not fully reflect the ownership structure, as registration is not mandatory.

Date of listing

PORTAL

21,083,142

According to the Share Register, MOL Plc. shareholding in TVK Plc. is 86.79%. The stake of Slovnaft, a.s. (subsidiary of MOL Plc) is
8.07%. The direct and indirect influence of MOL Plc. in TVK Plc. is 94.86%.

City

August, 1996

Voting ratio (%)

Slovnaft, a.s.

Market type

New York

Interest (%)

MOL Hungarian Oil and Gas Public Limited Company (MOL Plc.)

Other Information

OTC not organised

Quantity (of shares)

Average daily turnover during the year (HUF million)
Dividend per share (HUF)

Description of owner
Interest
(%)
88.10

December 31, 2011
Voting Ratio
(%)
88.10

Quantity
(of shares)
21,401,032

Foreign institution/company

9.20

9.20

2,231,796

Domestic individual

1.29

1.29

314,443

Foreign individual

0.03

0.03

7,227

Domestic institution/company

Senior management, employees

-

-

-

Treasury shares

-

-

-

Shares held by unidentified parties

1.38

1.38

336,345

TOTAL

100

100

24,290,843

Corporate governance

Ownership structure as per the Share Register

TVK Plc. has no treasury shares.
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Glossary of terms

Elected officers and top management and treasury shares held on December 31, 2011

Position

Beginning of
assignment

End /termination/
term of assignment

Shares held
(qty)

Chemical and Environmental expressions
BAT (Best Available Technique)
Application of the best practice in a certain area.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
György Mosonyi

Chairman of the Board

26.04.2002

19.04.2012

0

Gyula Gansperger

Board member

20.04.2006

20.04.2016

0

Dr. Péter Medgyessy

Board member

20.04.2006

20.04.2016

0

Dr. Zoltán Nagy

Board member

01.05.2011

30.04.2016

0

Miklós Kamarás

Board member

01.05.2011

30.04.2016

0

Ferenc Horváth

Board member

01.05.2011

30.04.2016

0

Árpád Olvasó

Deputy Chairman of the Board

29.08.2000

31.05.2011

0

Michel-Marc Delcommune

Board member

03.11.2000

30.04.2011

0

József Molnár

Board member

20.04.2001

30.04.2011

0

Vratko Kassovic

Board member

28.04.2005

30.04.2011

0

19.04.2012
19.04.2012
20.04.2016

0

SUPERVISORY BOARD
László Gyurovszky

SB chairperson

Turóczy Judit

SB chairperson, SB member

22.06.2007
19.04.2007
21.04.2011

Judit Turóczy

SB member

19.04.2007

19.04.2012

0

dr. Gyula Bakacsi

SB member

19.04.2007

19.04.2012

0

dr. György Bíró

SB member

29.04.2010

29.04.2015

0

László Réti

SB member, employee representative

22.06.2007
20.04.2001

20.04.2011
20.04.2011

0

Zsolt Pethő

Senior Vice President Petrochemicals,
Chief Executive Officer

01.06.2011

Indefinite term

0

Gyula Hodossy

Chief Financial Officer

01.07.2007

Indefinite term

0

Krisztina Petrényiné Szabó

Polymer Marketing and Sales Manager

01.10.2009

Indefinite term

0

Tivadar Vályi Nagy

Petrochemical Production Manager

01.07.2007

Indefinite term

0

János Bóta

Head of Petrochemical Technology and
Project Development

01.08.2007

Indefinite term

0

0

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Tamás Pénzes

Head of Human Resources

01.07.2004

31.12.2011

0

Árpád Olvasó

Chief Executive Officer

01.07.2003

31.05.2011

0

COD (chemical oxygen demand)
A measure of the level of pollution in waste water, or the quantity of oxygen required for the chemical oxidation of the components
of organic substances in a unit of waste water.
Copolymer
Polymer constructed of two or more different monomers.
EC number (European Chemical number: EINECS, ELINCS or NLP)
An EU registration number assigned to chemical substances classified in the “European Inventory of Existing Commercial Chemical
Substances Information System” (EINECS) before 1981 or in the “European List of Notified Chemical Substances” after 1981 or as “No
Longer Polymers” (NLP, a special regulatory category of the EU.
EMAS (Eco-Management and Audit Scheme)
As a system of environmental management and certification in the European Union, EMAS offers voluntary participation.
ÉKÖVÍZIG
Northern Hungarian Environmental and Water Management Authority.
ÉKTVF
Northern Hungarian Directorate of Environmental Protection, Nature Conservation and Water Management.
Ethylene
The first member of the alkene homologous series, empirical formula: C2H4. There is double bond between the two carbon atoms.
ETS (Emission Trading Scheme)
The Greenhouse Gas Emission Trading scheme of the European Union is a market based instrument for cost effective reduction of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions.
Frequency of Intense Exposures
Number of reported intense exposures per 1 million hours worked.
FTE (Full-time equivalent)
Number of employed full-time equivalent employees.
GRIG (Global Reporting Initiative Guideline)
A process that affects several stakeholders and an independent institution with the mission to develop and disseminate
globally acceptable guidelines for sustainability reports.
HDPE
High Density Polyethylene

Corporate governance

Name

Homopolymer
Polymer constructed of identical monomers
HSE
The Health, Safety and Environmental Protection organization of TVK
IPPC
Integrated Pollution Prevention and Control
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ISO 9001:2000
A standard applicable to quality management systems. The part after the colon shows the date of publishing.
ISO 14001:2004
The standard applicable to environmentally oriented management systems.
LDPE
Low Density Polyethylene
Liquified Propane Gas (LPG)
Hydrocarbon gas compound mainly consisting of propane and buthane, liquefied under high pressure, which is sold in cylinders for
household purposes. These days the motoric usage of LPG spreads. This fuel is the „autogas”.

PPM
PPM is a measure of the concentration of a substance in a liquid, used where low levels of concentration are significant. The ppm
(parts per million) value is equivalent to the absolute fractional amount multiplied by one million. For example, 10 ppm equals 10
kilogram of a substance for a million kilogram (one kiloton) of a liquid.
Propylene
The second member of the alkene homologous series, empirical formula: C3H6. There is a single double bond between two carbon
atoms.
PSM
Process Safety Management

LTI (Lost Time Injury)
Injuries leading to lost working hours

Pyrolisis
Thermal cracking of hydrocarbons at high (usually above 650°C) temperature and low (few bars) pressure, which is the basic process
in operation of olefin plants. Process is conducted in the presence of steam in order to minimize coke-formation.

LTIF (Lost Time Injury Frequency)
The number of incidents of lost time injury (LTI) per one million hours worked.

RAR (Road accident rate)
The number of road accidents per 1 million km driven.

MDPE (Medium Density Polyethylene)
Medium Density Polyethylene

REACH (Registration, Evaluation and Authorization of Chemicals))
A new EU directive concerning the registration, evaluation and authorization of chemicals

Monomer
The basic material of the process of polymerisation

SCM
Supply chain management

TIP
Technical Intervention Plan

Steam Cracker (Olefin Plant)
Technology for production of key basic petrochemical products (olefins: ethylene, propylene, and aromatics: benzene, toluene,
xylenes), on the basis of thermal decomposition (cracking) and dehydrogenation of petrochemical feedstock (naphtha and chemical
gasoil) produced by the refineries or lighter saturated hydrocarbons (ethane, propane, butane) in the presence of steam. Main
products of the process (ethylene, propylene) are raw-materials of polyethylene and polypropylene production, while the byproducts can widely be used in organic chemical industry, plastics and rubber production or as gasoline blending components.

TROIF (Total Reportable Occupational Illnesses Frequency)
The number of Reportable Occupational Illnesses per one million hours worked.
Olefin
A member of the alkene homologous series with dual bond. Empirical formula CnH2n. The simplest representatives of these
compounds, ethylene and propylene are basic petrochemicals. The most important asset in olefin production is the so-called
steam cracker (olefin plant), which converts naphtha, chemical gasoil and other light hydrocarbons to key products as ethylene and
propylene by cracking and dehydrogenation.

TQM (Total Quality Management)
Total Quality Management is a management method, philosophy and corporate practice, which uses available human and material
resources at the highest level of efficiency to achieve corporate goals.

PE 100
Bimodal HDPE pipe grade raw material. Gas and drinking water pipes made of bimodal HDPE have a useful life of minimum 50 years
with circumferential stress at 10 MPa.

TROIF (Total Reportable Occupational Illness Frequency)
Total reportable occupational illness frequency per one million hours worked.

PM (Particulate Matter)
Particulate matter is finely dispersed solid matter produced by burning and other technological processes; the most dangerous are
fractions finer than 10 μm (PM10).

Hazardous wastes
Wastes showing one or more of the features listed in Annex 2 of Act XLIII of 2000, or containing such substances or components
and representing a health or environmental hazard because of origin, composition or concentration.

Polyethylene
A polymer made up of ethylene monomer, which may contain monomers other than ethylene known as comonomers.

VOC
Organic compounds volatile at room temperature, hydrocarbons.

Corporate governance

TRIPOD
A software based method of investigating the cause of accidents.

Polymer
A complexity of repeating units of organic or inorganic macromolecules
Polypropylene
A polymer made up of propylene monomer, which may contain monomers other than propylene known as comonomers.
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Financial expressions and abbreviations
CAPEX
Capital Expenditures.
EBIT
Operating profit.
EBITDA
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (the sum of operating profits and depreciation).
EBITDA margin
Ratio of EBITDA divided by net sales revenues.
EPS
Earnings Per Share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year after deduction of the average number of treasury shares held over the period.
Gearing
Ratio of net debt to net debt plus equity.
IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standards, formerly International Accounting Standards (IAS).
Market capitalisation
Number of shares (issued share capital excluding Treasury stock) multiplied by the actual stock market price.
ROACE (Return on average capital employed)
Operating profit after taxation / average capital employed
Operating profit after taxation = operating profit x (100% - calculated corporate tax ratio).
ROE (Return on Equity)
Net income divided by shareholders equity.
Shareholder’s return
Return resulting from the movements of the share price and the amount of dividend paid.

Contact information
Corporate Address
Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company (TVK Plc.)
Registered office: 3581 Tiszaújváros, TVK Industrial Site, TVK Head Office, Lot number 2119/3 Building 136, Hungary
Mailing address: H-3581 Tiszaújváros, P.O.Box 20, Hungary
Central phone: +36 49/522-222
Central fax: +36 49/521-322
E-mail: tvkinfo@tvk.hu
Web-site: www.tvk.hu
Investor Relations
TVK Plc., Treasury, H-3581 Tiszaújváros, P.O.Box 20, Hungary
Phone: +36 49/522-377
Fax: +36 49/521-903
E-mail: bki@tvk.hu
Share Registrar
TVK Plc., Treasury, H-3581 Tiszaújváros, P.O.Box 20, Hungary
Phone: +36 49/522-377
Fax: +36 49/521-903
E-mail: reszvenyiroda@tvk.hu
Stock Exchange Trading Information
Budapest Stock Exchange
H-1062 Budapest, Andrássy út 93.
Phone: +36 1/429-6636
Fax: +36 1/429-6654
E-mail: info@bse.hu
GDR Information
The Bank of New York Mellon
Depositary Receipts Division
101 Barclay Street, 22nd floor, New York, NY 10286, USA
Tel: +1 212-815-3503
Fax: +1 212-571-3050

Corporate governance

Sustainable development
TVK Plc, SD & EBK, H-3581 Tiszaújváros, P.O.Box 20, Hungary
Tel: 49/522-317
Fax: 49/522-354
E-mail: sd@tvk.hu
Announcements
The company publishes its announcements on the following websites:
- the website of TVK at /www.tvk.hu/,
- the website of the Budapest Stock Exchange at /www.bet.hu/  and
- the website of the London Stock Exchange at /www.londonstockexchange.com/
- the website of Capital Market Disclosures, operated by PSZÁF at /www.kozzetetelek.hu/.
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Questionnaire
Please print, fill in and return to our address the following questionnaire
Thank you for helping us to improve the content and aesthetic quality of future reports with your observations and
recommendations.
Attention:
Address:
Telephone:

Statement of responsibility
to be attached to the 2011 Annual Report of Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company

Gábor Pálffy
TVK Nyrt. 3581 Tiszaújváros, Pf. 20
+36 49 522-917 • Fax: +36 49 521-018

From:
Telephone:
Date:

Company:
Fax:
Email:

1. My ideas and recommendations concerning the report:
We the undersigned representatives of Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company (TVK Plc., Company), the issuer of TVK ordinary
shares hereby declare that TVK Plc. takes full responsibility for the announced Annual Report of the Company for the year ended
on 31 December 2011, which has been prepared to the best of our knowledge in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as endorsed by the European Union, and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position, and profit of
TVK Plc. and its subsidiaries and presents a fair review of the position, development and performance of TVK Plc. and its subsidiaries
together with a description of principal risks and uncertainties.
2. . I think the report and the information it contains cover the issues related to sustainable development:
  yes, completely
  yes, mostly
yes, in general
no, hardly
no, no coverage at all
Tiszaújváros, April 17, 2012

Zsolt Pethő
Chief Executive Officer

Gyula Hodossy
Chief Financial Officer

Tisza Chemical Group Public Limited Company

3. I think the content of the report is:  
excellent
acceptable
average

poorer than average

unacceptable

4. I think the layout and editing of the report is:
excellent
acceptable
average

poorer than average

unacceptable

5. I found the following parts especially interesting:
introduction of the company
our business   
labour safety ratios
fire safety ratios

management system
human relations

environmental ratios
other:

6. I think this report would be more valuable if it included the following topics:

7. Please let us know which stakeholder group you belong to:
employee
authority
scientific organisation
NGO
business partner  
shareholder

financial analyst
company
other:

Signature:
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